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No US citizen has ever been
killed or injured, no facility,
large or small, in that vast and
rich territory has suffered the
slightest material damage as
a consequence of any action
originated from Cuba.
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TERRBRORISM:

An account of
violent attacks
carried out to
spread terror.




La Coubre

March 4, 1960

At 3:15 on the afternoon of
March 4w, 1960, the steamship
La Coubre, with a cargo of
Belgian-made grenades for
FAL rifles, blew up on the
dockside in Havana. The
explosion caused 101 deaths,
over 200 injuries and an
indeterminate number of
disappearances.

The U.S. government had put
the Belgian authorities undep
pressure not to send

the arms shipment to the
island, and from January of
that same year the CIA had
unleashed an underground
war against the Guban Revolution.
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 EL BARBARO ATENTADO DE TALLAPIEDRA
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LA COUB H

52 “Thg project 1o overthrow Castro had become a major
5 activity of the Agency with the highest poltigal support.”

Ilenm-l hy CIA inspector, Lyman Illrltnalrlcmen Irnm i} Huevalﬂmm (2/3/98)
1




The factory from which these weapons had originated in Belgium had been
under US pressure not to sell arms to Cuba. The U.S. consul in Belgium and
a military attaché at the embassy had personally put the factory and the
Belgian Foreign Ministry under pressure not to sell the weapons.

The Cuban authorities had received a substantial amount of confidential
information regarding both official and unofficial pressure applied by the
United States to prevent the sale of weaponry to the Ministry of the
Revolutionary Armed Forces.

This act of sabotage deprived Cuba of 44 tons of grenades and 31 tons of
munitions.

In the case of previous shipments, the entire cargo had been loaded via
barges in the Bay of Amberes. Nevertheless, on this occasion the munitions

‘and the ganaral cargn had been stowed direq:tly at the docks.




! .
“As | said to President Castro, | understand the
suspicions that have arisen. We had begun fo
carry out some sabotage at that time, but

this was not amengst them, as far as | know...”

Robert Reynolds, head of the CIA station in Miami from September 1960 to October 1961.
Academic Conference “Bay of Pigs, 40 years later”, held in Havana in March of 2001.
(Editor’s Note.)

Six French sailors lost their lives.



Coded. Top Secret. November 24, 1959.
From Washington to British Secret Service.
“I had to see Allen Dulles this morning on
another matter and took the opportunity to
discuss Cuba on a strictly personal basis.
From his own point of view, he said that he
greatly hoped that we would decide not to go
ahead with the Hunter deal [in reference to
the moves Cuba was making to purchase
planes from the United Kingdom, Editor’s
note]. His main reason was that this might
lead the Cubans to ask for Soviet or Soviet
bloc arms. He had not cleared this with the
State Department, but it was, of course, a
fact that in the case of Guatemala it had
been the shipment of Soviet arms that had
brought the opposition elements together
and created the occasions for what was
done.”

Documenl declassilied by the British governmenl. Forms part of the legacy
handed over to Cuba by the U.S. pariy at ihe Academic Conference “Bay ol
Pigs, 40 yaars later.”(EN.)
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“iThere was nowdoubtjihu't ‘the shlp hud
been sabotaged, that it was notian|

accident caused when iruﬁsp&rhng a case
of anti-tank grenudes -ii
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“Once the first explosion had taken place, | came out and the shock
wave carried me out onto the street, Calvet was scorched. . . .There were
few people with the first one, in the second workers from all parts of the
docks had come running, as well as local people, firefighters, people
came and started to help. There was no way of controlling them, the
helpers, all anxious to cooperate, took the full impact, and that was the
reason why there was death on such a massive scale at that time."”

Aliredo Vidal Carrero

“There is one case in particular out of the many
comrades who died that | can never forget. | have never
spoken about it before, but | will now. . . . | gathered up
the remains, | remember the eyes, which left an
impression on me, as if they were alive, and |
covered them with a dressing. Later on a child
approached me asking about his father who had
disappeared. | looked at him and knew immediately
who he was looking for. "Those are my father's eyes,
he said by way of confirmation.

He was a young man who was not even fifteen years
old. | asked him not lo tell the rest of his family about
what he had seen and | prepared a coffin full of wood
to approximate the weight of a corpse and that was
where | put the eyes, and that was what the family

mourned for later.”

Nurse Gloria Azoy




“We belonged to the War Material unit of
the G4 Logistics Section.

“Once the ship had docked, the time
available to put an explosive charge in the
hold, in the cases, was not enough to place
the charge firstly, because we had to get into
the hold, and secondly, because a large
number of cases had to be lifted within the
hold in order to place the two charges inside
it. Practically speaking, this was not possible
and, in addition, more than one person would
have been required to take part in the
activity, which we believed to be impossible
on accounl of the security measures taken.
Experts put the charges in place in the cargo
hold in Europe. There is no doubt about that.

“As we have already mentioned, we had
handled large quantities of munifions before.
Besides, those grenades had a detonator, two
types of safety devices, one for
transportation purposes and another, which
was secured during the voyage. Huge
mechanical efforts would have been required
to detonate one of these grenades. Also,
given the way in which they had been
packaged, in a wooden crate, in a zinc
container and inside a cardboard case, a fall
or something similar could not have been
accidental. Following the La Coubre
explosion, an order was given at the highest
levels to throw these types of crates from a
plane at high altitude and they did not
explode. In other words, there is no
possibility whalsoever of an accident during
the process of unloading the ship’s cargo.”

Estanislao Figueroa del Pozo

it W
“My mother asked when the explosion occurred, 'What's happened at the
docks?' And she added, ‘My son is dead.’ We had three brothers working at the
docks; we didn't know where they were. The others appeared, and the only one
missing was Guillermo. At the time of the second explosion the police wouldn't
let me through. If they had, then | too would have died. We went to the hospital,
by the bay. Only half of our next-door neighbor was found. The eight brothers
who remained alive searched for him. What the imperialists have done to our
people, to this island that has sacrificed so much, is unmentionable. Four
orphans were left crying inconsolably for their father.

“We didn’t find anything, in the bay or
anywhere. For those four children who were
orphaned, justice also has to be done.”

Testimo Zenaida Capetillo,
sister of one u!nxehx:ﬂm ol the F:nEEh ship
La Coubre.

.....
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“Freedom means even more now.
Freedom means country
and our choice now will be *

Homeland or Death!” \a *

1‘

Fidel Castro, march 5, 1960 A

It was evident that terronsni had
s killed, but it had not terrorized the
. i Cuhan people.




A country with a population twenty-five times
smaller, and so much smaller in terms of surface
area, than the United States has seen the blood of
its citizens flow due to terrorist acts, organized and
carried out from U.S. territory, on a larger scale
than all the U.S. deaths during the Vietnam war.




"We had begun to carry out
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some acts of sabotage..

of the CIA station in Miami,

X

ds, head

AN

BA NG



IVENCEREMOS! FRENTE
AL SABOTAJE TR,

Cobardes esclavos yanquis g
plrenden fuegu a El Encanto

;r]ﬂ'l'l!'ﬂ- AIRADA DEL PULBLD QUE FipE I.I.III'HIII PARA LOS mlﬂll!'l.'u

Amgide @ 5 Prbmpisin pasdni o
X TV LN

K

WG/ EXPLOSIVE
DANGEROUS
|

tnolAN POWBIE S

atignTows P




F WOOLWORT CoO

I ‘ §iAB10SA POR SUS DERROTAS APELA
- SABOTAJE LA CONTRARREVOLUCION|

lirada condena femening

ol vil bombardeo 1rm.u-'rui
Eaytrinhs lp snssspapiiim Yilme Dopem Paitabda dail












“In February 1961, six successful amphibian operations were carried
out involving weapons and materials (E.N., this should be read as
explosives hidden inside cigaretie packets, which reduced the El
Encanto store to ashes). And 13 arch. We also carried out two
successful puru: drops on ch.”

Report by CIA General Inspennr Lyman Kirkpatrick.
Declassified by U.S. gw&rnmerﬂ
Published in The Miami Herald, March 1, 199
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Highly inflammable explosives hidden inside
cigarette packets, manufactured by the CIA in
its laboratories.
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Arthur Schlesinger, Jr., Assistant to President

Pi ;ldE t H_éﬁﬁedv, author of biographies unlnhn
and Robert Kennedy, Pulitzer prize-winner, who did not show very much enthusiasm

i, S v S, B,

for the plans to invade Cuba; would say years later, “Historically we have assumed a

double role in Latin America. Sometimes we are the good neighbor, some times we are

the bully of the hemisphere. Therefore, Latin Americans feel a mixture of hate and

love for the United States. They react warmly to Dr. Jekyll and fear and detest Mr. Hyde.

We would feel the same way if we were Latin Americans. Dr. Jekyll promotes the
___long-ferm interests of the United States. Mr. Hyde leaves bitter feelings behind him
S wbng_ye_r he goes. The Bay of Pigs was the wgk of Mr. Hyde...” &
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“When they left Caleton they were going to take the Jaguey, Grande road; at Playa

A\
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Larga and Jagiey Grande junction, that’s where they appeared and machine-gunned
the open truck. They could see it was loaded with civilians; children, women and an
elderly person. Nora, my daughter, was in the middle, and Dulce Maria was there too,
as well as Maria Ortiz, their great aunt, was also there. The mercenaries appeared
and machine-gunned the truck and my daughter Dulce Maria was killed instantly; she
was only fourteen years old. Maria Ortiz, who was accompanying her, sister.to help
out, was also killed. Ramon Mel, Amparo’s hushand, died too. There was also Cira
Maria Garcia, who was injured, and | don’t know what happened after, that, but in the
end she died: That was my. daughter, this was her aunt. This is the memory, that | have
of my family, which was destroyed by the U.S. government. Forgive me, but it is—
unbearable, and they have paid nothing to compensate for the suffering they have

inflicted on the Cuban people: Because there are so many mathers_iﬁqﬂ fathers;—

i
T - 3 3 " ,Hf::ﬁﬂf{‘;’_,.ﬂ"{; =
families that are suffering bEI‘.?USEE_}t what I]%Epened. :f_ﬁﬂ%;ﬁiﬁﬁf%f
= 1 2 =
e o e e
fﬁﬂlﬂﬂhﬂlﬂ Angulo Cabrera, ;-ﬂ,g;,;’f:;%
= Hﬁpfher of the girl seen in the photo. ?’%ﬁa;ﬁﬂbﬁ
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¥ COLLATERA

""I'hen we saw the other plane, whuh was flying very low, almost touching the road, and
my father said to my mother, ‘Bung hard against the cabin to make the driver stop.”
- Then he pushed my brother and shouted, ‘Get down, that plane is going to land on the
- road.’ | was sitting on a wooden box full of cans of condensed milk and was holding my ="
~ six-month-old nephew at the hme. Then the plane opened fire. My mother fell duwn,a;:
“wounded in the stomach and urrrl. Mr grundmuther was hit by a bullet in the spme und
was left an invalid. My sister wus l1|1 in the Ieg and arm. | got down and my muiher:«:-»

e

npened her eyes. | asked her if she hud heen hit. She raised her arm and wnnied Iu > touch

‘-.q_._-...\_‘-.\_

me but she was too weak. Then r m? futher gni me off the truck. I said, ‘If my mother isn’t
~ taken off then I'm not gnmg, she's ulwe.’ M',r iuther hnd mvered her with CE sheet and the

LS S "'\-\."::_"-,_—-\q._

wound in her uhdnmen muldn’i be seen. That's wh 1 thnughi she was alive. Then a

~ breeze lifted the 5heet unrl I??;th? ;ﬁﬁr;r: Eﬁ@ had ¢ "EETE nwf mother’s

. ides.” = Y = \\‘Q
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On January 5, 1961, the volunteer
teacher Conrado Benitez and
peasant Heliodoro Rodriguez

were tortured and
murdered in the ESCAMBRAY

mountains by a group of > " »
counterrevolutionaries. i
Conrado was 18 years old and he ‘ '

was a high school student when he i
volunteered to be teacher and p

headed off for the mountains.

“It was as if there had been a party in the camp that night. We were all shouting at him af
the same time in the corral, we threw stones at him, we spat, swore and Osvaldo even said to
Conrado Benitez ‘If you join us we’ll spare your life.” He replied that he was, above dll, a rev-
olutionary. You know, to tell that right in Osvaldo’s face. . . .1 repeat, it was as if we were
having a party. First they got hold of Conrado Benitez, who had to practically run with the
rope around his neck in order not to be dragged, while all those present beat him with sticks
and cut him with knives.”

“When he was under the tree chosen for the execution, the rope was thrown over a branch
and the literacy teacher looked around him as if he were asking himself whether we were
people or animals. The body was lowered and raised a few times, as if he were a puppet,
until he was dead, then we left him hanging there. Even though he was clearly dead, Osvaldo

ordered him to be stabbed and beaten.”
Testimony by former counterrevolutionary Mirio Pérex Venegas.



The initial phase of paramilitary operations comprised the development,
support and orientation of dissident groups in three areas of Cuba: Pinar
del Rio, the ESCAMBRAY and Sierra Maestra mountain chains. These groups
were to be organized on the basis of guerrilla action against the regime.
Report by CIA General Inspector, Lyman Kirkpatrick.

Document declassified by the U.S. government.
Published in The Miami Herald on March 1, 1998.
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“As a father | used to ask myself why they perpetrated this
criminal savagery against a young student who had not
harmed anyone, and who only wanted to teach his fellow

human beings? Diego Benitez Lopez, father
of the murdered teacher.
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The reaction of Cuban young people to the barbaric act was to
join on a massive scale the literacy brigades, named after the
murdered teacher. A total of 105,664 students, with an average
age of between 12 and 18, left for the mountains to teach
reading and writing.
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The prue ihe enemles of the Revolution
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““When we reached the tree, | looked at Manuel: his black hair had fallen somewhat
over his forehead, his lips were blackened, his tongue was violet colored with
clotted blood around the edges. | noticed that his eyes were not bulging out of
their sockets, as is almost always the case with those who have been hanged;
that convinced me that they had hanged him up like that, dead. He also had a
deep welt on the neck, and the laryngeal cartilage was fractured, which was
detected by forensic examination.

“His genital organs were examined and contusions were observed, a sign that
they had been subjected to pressure and abuse. There were fourteen stab wounds
of varying degrees of depth.

“Beside him was Pedro Lantigua: with dark hair, somewhat reddish in color, his
face covered with marks, he was entirely rigid, visible indication that he had
fought against his murderers and signs that he had been dragged by a large
number of men, been beaten, and a ecchymotic welt on the neck.”

Rubén Dario Zayas Montalvan, examining magistrate.
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“Manuel was like a brother to
us, we led a normal life with
him, we swam together in the
river, rode the horses and
harvested coffee. He was a
nice guy, and when the
counterrevolutionaries

| arrived he was teaching my

! brother Pedro.”

Jacinto Lantigua de la Vina, son of the
murdered peasant Pedro Lantigua Ortega.

“] have suffered the greatest
possible pain that a mother
can endure; in the
ESCAMBRAY region they
murdered my son, Manuel
Ascunce Domenech, on
November 26, 1961. .. .One of
those gangs murdered my son,
cruelly, they were merciless
with his young body, he was
only sixteen years old. And
even though we regard human
life as priceless, Yankee
imperialism is unforgivable
and | believe that they should
pay for the damage they have
done and the hurt they
continue to cause us.

Testimony by Evelia Domenech,
mother of Manuel Ascunce.

Cal -O"‘\\

“Operation will be planned and
executed in support of guerrilla
bands which exist or may emerge in
the hills of Cuba utilizing both air
delivery of arms and supplies and
for the infilivation and exfilivation
of personnel.”

U.S. Foreign Relations 1961-1963, Cuba
1961-1962, Volume 10, Department of State,
Washington, U.S5. government, 1997,
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Murder of the RomeroFumllva
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ESCAMBRAYi*regmri.". .thev beut Puulu s -
_- Romern, who was 14 years old, her sm#' {

Teudurd_ und her mniher Vl:eniu . .with

'._,h yonets..
‘Thev dragged José Pio Romero, and his
sister Ana Romero from the house,
together with their nephew. Once they *‘
‘had separated them from the rest of the
{.fumlly ihﬁ-\‘_r killed them in a neurbv

s _1.m5 . W
I“.."‘ . v - ﬁ.. |- e - I " ‘\
: |

< ni g‘mse of Eusiuquln we ki icked him/hit him with our ri e*, uﬂs
wgiopened fire on him g',J_t:ntl 'stuck Ezbuvuna:m hnﬁetk uqﬂ Ana wn
| nlsu beuten and shot. After huvmg done this, Macho Jiménez iuld me
' 1o squeeze Pio Romero’s genitals, which | did with' Plo ‘almost deud
he also told me to finish him off, and this I did too, shooting him'
twenty times. While | was doing ﬂ1IS | saw Blas beating Pio’s wife

and daughter with the butt of his rifle.”

Statement by counterrevolutionary Morales Sosa.




“They came nui b':ﬁ'hng the family, until they reached the edge of
the farmyard and then! ihev opened fire. While my family was on the
ground, they split open'my: cousin’s forehead with gunfire, ripped off

my av ni's breusi und huynneted IEV father in the neck.”
T - "t. iy

Testimony by José Pio Romero,
Bartolo Rafael Romero's son.
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RECORD OF CONSTITUTION AND INQUIRY

On the San José de Altamira farm. . .on July 3, 1962, Rubén Dario Zayas Montalban,
the municipal judge, assisted by the expert military doctor from the ESCAMBRAY
mountain division, arrived on the scene in order to carry out the procedures for an
inquiry and the recovery of three corpses lying in the farm’s paddock and put the
following on record:

First: That the body of a person of white origin, who appears to be around twenty four
years old, and who is known as Eustaquio Polo Romero, shows clear signs of being
lifeless. He was found lying on the ground, face upwards, in a pool of blood. Having
carried out an external examination, there were signs of bullet wounds caused by a
heavy caliber weapon in the frontal parietal region, with the ensuing destruction of
the brain, of the base of the nose, and the destruction of. . . .and other such injurie. ...

Second: . . .Named Pio Romero y Rojas. . .who has numerous injuries to the face,
cranium, arms, neck, testicles, caused by a heavy blunt instrument. . .wounds caused
by a highly powerful heavy caliber firearm in the right cervical region with the total
rupture of the jugular, and other such injuries. . ..

Third: The body of a woman aged around fifty. . .Ana Romero. . .wounds throughout
the regions of the face and cranium apparently caused by a blunt instrument, in
addition to massive hemorrhaging from the mouth. Injury, after injury, after
injury....



The Bolonclron
Chlldren

“Just a short fime before the children hod
‘been revising their school lessons. | wns
worri jse the dogs kept barking; |
‘was even afraid to Iunk out of the door. At~ —
‘around 9:30 p.m., | managed fo settle them
down for the night Fermin had fo rest
because he had heen working hard helping
his father cut cane. . . .| remember because
Fermin said to me, ‘Mumﬁ, | have worked
outall the problems they set me at school. . ..
Next year | am going to mI|IIf.IlT school
because | am old enough now.’

“At around eleven o'clock af night | heard
‘a group approaching calling out to us,
‘Comrades, comrades, get up. We are lost
and can hurdlr see 0 thmg, A voice »
shouted. . .but | kept quiet fo see whether &
they would leave, but they remained o | i
where they were and shouted out again, W

‘Could it be that you are traitors or are you afraid?' | couldn't keep quiet any longer and told
them to look at the door of the house ir they wanted to know whether or not we were |
trators. . .that's where the Cuban flag was hanging. Then they asked me to let the child take [
them to a nearby farm. [

“I got up to open the door, Felicia had also woken, Gregorio was already in the Iwmg room. | |
open the door a little to see the face of the person ‘Who was talking. | us{ed him, ‘Do you want| .
to come in and sit down?’ Then the nightmare started; it all happened at once. Gregurm real- i
ized that they had come to kill us and ran out of the house to look for o shotgun he had [Sasr-
hanging on the wall. At that point, another voice coming from behind the door asked him, %
‘What are you waiting for? Shoot, corporal.”

i

.........
LT

"The man lifted his weapon and fired. Felicia, who was walking into the room, doubled over
and fell onto a chair. In the window of the room where the children were sleeping, another
burst of gunfire could be heard. They ran off into the darkness and were gone; | don't want to
recall what | saw when | went into the room. My little son, Fermin, was there covered in
blood; he had been dressing when was killed. Yolanda and Josefita were in bed; they woke
up with bullet wounds in their little bodies. . .they didn't complain. | remember that in my

& L
dESpDII’ I begun fo scream. Nicolasa Diaz, mother of the murdered children.



Eduardo Ferrer, former CIA pilot,
claims in his book “Operation
Puma, the air battle of the Bay
of Pigs,” that between the
months of September 1960 and
March 1961, 68 air missions of
weapons and explosives were
supplied to insurgent groups
over the Cuban mountains.

Operation Puma, Miomi Dade Community College.
First edition in English (4-17-82).
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“What didn’t we do to get rid of Castro?”

mention is made of the different “pretexts” taken
from a memorandum written by the President of
the Council of Chiefs of Staff of the U.S. Armed
Forces, April 11, 1962, sent to Secretary of Defense
Robert McNamara.

Simulate an attack on the Guantanamo naval base
using Cubans (Cubans resident in the United States,
E.N.). They would be disguised as attacking forces
launching mortars, destroying aircraft, fadilities,
before being captured. (Using this pretext the
IEII;'ﬂ;ad States would launch a direct counterattack.

Blow up a ship without crew close to a major
Cuban city. The United States would simulate a
rescue operation of non-existent crew, the list of
victims would appear in the U.S. press with the
resulting wave of national indignation.

Sink a boat loaded with Cubans heading for
Florida.

Introduce weapons into a Caribbean country and
send planes disguised as Cuban MIGs 3“"“ g the
appearance of a subversive act backed by Castro.

Blow up a U.S. plane without crew or passengers,
with a false list of passengers. Cubans would be
blamed for bringing the aircraft down.

US News & World Report journal,
October 8, 1998
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Following the defeat of Brigade 2506

on the sands of Giron (Bay of Pigs),
the United States government gave the go
ahead for Operation Mongoose.

The largest CIA base was created within %WW/

the context of this plan. This base continved Ly W3, -
fo funchion o .5, femitory itself, even ofter R Y-i’th"'
Operation Mongoose had come to an end. ;

According to declassified U.S. documents,
and other sources, some 600 officials of the
Company operated out of the IM-Wave base,
for whom between 3,000 and 4,000 agents
of Cuban origin worked.

They controlled several hundred counter-
Revolutionary organizations that operated
as a screen in the permanent and incessant
aggression against

Jlﬂ infrastructure was set up in the
:Hr Miami to operationally back up and
supply actions against Cuba.

'I'mmm?hmmps were set up in the keys

e swampy areas of the
Everglades for commando groups

responsible for carrying out special
operations

ﬂn;;m were provided with planes for

air against economic and social

targets, as well as naval bases. Resources
included the mother ship, motorboats and
speedboats that were heavily armed to attack
merchant vessels of countries trading with Cuba,
fishing boats, ports and coastal villages,

and could also be used to get agents in and out
Cuba, as well as weapons and explosives.

Agents of Cuban origin were dim.:J
responsible for these actions ai

at causing suffering and death

to hundreds of Cuban families.

Following the deactivation of JM-Wave,
and the support of U.S. authorities these
Cuban terrorists based in Florida confinved
on with their activities.
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The destruction of sugar

mills and the devastation

of the sugar cane crop
via the use of incendiary
devices was not only
directed at Cuba’s main
industry, but also aimed
at spreading fear among
the peasant population
who lost their homes and
their lives.

AIR TERROR

17/01/1965: A bomb was

dropped 13 km from the
Nidgara Sugar Mill;
Consolacién del Norte, in
the Pinar del Rio province,

.u—}.'n-‘

by a plane orlgin“a‘tm r*frzom
the Umted States. It Iandbd

on the farmyard of the'

peasant Domingo Banos,
" and by some miracle it did

not explode. Had,it done
so, the entire family would
have perlsh_r-{d



anuary 17, 1965, Orlando Bosch was glven the

responsibility of dropplng napalm and live

phosphorous bombs on the Niagara Sugar Mill, in

. the Pinar del Rio province. In a statement to the

" 'Miami press he declared, “IF WE HAD MORE
"RESOURCES, CUBA WOULD BURN FROM ONE END

sl OT”E“ & ..; ------ = REVOLUCION B3
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126 bombas a la refineria, de
Regla un avion

p:mta de E. U.

Denuncia Cuba al
gobierno yanqui
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Three bombs were dropped from a plane originating from
the United States, one of which damaged the roof of the
Tarafa port, in the proximity of the thermoelectric plant of
Nuevitas, in Camagiuey; the other two did not explode.

Three bombs were dropped froma
“pirate” plane on the “Cepero
Bonilla” plant (formerly known as
Cubanitro) and the “Frank Pais”
fertilizer factory, in the western area
of Matanzas bay, destroying a
thousand cement fiber blocks and
raw materials.




An aircraft originating from
the United States entered
Cuban air space on
September 5, 1963, over the
province of Las Villas. One of
the bombs, which it dropped,
exploded in the house of a
teacher, Fabric Aguilar
Noriega, killing him and
injuring four of his children.

“l was in the living room,
putting Alfonsito to sleep, the
only one who was unharmed;
after the crash | looked out of
the room and saw my
husband blown to pieces and
the children hurt in the midst
of wreckage. Because of that
cowardly attack my young
children never got to know
their father, and they were
almost killed. They injured

3 year old Sofia, 2 year old
Abraham and 5 year old
Francisco.”




Bill Johnson, a former CIA pilot, according to the
Miami press, declared that he together with Orlando
Bosch had taken part in missions, under contract, in
air incursions, against Cuban sugar mills.

“As a Rebel Army combatant, Cabrera was posted at that time in the
region of the Punta Alegre sugar mill (today known as Maximo
Gomez) in the province of Ciego de Avila; it was the first to be
bombed following the success of the Cuban Revolution.

“There were no deaths because the first device exploded against a
rall at the highest point of the mill and the shrapnes did not hit the
ople who were working below on the lathes, but it did, however,

It the metal structures about eighty times. The other device landed,
without exploding, at the feet of a worker who was on duty nearby.

“Cabrera Estupinan recalls, how, without any experience as a sapper,

in order to avoid the death of innocent people, that he carried this

last bomb on his right shoulder for a distance of around 500 meters

to the ?arrlsnn There he discovered, when deactivating it, that it
ed with munitions and some 12 pounds of explosives.”

was fil




On April 13, 1961, four peasants were burned to
death: Eduardo Harga (53 years old), Jose Maria
Soa (62 years old), Rogelio Pena Simon (33 years
old) and Santiago Gonzalez Linares (43 years old)
while they were trying to put out a fire. The fire
was caused by a napalm bomb dropped by a small
plane, from the United States, on sugar cane
plantations at the Venezuela Sugar Mill, in Ciego
de Avila.

Fire! The cry for help was hleard all around and
everybody, so mggon*gfoat@ndrathers .on horseback;
rushed to'the scene.

The flames were huge. Smoke was everywhere. The
sound of machetes, of bunches of sugar cane tops
and branches of brushwood seemed like some
terrible symphony of the deaf. The four peasants
opened up a breach inthe sugar cane plantation in
the attempt togstopithelfiredfrom spreading.

WHGHTIER 50 mines werejlost in the fire. They
were not awarelithatithe surrounded them and,
when they toiturn itiwas too late. They
were deadlonfarrivalfatithelhospital.




Several sugar cane plantations were set on fire by
planes, from the United States, which dropped the
inflammable material “live phosphorus” on the Rio
de Palma region, Marti, in Matanzas.

They were bombed by a “pirate” plane that dropped
the inflammable substance napalm on the sugar cane
area of Ziskay, burning 100,000 kilos of cane for the
“Boris Luis Santa Coloma” and “Rubén Martinez
Villena” sugar mills.

During the night, two 50-pound bombs were dropped
on the grounds of the Cunagua (Bolivia) sugar mill in
the municipality of the same name, in Ciego de Avila,
by a “pirate” plane, endangering the lives of local
people who were asleep in their homes.

A “pirate” plane that had departed from the United
States bombed the oil reserves at the port of Casilda
in Sancti Spiritus. One of the rockets launched hit
and set fire to one of the 24 train wagons which were
on the railway line, while another destroyed a house.




The Jaronu (Brasil) sugar mill in the municipality
of Esmeralda, Camaguey, was bombed by a plane
coming from the United States. Five 50-pound
bombs were dropped, which exploded in the
surrounding areas of the mill.

A second attack was carried out on the Jaronu
(Brasil) sugar mill in the municipality of
Esmeralda, Camaguey, by a plane originating from
the United States, which dropped five 50-pound
bombs that exploded in the area surrounding the
Brasil sugar mill. One of the bombs destroyed
several nearby rooms, without loss of human life.

Three bombs were dropped
on the Reforma (“Marcelo
Salado”) sugar mill in
Caibarién, Las Villas
province, by a Cessna 205
plane belonging to the
American Aviation
Corporation, in Miami,
registration number

N 8365-Z, coming from the
United States.



On June 11, 1965, The Miami
News published an article
on terrorist activities over

a tth;aa-yﬁnr l;ltﬂt:'. grrtriud
out from the Unite ates,
under the direction of ESTOS SON LOS AVIONES
Orlando Bosch Avila and IIIIEBHBIIDHIICIIH
the organization known as - o R e R
MIRR. The writer stated : fﬁgﬁt—qﬁﬁﬁ
that Bosch and five of his STEAen
men had been detained by
authorities in Zellwood,
Orlando, Tampa, when they
attempted to export
“without a license”
eighteen aircraft bombs.

SENFACIONAL! JEXCLUSIVG!

5 ..._ LW
“Export” refers to transporting =
the bombs out of the United -
States in planes to be dropped”
on Cuba (E.N.)

“]JF WE HAD MORE
RESOURCES, CUBA
wom!ﬁsunu FROM
ONE END TO THEé
OTH E R- 2 140 Bu.s_t:‘hl Jq_@ar. :




62/09/10

The Cuban vessel “San Pascual” and the British boat
“New Lane,” which were loaded with sugar, were
machine-gunned by a “pirate” ship armed with artillery
off Cayo Frances, in Sancti Spiritus. The Cuban ship was
hit eighteen times, while the British one was hit thirteen
times. On September 18, “Alpha 66,” the U.S. based
terrorist organization, assumed responsibility for the
attack. Antonio Cuesta Valle, Antonio Quesada, Angel
Pouxes, and other terrorists took part in the attack.

63/03/17

The Soviet cargo ship “L’ Gov” was hit by gunfire, while
anchored in the port of Isabela de Sagua, in Las Villas
province. The chimney and one of the ship’s ventilators
were damaged by the “pirate” boat.
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attacked by ;'plruie" boats while '/ | l
ck

|runsporlmg cargo to Cuba, cargo| thet
included toys for Cuban children: T h" ‘atta
took place 75 mlles to'the north of | Mu|5| in

Guantanamo province. 7/ -
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Captain Pedro Iburgurengﬁoniﬁullosi his life
in ihe attack und several crew members were
I‘ .";|n|ured
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63/03/26

The Soviet ship “Baku,” loaded with Cuban sugar, was attacked
by a “pirate” vessel in the port of Caibarién, in the province of
Las Villas. The ship was hit numerous times by shells fired from
a 20-mm cannon and 30-and 50-caliber machine guns. The

explosion of a magnetic mine blew open a four-meter long and
half-meter wide crack.

For the attack on the “Baku”: the terrorists prepared an
explosive charge inside an .empty oil drum, to which they fixed a
magnet. The mprowsed mine was attached by hand to the side

-'of the»shlp, pressmg |i mnio poslilun. At the same, ilme, uther
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Research published in the
United States suggests the
existence of an FBI
memoranda, dated July, 1965,
stating that Jorge Mas Canosa
received $5,000 USD from the
CIA during that period to
finance an operation headed
by the terrorist Luis Posada
Carriles against Soviet and
Cuban ships anchored in the
Mexican port of Veracruz.

Gaeton Fonzi: “Who is Jorge Mas Canosa?”,
in Esquire, January, 1993, p. 120.
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The-British'ship “Lancaster Prince* was the target of'a =

terrorist attack, and the Canadian textile company
Morton Textile Co., based in Montreal, suffered
serious damage to its merchandise in Cuba when
incendiary devices, hidden amongst several packages,
exploded and caused a fire on arrnivalfat'ﬂruevitas port,’
'"Fam?gﬁwx'""%%l?ybm cargo:ship “Rio-Damuji.”
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“No one was able to understand why
ordinary workers were taken,
kidnapped and mistreated. It is
against all the rules and yet they went
ahead and did it. It was happening
and it was happening to us.

“When they were parallel with the
ships they began to circle them
while their crew displayed all kinds
of weapons. They ordered one of
the boats to be lowered from
‘Plataforma 1,” and everyone to get
on, and board ‘Plataforma 4.

“Then another of them climbed
aboard with a pack of dynamite and
a long fuse. There were about ten
red cartridges, taped together.
“When ‘Plataforma 4’ was about a
mile away an explosion was heard
from ‘Plataforma 1.’ Around four in
the afternoon we arrived at a key.
“They said they were from Alpha 66.
Once on land, packs of dynamite
were passed from the boats that
were for the ship. They wanted to
blow it up and sink it quickly. So
they exploded the charges.”






“It was really sad. Another ship could have replaced it
but it wouldn’t have been the same. Those who work at
sea know that ships for us are like family, like a strong
and kind father who has to be looked after. And what
really hurt was that it was destroyed for no good reason,
there was no logic to it, no decency and no respect.

The night was a long one because of mosquitoes, gnats
and then the cold, which we hadn’t expected. Three days
and nights were spent there, until there was no food and
water. Finally, on the morning of the fourth day, the boat
that had left first, appeared. Nazario Sargen was on
board.

“Several days.were spent like this. Then a plane
appeared. It circled three times and then made a 4
parachute drop of concentrated food comprised of bars™
of chocolate and tablets. It also included a message:
‘Don’t move. You have been rescued. International Red
Cross.’ §_S :
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“They traveled to Nassau because the plane could not land at Andros. Afterwards
we took the Cubana flight, changed into clean clothes, met with Fidel and
attended a huge public rally in Havana.

“There was massive uproar in the port when people found out what had
happened. People ran from house to house and everyone poured out into the
street shouting with joy. Those who suffered most, as is always the case, were
the families, the mothers, the women and the younger children. Orosman’s little
daughter, who was only five years old, told me that her heart ached because she
had cried so much.”

Text comprised of statements made by family
members of abducted and murdered fishermen.

- B ?ﬂ;'wff*}ﬁh_ &




On April 6, 1976, a “pirate” boat attacked two Cuban fishing
vessels, sinking them; one of the crew was murdered and
three others were injured. The attack took place around eight
o’clock in the evening, when the “Ferro 123 and “Ferro 119”
ships were between Anguila and Key Sal. Heavy caliber
machine guns and other automatic weapons opened fire on
them.

The crew of “Ferro 123” were abandoned in the middle of the
channel at the mercy of strong winds and heavy currents. Two
days later they managed to reach Key Anguila, where they
were rescued by “Ferro 24”7 and taken to the base in Matanzas.
Pérez Tapanes, Duquesne and Diaz Pérez, who died a few days
later, were injured. The boat responsible for the attack
immediately turned on “Ferro 119” and killed one of its crew
members, 28-year old Bienvenido Mauriz Diaz. The uulvnic.-r of

rescued by a Norwegian merchant ship and taken_i«
where they demanded that the a%ities return the]
immediately to Cuba. % '






. .

On October 10, 1972, some 8 miles to the west of %
Andros Island, in the Bahamas, several “pirate” hoats
armed with artillﬂru attacked the Cuban fishi *' 3
“Aguja” and “Plataforma IV from Caibarién. The
assailants kidnapped the fishermen and llrnamttnll
vessels, sinking them off the coast of Andros Isia
fisherman Amado Jiménez was wounded asa
consequence of the attack, while the eleven f
were set adrift in a tiny boat and rescued b]r
helicopter several days later.

”

“They went to sleep around ten o’clock in the evening and at 11.30, when everyone was in a
deep sleep, two hoats approached in silence and they boarded “Plataforma IV.” The crew
awoke to the sound of Amado’s shouts, crying out that he had been wounded. They had
stabbed him three times in the throat, it was a massive wound, and he had to swallow huge
amounts of blood in order to breathe. We couldn’t work out why they had cut Amado’s throat,
they had nothing to gain from it; they caught him sleeping. That’s when they covered his
mouth and cut his throat, just for the sake of it, to slit him open, to see the blood of a human
being spilled out.

“They arrived in two hoats, one was large, another was an 18-foot inflatable rubber dingy;

both were equipped with artillery. They dynamited the “Aguja” and set fire to her.

It is always the same: to sabotage the hoats, to destroy the fleet, to obstruct fishing, to

frighten people. Then there is Amado, a living and perpetual reminder of what took place

with a scar that runs across the whole of his neck.” Ty vm—
mother of four kidnapped fishermen.






On October 4, 1973, the sume year in which Cuba and the United States signed the
bilateral accord known as the Memorandum of Agreement on the Hijacking of
Aircraft and Seagoing Vessels and other Crimes, the Cuban fishermen of the “Cayo
Largo 17” and “Cayo Largo 34" vessels, which were fishing in international waters,
close to the Bahamas, were attacked by armed “pirate” boats, belonging to the
Miami-based terrorist organization National Front for the Liberation of Cuba (FNLC,
Spanish abbreviation).

As a consequence of the machine-gunning of the defenseless fishing boat, a
fisherman, Roberto Torna Mirabal, died due to bullet wounds. The rest of the crew
had to be rescued while they drifted at sea in rubber dinghies, without food or water.

“On the night of the fifth, it was announced that a ship had rescued the crew, which
had disappeared, and that Roberto was among them. All the news became public
at the same time. | said to myself, the one that has disappeared is Roberto and |
am sure he is dead, because he always said that he couldn’t put up with any of
those people.

“Afterwards, the whole story was told. The “pirate” boat closed in on them and
opened fire. Uberman ran to the bow where the radio was in order to warn the
people back at the base, and Robert followed him. In a question of seconds there
was a hail of bullets and that’s when Roberto was hit; they say that when he fell to
the deck he was already dead. They were in uniform, had their faces covered and
wore Alpha 66 armbands.

“’No one ever confirmed that he was dead. He was always classified as missi

and | waited without saying a word to anyone for him to walk in through the door,
and twenty years went by that way. We will never know the truth about what
happened. And the problem is that we cannot accept a death of a loved one until
we see and touch the body.

“My daughter was 19 years old and was eight months pregnant at the time. The
baby would have been his first grandson; she had to the final month of her
pregnancy in hospital. Her blood pressure went up and the birth was premature. The
baby was born with problems. He has asthma, kidney and psychological problems.

“] was about to lose my entire family, to be left alone in life. | had lost Roberto,
my daughter was seriously ill and my grandchild was in intensive care.

I can hardly bear to think about what happened and in my despair | used to ask
myself, ‘Why me? My God, why me?’ | am still waiting to see what might happen.
Officially he has been pronounced as dead, and | am still hopeful; perhaps it is just
me being stupid, but | can’t accept it.

] have old-age complaints, but nothing serious, and | love life and want to live it to
the full, but what | have never managed to cope with, and will never be able to cope
with, is the anxiety | feel when my grandson goes fishing; | cannot rest until | see him
reach shore with the tide. Because my grandson is a fisherman. What else can he do?”

Testimony of Maria, widow of the murdered fisherman
lﬂhﬁﬂ Toma “ilﬂhd-
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QUEMADOS Y HUNDIDOS DOS

BARCOS PESQUEROS CUBANOS

LA ACCION SE REALIZO AL SUR DE LA ISLA ANDROS. SE IGNORA LA SUERTE DE SUS TREPULANTES

62/1 0;‘13 e
The fishermen Filiberto Suarez Lima and Miguel Cao Medina were serlnu's.l‘gr
injured after their vessel was sunk during a terrorist machine gun attack, - ”
carried out with 30-caliber weapons from a “pirate” gray PT boat clase to ls?
Blanco, 23 km off Cardenas, in the province of Matanzas. The fishermén weﬂe - flads
kidnapped and taken to Miami in the United States. They were retiried tn vistertc o
Cuba 30 days later.

ION FINAL

63/02/13
The fishermen Armando and Ramdn Lopez Ruiz were
injured during an attack on two fishing Sigma vessels
(“Sigma 15” and “Sigma 2”), belonging to the
cooperative in Cardenas, in the province of Matanzas.
The attack was perpetrated by a boat, armed with
artillery that had come from the United States, in the
proximity of Key Roque, in Cardenas. The attackers
seized both vessels and took them to Key Elbow, in the *
Bahamas, and the injured crew members were left to
fend for themselves.



On January 28, 1973, a Cuban fishing vessel was attacked in the Bahamas. -
The Cuban fisherman Ibrahim Ruiz was injured and his boat was seriously
;Ian{_:gedt tA liflaml-based terrorist commando grnup claimed l'ESlIlIIISIIIIlItj e
or the attac : .
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"CUANDO VIMOS AL "AGUJA”
QUEMADO Y SEMIHUNDIDO, DUJIMOS:
ESTO ES OTRA AGRESION
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01RO
i—m—"m decided to turﬁ ack after we were certain that no one
0.2 remained on board the. ‘Aguja.’ At that point we heard weak
,IF__"!*}‘"E- groaning and | said to. my comrades, ‘That is one of Jiménez’s
X dogs.’ And the truth is‘that there they were, in the prow of the
dynamited boat, almost dead from hunger and cold, two small

dogs that we rescued and brought to land.”
Alberto Perdomo Glll‘d“a, owner of the “Cayo Largo™ and “Plataforma 13.”
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Attack 0
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October 12, 1971

During an attackiperpetrated
by a groupjofiterroristsjwho!
manned the%two W

hoats t:nmmg fromYF
against the village of
de Sama, in"Banes! ﬂ]]ﬁma
east of Cuba, Lidio
Rivaflecha'Galanofand
Ramon Arturo Siam
were killed andithe¥sisters'
Nancy and Angela’Pavon
Pavon, 15 and 13°years Qj]i[}
respectively, were injured!
The former lost a foot."AlsoY _
wounded were Carloss= ==
Escalante Gomez and Jesus
lgarza Osorio.



EFELIVADY UR LWUMBANIVU ACTO DE MASAS
EN BOCA DE SAMA, EN REFUDIO A LA ZGRESION
MERCENARIA PERPETRADA A ESE CASERIO

_ - @ HABLO ARMANDO HART, MIEMBRO DEL BURO POLITICO
®EL @ EL SEPELIO DE LOS CAIDOS

S ————— ——
8 Armuarsle Hn Davaiee
ﬂ[-l:i ¢ Ir' ilaia @

“. . .My husband was killed in the cowardly attack against Boca de Sama4, in Holguin; he was called Lidio
Rivaflecha Galano. . . .That was terrible, and | thought | was dying because of the suffering | had to endure.
But | found the energy to bring up four children who never saw their father again. | did it alone, with the

help of the government, but it was hard going. At that time my youngest daughter was two, and she loved
her father; she waited for him every day to come back. She was the one who suffered most hecause she

had learning difficulties during the early years of school. After that she overcame it.”
Juana Vargas Gonzalez

“. . .l lost my son Ramon Siam Portelles. No amount of money can pay for the life of a child; my son was
only 24 years old and he had a six-month-old daughter who he was never able to give his love to....”
Josefa Caridad Portelles Tamayo

“We saw the leaflets, which they had distributed throughout the town, signed by Alpha 66, and a flag that
they had attempted to hoist, but couldn’t. They had been to three homes and taken some of the local
people prisoner. They tried to convince them to take them to the border control post, with the aim of
attacking it and killing the chief and his staff. In spite of threats the neighbors refused.”

Carlos Andrés Escalante Gomez
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“That night | was sleeping when | heard gunfire.
mother began to cry because there were small
children around. A 50-caliber bullet hit her and | was
hit in both feet; one of them was cut to pieces, as if |
had been attacked with a machete. My father said,
‘Let's see if we can get out of here with the children,
otherwise they are going to bleed to death.” We had
to leave the house in the midst of the shooting. My
father tried to make it back into the house to get
sheets to stop the flow of blood, and just as he was
arriving they fired a cannon and the house shook.
They operated on me and amputated my right foot. |
spent nineteen months in hospital. It will soon be

28 years since that day and the prosthesis has begun
to give way inside, and that upsets me. When | was
fifteen years old my dream, when comedies were
]lal'hmll hsehui,m!nhalhletniﬂrhlull
heels one day. | was never able to because of those
pigs that destroyed my life. | have never been happy
because of my foot....”



After carrying out an
attack on the island the
Alpha 66 terrorists
return to Miami, where
they live.

Photo released by Alpha 66 to the Miami press.
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Andrés Nazario Sargen
PRIVATE ADDRESS
2443 NW 29th St., Miami, Fl. 33142
ALPHA-66
1714 W Flager St., Miami, F1. 33135

“From the time of the '
first commando aftack
in 1961 the war was

gﬂ'VﬂﬂlIﬂd. .o -our ThelU'SYgovernment v.nll defend| I'he

d tho L} t
whole purposeisto I H'.u::::,.;.:;"::.e

:t!esiroy everyihmg we (Neutr trality/Act, expresslv-:-prnlhl'rs
can inside Cuba.” participationliniany)

Andrés|Nazario Sargen

Fragment of the article “A Special Report” written by the terrorist Andrés Nazario Sargen, where
responsibility is claimed for an attack lounched from a “pirate” boat aguinst a Cuban joint venture
tourist hotel in May 1995. The article appeared in the Miami press and on the web site of the terrorist

organization Alpha 66 in November 2000.



FOLLOWING THE ROUTE OF
TERRORISM THROUGHOUT THE
WORLD

Long before the U.S. terrorist Timothy McVeigh blew up the
Alfred P. Murrah building in Oklahoma City on April 19,
1995, Cuban origin terrorists based in the United States
were already using, with lethal consequences, ammonium
nitrate, (-4, and other highly dangerous explosives.




On January 8, 1968, a bomb exploded in the warehouses of the Ministry
of Communication in Havana; it was inside mailbag number 15 of
Post Office 96, and was mailed in New York. The explosion injured
several workers and caused substantial damage to the roof of the

building, to the windows of the Postal Administration section and to
the truck carrying the mailbags.




At approximately 11:45 p.m. on Monday, April 3
1h912, a violent explosion almost entirely destroy
the e

12th floor of the Cuba Trade Mission in Montreal,

Canada, causing the death of the official




On February 4, 1974, at around 4:45 in the afternoon, dynamite that
had been placed inside a hook sent to the Cuban embassy in Lima,
Peru, exploded. As a consequence of the explosion the Cuban official
Pilar Ramirez Vega was injured and suffered serious burns.

“1t was a package the size of a book, with a red cover, by Aguilar, sent by Fernandez
Editores S.A. and with a postmark indicating that it had been sent from Chihuahua,
Mexico. The wrapping paper was so tight that | had to use scissors to open it. When |
tried to take it out there was a substantial explosion, which blew up the desk and the
typewriter, and caused wounds to my abdomen, face, thigh and a breast. They told me
it was plastic explosives, such as those used by counterrevolutionaries financed by the
CIA. This package arrived contaminated by microorganisms, and a few days later |
suffered from an infection they could not identify until they carried out analyses on
the rest of the device and my body.”

Testimony by Pilar Ramirez Vega




“In June, 1974, Orlando
Bosch admitted to
having sent letter
bombs to Cuban
embassies in Lima,
Peru, Madrid, Spain,
Ottawa, Canada and
Buenos Aires,
Argentina.”

U.S. Department of Justice
Federal Bureau of Investigation
Miami, Florida

August, 16, 1978

Declassified by 5668/5L0/JC

EL 8/14/91 86-0132




On July 8, 1976, Cuban origin terrorists
placed a bomb in the Cuban embassy in
Madrid, which caused serious material

damages.

On November 7,
1976, Cuban origin
terrorists exploded a
bomb in the office on
the Cubana Aviation
Company, in Madrid.

e

On June 6, 1976, a bomb
exploded at the Cuban
diplomatic repesentation to
the United Nations, in New
York, causing substantial
material damage. Cuban
origin terrorists resident in

- the United States claimed

responsibility for the attack.



NUESTRA PRIMERA ACCION.
EL ATENTADO AL EMBAJADOR
DE CUBA EN LA ARGENTINA

CONSEJO REVOLUCIONARIO ANTICOMUNISTA LATINOAMERICAND
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reunification.




On August 9, 1976, Cuban diplomats Jesus Cejas
Arias and Crescencio Galaiiena Hernandez,
accredited to the Cuban embassy in Buenos Aires,
Argentina, were apprehended in broad daylight
and kidnapped by terrorist elements.

After being tortured and assassinated, the bodies
of both officials disappeared. According to nonofficial
sources, their remains are hidden in the
foundations of one of the buildings that were being
constructed in Buenos Aires at the time.
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On March 25, 1979, Cuban origin terrorists placed
a bomb in the office of the Cuban Program,
directed by Eulalio José Negrin, in New Jersey.

On Sunday, November 25, 1979, in the presence of his
12-year-old son, the Cuban émigré Eulalio José Negrin
Santos was assassinated in Union City, New Jersey. He
had been working for the lifting of the blockade
imposed on the island and for family reunification.

4, .. Arocena knew about and ordered the
operation. . . . He was subsequently informed
about it by PEDRO REMON and ANDRES GARCIA,
that the operation had been carried out and that
REMON had been the one to FIRE the weapon.

“The MAC 10 machine gun was the same weapon
used to kill Félix Garcia later. The MAC 10
machine gun was under the control of PEDRO
REMON and the gun itself was given to him by
Arocena preuiuuslr o

Fader:l Bureau of Imsﬂgnﬂnns

Int 3
ldg_ﬂa WS . ":“ ?!Jilﬁﬂ
| . . . In: Newark, New Jersey

Sodecnmedje Miami, Florida
/62“7 7 Exp: NY 185-1009
(SUB-C)

Federal Bureau of Investigations
/ Date dictated: 9/30/82

Tv Detective Robert Brandt and SA Larry E. Wack/Lew:mmb
<lnﬂn1mnus message sent fo Eululi

José Negrin two months and five
days prior to his murder.

NEW




On September 11, 1980, the Cuban diplomat Félix
Garcia Rodriguez, protocol official of the Cuban
Mission to the United Nations, was assassinated by
several shots fired by Cuban origin terrorists while
he was driving his car on the corner of Queens
Boulevard and 55th Street in Queens, New York.




EMBASSY OF SWITZERLAND
United States of America Interests Section

Ho. 154

The United States of America Interests Section of the
Embasey of Switzerland presents its compliments te the Min-
istry of Foreign Relations of the Republiec of Cuba and has
the honor to transmit to the Ministry the enclosed copy of
a statement by the United States Attorney for the Southern
Dizstrict of New York, made on March 13, 19B4.

The statement announces the 26=-count indictment by a
Federal Grand Jury, which charges BEduardo Arocena with
participating in the first degree murder of Cuban United
Nations Attache Felix Garcia, on September 11, 1980; the
attempted murder of Cuban United Nations Ambassador Raul
Roa on March 25, 1980; and other crimes for which respon-
sibility has been publicly claimed by a group of Cuban
exiles known as "Omega 7".

The United States of America Interests Section of the
Embassy of Switzerland avails itself of this opportunity to
renew to the Ministry of Foreign Relations of the Republic
of Cuba the assurances of its highest and most distinguished

consideration.

ENCLOSURE

Ministry of Foreign Relations

Havana, March 16, 1984




US ATTORNEY FOR SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK
MADE THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT LATE AFTERNOON OF MARCH
13, 1984:

BEGIN TEXT

- A FEDERAL GRAND JURY IN MANHATTAN, IN A TWENTY=-SIX
(25) COUNT SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT WHICH WAS FILED
TODAY, MAS CHARGED EDUARDO AROCENA, AGE 41, OF 10001
SeWo !4TH TERRACE, MIAMI, FLORIDA, WITH PARTICIPATING
IN THE FIRST DEGREE MURDER OF CUBAN UNITED NATIONS
ATTACHE FELIX GARCIA ON SEPTEMBER 11, 15803 THE
ATTEMPTED MURDER OF CUBAN UNITED NATIONS AMBASSADOR
RAUL ROA ON MARCH 25, 198@; THE BOMBING OF THF TRANS
WORLD AIRLINES TERMINAL AT JFK INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
ON MARCH 25, 1979; THE BOMBING OF AVERY FISHER HALL
AT LINCOLN CENTER FOR THE PERFORMING ARTS ON DECEMBER
28-29, 19783 THE BOMBING OF THE SOVIET MISSION TO THE
UNITED NATIONS ON DECEMBER 11, 19793 AND OTHER

CRIMES FOR WHICH RESPONSIBILITY HAS PUBLICLY BEEN
CLAIMED BY AN ANTI~-CASTRO GROUP OF CUBAN EXILES KNOWN
AS "OMEGA 7."

- IN ANNOUNCING THIS INDICTMENT, |[RUDOLPH W,
GI UL IANI,| UNITED STATES ATTORNEY FOR THE SOUTHERN
DISTRICT OF NEW YORK, EXPLAINED THAT TODAY'S TWENTY-SIX




DISTRICT OF NEW YORK, EXPLAINED THAT TODAY'S TWENTY-SIX
(26) COUNT INDICTMENT SUPERSEDES R SEVEN (7) COUNT
INDICTMENT AGAINST AROCENA WHICH WAS PREVIOUSLY
RETURNED BY THE GRAND JURY AND MADE PUBLIC ON DECEMBER
28, 1983, MR. GIULIANI NOTED THAT AROCENA ALSO

REMAINS UNDER INDICTMENT IN THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF
FLORIDA ON CHARGES UNSEALED ON DECEMBER 28, 1983

WHICH ACCUSE AROCENA OF PARTICIPATING IN ELEVEN BOMBIN
OR ATTEMPTED BOMBINGS IN THE MIAMI AREA.

- MICHAEL L. TABAK, THE ASSISTANT UNITED STATES
ATTORNEY WHO PRESENTED THE CASE TO THE GRAND JURY IN
NEW YORK, NOTED THAT TODAY'S SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT
CHARGES AROCENA WITH A SERIEE OF BOMBINGS AND MURDERS
CARRIED OUT FROM 1975 THROUGH 1983, ACCORDING TO

MR. TABAK, THE GRAND JURY, THROUGH TODAY'S SUPERSEDING
INDICTMENT, HAS ACCUSED AROCENA OF CONSPIRACY OR
SUBSTANTIVE FELONY CHARGES RELATING TO:

(1) FEBRUARY 1, 1575 BOMBING OF THE VENEZUELAN
CONSULATE AT 7 EAST 51 STREET IN MANHATTAN (COUNT 8)

(2) SEPTEMBER IS, 1976 BOMBING OF THE SOVIET SHIP
"IVAN SHEPETKOV™ AT PORT ELIZABEH, NEW JERSEY (COUNT 2)

(3) OCTOBER 5, 1978 BOMBING OF THE GERRY COSBY SPORTING
GOODS STORE NEAR MADISON SGQUARE GARDEN IN MANHATTAN
(COUNT 8>

(4) DECEMBER 28-29, 1578
AT LINCOLN CENTER FOR THE
MANHATTAN (COUNTS E, 1@)

(5) DECEMBER 28-29%, 1978
TO THE UNITED NATIONS IN

($) MARCH 25, 1975 BOMBI
TERMINAL AT JFK INTERNATI

(7) JUNE (OR PRIOR), 197
OCHOA, AT AROCENA®S DIREC
ON A COMMERCIAL AIRLINE F
(COUNT 8)

(8) DECEMBER 7, 1978 BOM
THE UNITED NATIONS (COUNT

(%) DECEMBER 11, 197% BC
TO THE UNITED NATIONS IN

(12) JANUARY 13, 158@ BOW
IN MIAMI, FLORIDA (COUNT

¢11) JANUARY 13, 1s8¢ BO®R
TICKET OFFICES IN MANHATI
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BOMBING OF AVERY FISHER HALL
PERFORMING ARTS IN

BOMBING OF THE CUBAN MISSION
MANHATTAN (COUNTS E~-1@)

NG OF THE TRANS WORLD AIRLINES
ONAL AIRPORT (COUNTS 8, 11-12)

S TRANSPORTATION BY EDUARDO
TION, OF EXPLOSIVE MATERIALS

LIGHT FROM FLORIDA TO NEW JERSEY

BING OF THE CUBAN MISSION TO
s 8, 13-1%)

MBING OF THE SOVIET MISSION
MANHATTAN (COUNTS 8, 16-18)

BING OF PADRON TOBACCC COMPA
8)

BING OF AEROFLOT AIRLINES
‘AN CCOUNTS B, 19-20)

(11) JANUARY 13, 198@ BOMBING OF AEROFLOT AIRLINES
TICKET OFFICES IN MANHATTAN (COUNTS B, 19-20)

(12) MARCH 25, 198¢ ATTEMPTED MURDER, 5Y BOMBING, OF
CUBAN UNITED NATIONS AMBASSADOR RAUL ROA IN
MANHATTAN (COUNTS 1-5)

(13) SEPTEMBER 11, 1989 MURDER OF CUBAN UNITED NATIONS
ATTACHE FELIX CARCIA (COUNTS 6-T)

(14) SEPTEMBER 11, 1981 BOMBING OF THE MEXICAN
CONSULATE IN MIAMI, FLORIDA (COUNT 21)

(15) SEPTEMBER 11, 1981 ATTEMPTED ARSON OF THE CFFICES
OF REPLICA MAGAZ INE IN MIAMI, FLORIDA (COUNT 21}

¢18) SEPTEMBER 12, 1981 EOMBING OF THME MEXICAN CONSULATE
IN MANHATTAN (COUNTS 21-24)

¢17) 1981=-1982 CONSPIRACY TO KIDNAP AND MURDER LUIS
FUENTES PURSUANT TO AN ORAL CONTRACT WITH AN INDIVIDUAL
WHO AGREED TO GIVE MONEY TO AROCENA AND "OMEGH 7" IN
RETURN FOR THE KIDNAPPING AND MURDER OF FUEMTES

COUNT 21) (NOTE: FUENTES WAS NOT IN FACT KILLED)

(18) 1581-1582 CONSPIRACY TO EXTCRT AND TO COMMIT ARSOMN
OF THE AUTOMOBILE OF HUGO ROMERO, IN RETURN FOR MONEY
FROM A DRUG DEALER (COUNT 21)



“The plot to assassinate Félix Garcia, the Cuban attaché assigned
to the Cuban Mission to the United Nations, involved a 50-day

surveillance of the Cuban Mission to the United Nations, New York
City, by AROCENA and members of PEDRO REMON 'S cell.

“The original plan was to assassinate four individuals from the
Cuban Mission to the United Nations. AROCENA, REMON, ANDRES
GARCIA, AND EDUARDO LOSADA FERNANDEZ were all involved in the

surveillance and the assassination.

“Pedro Remon made the credit call to the New York news media
¢laiming responsibility for the murder in the name of Omega 7.”

Federal Bureau of Investigations

naz-1nm

Date of ranscription: 10/6/82

Interview 9/25,/82

(19) 1981-1982 CONSPIRACY TO EXTORT OSCAR DARIG, IN N
RETURN FOR MONEY FROM A DRUG DEALER (COUNT 21) b Nowerk, Row Jorsey
Miami, Flarida

(2@) 1981-1982 CONSPIRACY T7 MURDER RAYMOND VANYO S MRS 08
PURSUANT TO AN ORAL CONTRACT WITH AN INDIVIDUAL WHO (SNE-E)
AGREED TO GIVE MONEY TO AROCENA AND "OMEGA 7" IN RETURN SYEEAED Bubert S gt st
FOR THAT MURDER (COUNT 21) (NOTE: VANYD WAS NOT IN FACT SA Larry E. Wodk/Low:mmb
KILLED) Date dictated 9/30/82

(21) 19281-1982 SUPPLY ILLEGAL AND UNREGISTERED WEAPONS
AND SILENCERS TO DRUG DEALERS (COUNT 21)

(22) SEPTEMBER 1, 1982 (TO THE PRESENT) OBSTRUCTION
OF JUSTICE (COUNT £28)

(23) SEPTEMBER 2, 1982 PERJURY BY AROCENA SEFORE THE
GRAND JURY IN MANHATTAN INVESTIGATING “OMEGA 7"
CRIMES (COUNT 25)

(24) SEPTEMEER 2, |5E2 BOMEBINGS IN MIAMI (COUNT 28) ?ff?%ﬁéif
N/ C QST

(25) JANUARY 11-12, 1983 BOMBIRGS IN MIAMI (COUNT 26)

- MR. TABAK STATED THAT AROCENA'S TRIAL BEEFORE
JUDGE ROBERT J. WARD AND A JURY IS CURRENTLY SCHEDULED
TC0 BEGIN ON APRIL 23, 1984. AROCENA 15 BEING HELD

AT THE FEDERAL CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTION IN OTISVILLE,
NEW YORK IN LIEU OF $75@,0@8@ BAIL.

o MR GIULIANI PRAISED THE FEDERAL BUREAU OF
INVESTIGATION AND THE NEW YORK CITY AND MIAMI POLICE
DEPARTMENTS FOR THEIR EXCEPTIONAL EFFORTS ON THIS CASE,
ME. GIULIANI STATE # NVESTIGATIONS INTO
MURDERS, BOMBINGS, AND OTHER CRIMES FOR WHICH
R NEIB PUB YB MED BY "OME "
ARE BEING VIGORCUSLY PURSUED BOTH BY HIS OFFICE AND

BY THE OFFICE OF STANLEY MARCUS, UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
FOR THE SOURTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORID?.

END TEXT.
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On April 22, 1976, Cuban
diplomats Adriana Corcho
Calleja and Efrén Monteagudo
Rodriguez were blown to
pieces in a bomb explosion in
Lishon. Adriana had discovered
the bomb and had gone to warn
her colleagues of the danger
they were in, but the explosion
took them by surprise.

“The suffering has been terrible, my sister was a
12-year-old girl and was left without a mother at
that age. There were always parents meetings at
the school with my father. My mother was never
able to go again, | always wanted her to go, | was
close to her; she couldn’t attend my sixth grade,
secondary school or high school graduvations, or the
birth of my daughter, major events in the life of a
man.”

Fragment of the testimony by Jorge Palenzuela Corcho



“1 have always thought that | could have been different
to the way | am, maybe happier, less responsible. And
that doesn’t mean that | don’t like being responsible. My
mother taught me, for the few years we were together, to
be this way. ...

“That bomb. . .it could have also put an end to the life of
my father and two brothers, who used to arrive home
from school at that time.

“1t was Thursday, at around three or four in the
afternoon. It had rained and that was why we were
toming back from the countryside so early. | don't
remember why | had cried so much that day. During those
years | used to ¢ry a lot, just like now when | remember
everything that happened; | torture myself as if | were
living it again, as if | were watching a horror movie that |
can’t walk away from.

“A teacher told me that some friends had come looking
for me, that | should collect my things and go. ...

“When | was almost home my grandparents told me that
there had been an attack against the embassy in Portugal
and that my mother had died there. | couldn’t talk. To put
it simply, 1 didn’t believe them.

“My father alone was able to give me the answer that |
didn’t want to hear. And | had to listen to the terrible
truth coming from him: that | was never again going to
see the person who had given me life and who | most
needed in the world.

“For many years | lived with the dream that my mother
was still in Portugal. | couldn’t accept that she was dead.

“What strikes me most is not so much the person who did
the deed, what | think about most and what causes most
hurt is the barbarity of the deed: that there are human
beings in the world capable of killing innocent people in
order to overthrow a government. We, my siblings and I,
were not able to share the most important events in our
lives with our mother.

“] know that my case is not unique. | met someone who
had lost a loved one when the :Iune was blown up over
Barbados. This is another crime that was committed the
same year my mother was murdered. A huge vacuum in
their lives unites that person’s family, like mine.
Sometimes words cannot convey the pain that we always
carry inside ovrselves. I, and my siblings, have lived
longer than my mother lived and we still can't cope with
everything | have just spoken about.”

Fragments of the testimony by Betina Palenzuela Corcho,
Havana, July, 2002







On July 23, 1976, in Mérida, Yucatan,
Artai ndn Diaz Diaz, a Cuban fishing
techn l:uln was murdered by two
Cuban origin terrorists who then
managed to escape.

That’s where Artaignan lay, in the
middle of a pool of blood ﬂllll' flowed
from his neck, abdomen and lumbar
region. His widow and three
orphaned children were waiting for
him to return at his home in Havana,
which he had left two days bhefore.

The Mexican authorities detained two
renowned terrorists who admitted to
being guilty. One of them, Gaspar
Eugenio Jiménez Escobedo, managed
to escape from prison in March, 1977.
On November 17, 2000, he was
detained in Panama while involved in
the preparations for an attack
against Cuban president Fidel Castro
Ruz, in the auditorium of the
university in Panama City.

Deienide en la capital otro inedado en
el fallido secoestro al comsl de Caba
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They only had to see them before they
would shout with joy, “Papa has arrived,
Papa”. Their father was not among the
grnup of comrades returning that

elonged to the Caribbean Shrimp Fleet.
The father of Lissette, Esperanza and
Enrique had been murdered in Mérida by
a group of Cuban origin terrorists.

“Throughout these 24 years, my mother
and my siblings have been waiting for the
moment when justice would be done...
One of those who shot my father, Eugenio
Jiménez Escobedo, is in jail in Panama,
together with Posada Carriles. No trial,
however fair it might be, will bring my
father back to life; but it would put an
end to so many years of powerlessness,
and would prevent macabre individuals,
such as these, to continue leaving pain,
suffering, and bloodshed in their wake...
| am not asking for blood; | don't demand
vengeance, | only ask for the support of
honest people in the world, for solidarity,
in this struggle against impunity and for
justice.”

Fragment of the testimony of Arlainan s davghter
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“Given the loss of support and financing for their activities,
these groups have turned to attempted murders and
extortion in an effort to obtain additional backing and
funds for their cause. Some Cuban groups are apparently
involved in terrorist attacks against the Cuban government,
but in reality they are nothing other than delinquents who
feed off the Cuban population and use funds raised for their
own benefit.”

Declaration by Thomas Lyons, Lieutenant in the Security Office in Dade County, Florida,
testifying in a hearing of the Judicial Committee of the U.S. Senate, 94th Congress:
“Terrorist Activity. Terrorism in the Miami Area,” page 608.

Bosch’s success has a simple explanation; it is the old Chicago gangster
style. If you don’t pay up, then ge puts a bomb in your office, it is that
simple. Bosch is an extortionist, not a patriot. In Miami everything has
been reduced to criminal activity.

Jay Mallin, Time correspondent during the 1970s.
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On April 28, 1979, two 45-calibre bullets were fired by
terrorists of Cuban origin from a moving vehicle. These bullets
perforated the skull and spine of young Carlos Muiiz Varela.

A Miami-based terrorist group of Cuban origin claimed
responsibility for the murder. “This is the first of the 75 traitors,”
said the communiqué released in the city by the terrorist
group. The number of 75 referred to a committee of Cuban-
Americans residing in Miami, New York and other U.S. cities
who were working for family reunification and dialogue.

Organiza viajes a Cuba iz

| ﬁ%ﬁimtean terroris”t}s cubanost %= H
-|.'W.‘ *.*" .- __.,J_). . % 1 : |

Carlos Muniz Varela, during the first visit
(September 1976) he made to Cuba together with a
large group of young Cuban-Americans who
supported the liHing of the blockade, family
reunification and the normalization of relationships
between the two countries.




“When we told the child that his father had
died, the initial reaction was to keep on
staring straight ahead. He was so
dumbstruck that both Damary and 1 were
frightened because, as Damary explained to
me, there is a period during which, if the
child does not recover quickly, then
psychological problems could arise; in other
words, if the child doesn’t react then he could
be emotionally affected.

"When we saw that he was in a trance, that
he wasn’t speaking, that he had a faraway
look in his eyes, wide open, Damary spoke to
him, ‘Listen, Carlitos, say something because
your father is dead, but you are not going to
be alone, you are with your mother.” Then he
hugged me and began to cry. That was a
terrible time for the child, he cried on me. He
wanted to see him.”

Fragments of the testimony by
Pilar Pérez Negrén,
widow of Carlos Muniz Varela.

FEERTAAICE

REm VO AN

WEW JERSEY
WiEmi

INIERG S

l'i- EREELES
WERELUELD
$am Jupr PR

SEMANARIO G'{Aﬂﬂﬂ]

ATh

'{._J

‘A 2

LLLUL R LS L

ol T ..Jqlr,-u.-..._-._ =

e ot MR

S T . P L S < ‘3.,.

NO PERMITIREMOS QUE EL

DIALOGO
AVANCE

AFIRMA "“ZETA"

JEFE MILITAR

COMANDO

CMEGA 7

2

Dmumn Umcu
Idioma Con el Que
Vamos a Dialogar ||

o T N T T




Terrorism “throughout the world”
included U.S. territory.

Attacks of Cuban-American Terrorists:

February 4, 1975: Several bombs are plnted in restauvrants in
Elizabeth, Hew Jersey.

Augustl, 1975: A hnmb |s I ed i in ihe Pun-Ameruun Ilmnn premuses
in’ Wushmgtnna
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ﬁprll 6, 1976+ Terrorists' of Cuban loriginiplacela’ I:nml: ||1 ihe pre:mses of the "
— _unwersui_, m"Mluml, Florida™ - £ :
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Apl:rll 5 I???’.'I'errorlsis of (uhun nrlgln dim respunslhlllh' lur a buml: plu:ed <
Egn ihe"Eusiern ‘Airlines CompanyliniMiami, Hnl‘ldl:l,,'ﬂlllth fcaused considerable

muierlul duwé"- X #i% lg:‘ R e ™3 AT - .5 <
F "an 13, 1977: Termrlsis 0 3 -

}ubun origin tlnlm I'ESIJIDIISIbIlIh' fora humb plmed N
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>4 Muv 25 1977: An explosion takes placelinithelotfices of Mutkey Iniernuhunul
7 “Rirlines Company, in Florida, whichicaused :unﬂderuhle \gumnge ‘As VSR
.. ~d'consequence o 'this terrorist uﬂ,ﬂhe ‘company declded fo cancel pluns to send
Y fllghis to (uhu el ISR A':'; |
(e A
JJune 8, 197?. Terrorists of tul:un,orlgl'n threaten ‘the I.LS. muse line company
¢« % Carras Lines, with placin I:uml:s on'their shnps. For this reason the firm decides
‘to cancel its business with Cuba.! “*t* lr;,_‘. t:j 1.’{ Rl Yol 4 | Nl
f.r .i 'l_"l "l"l ‘.E'}{,:\‘.‘ s

p.
Der.eml:er 20, 1977: An explnslunjnuurs'lmlu Miami warehouse from where
packages to Cuba were dispatchedfSubstantial material damage is reported.

February 19, 1978: Terrorists of Cuban origin place a bomb in a pipeline in the
state of Alaska, causing considerable damage.

October 22, 1978: Terrorists of Cuban origin place a bomb in the La Prensa en
New York newspaper, due to research on activities of terrorist organizations
carried out lw some of 'iis r'e'pnrlers.

November 18,1978: Threats' are’ mude to plme bombs on board TWA flights
;huund fnr (ubu

iniNew

March % 979: I:gmh axplndes inside sulh: ase;imomentsibeforelitiwas
:urrledur aSTWAYlightRinjuri iuur workerslinyohniF. Hennedy
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79: Terrorists'of Cuban'origin'threat to'place'dynamitelon'board
hn'F.\Kennedy,|New'York;land |Newark}iNewJersey,lairports-

viacionlcancelled lifsicharteriflightsibetweenibothifiesiand |Havana®
14,11979: Terroristslof Cuban'origin'threat'to'placela’bomblin‘thelairline
Butler'Aviation;lin‘thelUnited States;iwhich'hadplansitotsend flightsito

Cubanforiginiplacelajbomb i f
-sih elcargo rt‘lll%lll: l:rusri“tiu,

an’
amiy}

September 3 i TerroristsiofCuban placefa’bomb? ezvelan
consulate in'Miamilasipartjof push fnihe. relhe

terrorist Orlando'Bosch¥Avila®




July 9, 1976: A bomb explodes inside

a suitcase, which will be on board the
Cubana de Aviacion aircraft, in Kingston,
Jamaica, scheduled to have left forty
{ﬂi"‘inii'i_e's._p'r'g'viously for Havana.

hscheduled for detonation, the
would have been flying over the
seajclosejtoiMontego Bay, off the north
usii,lumqltuThe ﬂl ht had on
board the'crew and 29 passengers of
Cuban, Jamaican, Dominican, British,
Argentine and U.S. origin.




The following day, the terrorist group
CORU claimed responsibility for the
attack in a communiqué released to
different media in Miami.
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“The CIA taught us everything, how to use
explosives, to kill, to make bombs . . . they
trained us in acts of sabotage.”

Luis Posada Carriles

Interview to The New York Times,
July 12, 1998.




On October 6, 1976, a Cubana
de Aviacion DC-8 arrived at
Seawell international airport
in Barbados, as flight CU-455.
It was 11:21 a.m. Fifty-four
minutes later it departed for
Jamaica. At 12:23 an
explosion shook the aircraft,
which caught fire and after
five dramatic minutes fell to
the sea. There were no
survivors. Seventy-three
people died (57 Cubans, 11
Guyaneses and 5 North
Koreans).

The Cuban youthues
team, whlch hadjust won the
Central America
Championship in Caracas,
were among the dead.
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« - « iSeawell! iSeawell! . . . (U-455...!

«++ CU-455 . . . Seawell.

+ « « We have had an explosion and we are ¢
a fire on board!

« « « Close the door! Close the door!
« « « There is an intense fire on board!
. « « That's worse! Head toward the water!

. . Cubana, this is Cariwest 650. How can
« « « Cubana, this is Cariwest 650. How can
« « « Cubana, this is Cariwest 650. How can
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| ”When Cuban pﬂiﬂs, dlplomuls or members of lhew- ,
families die, I am not sorry; the death of ihese |
people always mukes me happy.”

Guillermo Novo Sampoll, during an inferview pumd by mistake to the Soviet publication Literaturnaya Gazeta.
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CUARTEL GENERAL DE POLICIA
CALLE SAN VICENTE, PUERTO
ESPANA, TRINIDAD

Miercoles, 26 de Octubre de 1.976

DENNIS ELLIOTT RAMDWAR, declara:

Yo soy un Comisionado Adjunto del Servicio de Trinidad y Tobado, El imues; 7 de oc-

tubre 1.976, dos (2) hombres quienes dijeron llomarse JOSE VASQUEZ GARCIA y FRE--

+ | DDYLUGO fueron trafdos ol Cuartel General de Policia por el Comisionado Asistente -

| BURRCUGHS y un grupo de Oficiales de Policia. El Comisionado Asistente BURROQUGHS
se reportd o mi. Como consecuencia de esto el sefior BURROUGHS me dijo, a las 08:00
p.m. del dia 8 de octuvre, 1.976 yo entrevisté un hombre que dijo “\'.I"III:IHE JOSE VAS-
QUEZ GARCIA en la presencia del Superintendente Superior GORDOMN WATERMAN , -

Jefe del Departamento de Investigacién Criminal: N° 6823 Cabo OSCAR KING del De-

=
5 8 partamento Especial y Miss JOY KELSHALL quienes actuaron como entérpretes.
e T
S . « « | completely/trus
Plicara lo que sabia sobre of asunto y le exigl una declaracion I?JEC da
Me dié la declaracisn que va anexa : s
- Y Que esta marcada D ,R,1, parg su identificg -
LY

cion, Dicha declaracién esta fechada el 9 de Octubre de 1974 En esta declarge iBn
. i :

JOSE VASQUEZ GARCIA me dijo que su nombre exacto era (correcto) HERNA N Ri-
CARDO LOZANO, Céadula N® 3821507

¢ que tode el resto en gy Pasaporte era falso,
salve su fotografia,

El sabado 9 de Octubre de 1976 entrevisté a FREDDY LUGO, Me identifiqué y le

informé que estaba investigando el accidente del

vuelo CU-455 Cubana que ocurrid

Freddy Lugo



Hernan Ricardo Lozano
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Police General Headquarters
Saint Vincent Street,
Port Spain, Trinidad.

Wednesday, October 26, 1976

DENNIS ELLIOTT RAMDWAR declares:

“] am the Adjutant Commissioner of the Trinidad
and Tobago Service. On Thursday, October 7,
1976, two (2) men who said they were called
JOSE VASQUEZ GARCIA and FREDDY LUGO were
brought to the General Headquarters of the Police
by Assistant Commissioner BURROUGHS and

a group of police officers.

Assistant Commissioner BURROUGHS reported to
me. As a consequence of what Mr. BURROUGHS
said to me, at 8:00 r.m. on October 8, 1976,

|l interviewed a man called JOSE VASQUEZ
GARCIA in the presence of Chief Superintendent
GORDON WATERMAN, Head of the Criminal
Investigation Department; Sergeant No. 6823
OSCAR KING of the Special Department and Miss
JOY KELSHALL, who served as interpreters.

- - e " s ‘S ()
Hernan Ricardo. EMENTS oo
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‘¥ os Caminos del Guerrero,” page 210. W g Lueo

“ ..that | wanted him to explain to me what he
knew about the matters and | demanded

a statement. | was given a statement which is
attached and marked D.R.l. for identification
purposes. The said statement is dated October 9,
1976. In this statement JOSE VASQUEZ GARCIA
told me his (correct) name was HERNAN
RICARDO LOZANO, ID No. 3821507, and that the
rest of his passport was fake, except for the
photograph.

“On Saturday, October 9, 1976, | interviewed
FREDDY LUGO. | identified myself and informed
him that | was investigating the CU-455 Cubana
flight accident which took place. ...
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“Twenty minutes into the flight HERNAN got up
and went to the bathroom where he spent about
four minutes. Then | saw that the flight attendant
hurried past me and knocked on the door of the
cockpit and then the pilot or copilot, | don’t know
which, came out and she said something to him,
and then both went to the back of the plane. The
pilot knocked on the door three times and on
returning toward the seat HERNAN pushed by me
in a very nervous fashion, stepping on my toes, and
then the pilot went past. HERNAN said he had got
locked into the bathroom and that the pilot had to
open the door. | asked him how that had happened,
that the door was easy to open, and he said he
didn’t know how because he had become nervous
and | pointed out that he should have known how
easy it was since they had been able to open it
from the outside. He was very nervous for the rest
of the flight and read a newspaper, hiding his face
with its pages, and | started a conversation with a
sportsperson who was on the plane....”

What happened after they got off the said flight in
Barbados?

“When the plane landed, they had not yet Apenm'.l
the door to let passengers off when HERNAN got
up and was the first to leave,

passing by me....” gy ‘B? i
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“At 3:15 r.m. on Saturday, October 16, 1976,
FREDDY LUGO requested to see me in the presence
of Chief Superintendent GORDON WATERMAN,
Sergeant No. 5133 ANTHONY JACK, Sergeant No.
6823 OSCAR KING and Miss JOY KELSHALL.

| attended LUGO in my office. He told me he had
been rethinking the matter and wanted to tell me
the truth about the Cuban flight accident. | took
the appropriate measures in accordance with the
judicial requirements in Trinidad and Tobago and
he immediately made a statement which was put in
written format. The said statement is attached,
marked with D.R. 9. This statement is dated
October 16, 1976. In this aforementioned statement
LUGO said he was convinced that HERNAN
RICARDO was responsible for placing the bomb on
the plane. He said that RICARDO had told him on
the flight from Caracas to Trinidad that he
(RICARDO) was going to blow up a Cubana flight. In
the same statement he said that while they were in
a Holiday Inn taxi at Piarco Trinidad Airport,
RICARDO repeated, absolutely emphatically, that
he was going to blow up a Cubana plane. ...




Luis Posada Carriles
(Luis or Gustavo)

Orlando Bosch Avila
(Orlando or Paniagua)

AREA OF THE FIRST EXPLOSION

ZONA DE LA PRIMERA

“On Sunday, October 17, 1976, at around 6:30 r.m.
RICARDO asked to see me. This time | was
accompanied by Chief Superintendent
WATERMAN, Inspector HEADLEY, Sergeant JACK,
Sergeant KING and Miss JOY KELSHALL. He said
he wanted to speak to me confidentially and
requested that Chief Superintendent WATERMAN,
Inspector HEADLEY, JACK and KING leave the
office. They left the office. Then he said:

(a) That he....

(e) That the name ‘El Céondor’ was a front for

a group named CORU, which is an abbreviation
for the Commando of United Revolutionary
Organizations.

(f) That the head of CORU is ORLANDO BOSCH,
also known as Sefior ORLANDO and occasionally
as Senor PANIAGUA.

(g) That LUIS POSADA CARRILES is the head of

a company known as Commercial and Industrial
Investigations C.A.

(h) That LUIS POSADA is the owner and boss of
the said entity.

(i) And that LUIS POSADA. ...
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“He continued on and told me that if | used my
police mentality it would become clear who was
responsible for the bomb on the plane. | told him
that | believed | knew who committed the crime.
He hesitated for a few moments and then,
addressing me, said, repeating it was in the
strictest confidentiality, that Lugo had placed the
bomb on board the plane. He asked for a sheet of
paper and in his own handwriting described the
steps that had to be followed before the bomb was
placed on the plane and how a plastic bomb is
detonated. This document is marked D.R. 12. On
the reverse side of the document he drew the plan
of the bomb and the detonator and described. . ..

ZONA DE LA SEGUNDA
EXPLOSION , a1,

AREA OF THE SECOND EXPLOSION



1 l‘.‘-.‘:“‘“‘ a AN \\
¥ m ““

“. .. as a type of pencil with chemical products that
could be programmed for times of 8 minutes,

45 minutes, 1 hour, 2 hours, 3 hours, 8 hours

and 24 hours. He said that the pencil-style detonators
came in several colors, according to the time the
bomb had been programmed to explode. He took a
pencil from my desk and said that it was similar to
one of the detonators he had just described. He told
me that a certain chemical product is injected into a
tube of Colgate toothpaste after the real paste had
been removed. This pencil is in my possession. He
continued by saying that he knew everything in
relation to the organization CORU. He asked for
another sheet of paper and on it he drew the
structure of the organization. This document is
marked D.R. 13. He told me that there. ..
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“Afterwards he revealed some things about CIA
operations. He continued giving a detailed
account of how the bomb had been placed on
September 1, 1976, at 10.00 a.m. in the office of
the Guyana Consulate in Port Spain by OLEG
GUITON RODRIGUEZ DE LA SIERRA TRATAIKOEF
and another member of the organization. He went
on to say that a pound of C4 had been used on
this job. . . . Then he said that ORLANDO BOSCH is
the boss or head of CORU, also known as Sefior
ORLANDO or ORLANDO PANIAGUA, and that LUIS
POSADA is the boss (big shot) in ICI (Commercial
and Industrial Investigations). LOZANO also
stipulated that he had three passports in his
possession; one official U.S. passport, a fake
Venezuelan passport, and an authentic
Venezuelan passport. -‘T.

“On October 25, 1976, | went to see HERNAN
RICARDO LOZANO at his request. During the
conversation he told me that they had been paid
$25,000 USD for the job. He had received $16,000
USD and LUGO had been given $8000 USD. The
other $1000 had been spent on miscellaneous
expenses.
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memmmm Trayectoria recorridn por el avidn.

--f-——THI torim que debin continuar hasia
nd de La Habana.

'i+ l.u,gar sproximoedo donde oeurrid el sindestro.

Examination of the remains
recovered is testimony of
the terrorist act and the
horror these people
experienced on board.

testéndome de que se hepfa queda
o \
le dije gue por qué le hebfe suc

era Pécil da sbrirse, ya dug el}

P dentri que sa la habfan
he sabotage was

“ .. he received a call from Caracas and
answered saying, ‘So LUIS what's up, here | am,
man. | have got a problem, | don’t know what to
do, but the vermin went down and it seems that
there are a lot of survivors and a total of seven
stiffs (meaning deaths). Let the Boss PANIAGUA
what’s going on’. . . .” T
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How many calls did HERNAN RICARDO make
from Barbados, who did he make them to and
what did he say during the calls?
“He made several calls, one of them was to his
girlfriend, he said he was going to call LUIS or

GUSTAVO and that the BUus with the
dogs had gone down. .. .”

Taken from official statements given by
Hernan Ricardo Lozano and Freddy Lugo as
recorded by the judicial files.
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her ch as if it

Luis Posada Carriles response to a question put to him
by a journalist on the subject of the sobotage to the
plane over Barbados. The Miami Herald,

Llamedas, &n une

ys el sutobds con los perros se hesbfe caido, prro primeramen

te en el Hotel Holiday Inc de Barbadous, &1 le hsbfa hecho -

una llemacde a l» novia que llemareaelUTS o a GUSTAVN y le di-

jera que v& habfe saelido le cerne v oue nos oncontrfbhamos co

manifastf que llamere e LUIS o & GUSTAVD y nue le cNoyemberchs1991.

blow. so far ugumsi Castro.” had bean s kuifo: The

fire and lethal smoke
did the rest. Of the
fifteen that
surfaced, girl
from ﬂuyall-l was the
only one that could
be identified without
the help of forensic

techniques. It was as
if she were the
accusing finger.



“My son was the greatest thing; | had a daughter of 7 years old, and a
son of 11; and he was 20. He was my support and they took him away,

he kept me going. Martha Hernandez Hernandez

“They killed my couple for 20 years, my boyfriend for 20 years
and the father of my children. No one can pay me for this; no one

Iraida Malberti

“My father was not asoldier on active duty; he was an
ordinary work stel! yeent human being. That's why
| can say, preciSely tagethEr with all the people who are here,
that we are very conscious of what happenedito the U.S. peuple
on September 11. The difference is that we ha%%u@gred ita
family members since 25 years ago.” Carlos Chil
“TheyMred my father on __'.;33-'-':.:- ados flight; my ~
he wa favorite son;

grandmother died with the pain ef itas¥
he was my counselor, the most importan perso n my life.”

Josefina lleana Alfonso

“, . . THE DEATH OF THESE PEOPLE ALWAYS MAKES ME HAPPY.”

Guillermo Novo Sampol, Miami, December 19, 1976.



Two days before the end of 1976, the Soviet publication Literaturnaya Gozeta published an interview the terrorist of Cuban origin
Guillermo Novo Sampol had given by mistake to two journalists of its staff.

The diologue covered an entire page of the publication under the heading “Alpha, Omega and others.” It gave an account of the
terrorist acfivities of these groups throughout the United States and in different regions of Latin America and the Caribbean.

Some paragrophs are worth reproducing for the remarkable nature of their content:

“On 43rd Street, where ‘Alpha-66" ond ‘Abdala’— whose terrorist activities are well known in the United States and other countries
of the Americas— are based, they were notified that it was absolutely forbidden to give Novo's address. Nevertheless, they almost
cerfainly find him ot the Ford automobile store. Of course, the journalists uppenref there os Guillermo's friends. When they asked
for Novo, the sales assistant turned around and shouted, ‘Bill, they are looking for you.’ Bill came out to meet them, and thanks to
the photo given to Andronov in the Solidarity with Chile Coordination Center, they immediately recognized Guillermo Novo.

“'Are you called Bill and not Guillermo?” they asked him while showing him a press card.

“Translated into English Guillermo is William or simply Bill," he replied with a smile, ‘that's why | use your style now.”

He ossumed | was American, | thought, | should let him talk, os he doesn't realize.

“"Have you had problems with the U.S. outhorities?

“None.’

“That's strange, taking into account the official investigation info the Letelier case in Washington.’

“’And so whot?," he loughed openly. ‘They can investigate all they want; they sent me two summonses to appear before the
Congress Commission and moke o statement, but that doesn’t worry me. They make a bit of a fuss and then they'll shut up. It has
hugpened before."

"Why did you fire a bazooka against the UN?Y

“Yes, and | am sorry that we couldn't eliminate Che Guevara then.’

“'But during the explosions people of different political ideos perish, the elderly, children and women. How can you justify that?

“Victims are inevitable. When Cuban pilots, diplomats or members of their families die, | am not sorry, the death of these
people always makes me happy...."



“1 close my eyes and | remember it as if it were today. | knew my
father was arriving that day. The one that came was Ortiz; he got
out of the car and I saw him erying, he kissed me and said, ‘Take
good care of your mother, she has a bad heart. . . .” Then my mother
broke the news fo me, and | began to scream. Afterwards there was
the funeral; | knew that he wasn't in any of the eight coffins.
Everyone filed past, wherever I be, | couldn’t hear the last post. So,
as can be seen in this photo there were my mother and the three
children. A few weeks later | started saying to my mother that he
was going fo return, that he was in an isle, and when | hear
someone sounding a car horn, just in the same way that he used to
do, | would run out and shout, ‘Papd is coming!"”

Odalys Pérez, davghter of the pilot
Wilfredo Pérez.

4, . . Magaly was 33 years old when she died, and was the mother
of two children of 12 and 2 years of age (Robertico and Abel
Santiago), who left orphaned, it was a horrendous crime. . .."”

William Grave de Peralta, father of Magaly Grave de Peralta,
flight attendant.

4, . . That horrendous crime in which my sister and 72 other human
beings were murdered has been like a dagger embedded in my
chest for 25 years. It was not a crime aimed at our people, I say
this in the depth of my pain, but against humanity, and with all my
strength I call for justice to be done. ...”

Nilda Esther Grave de Peralta, sister of Magaly, one of the flight
attendants murdered in the sabotaged plane.




“It was an odyssey full of terrible times. The “1 was the last one to find out. My mother
person who suffered most was Ninoska, the eldest ~ Was in the IIITIHH"E' she worked

in
davghter who was 13 years old at the time. She Em:':"lm i xmm*mm

made an album of all the photos she had of her they fell in love. My brother also found out
father and everything that appeared in the press.  and, in spite of the fact that he was younger
She is the one who spends the most time looking E"_':ﬁh'i':::n: :‘:ﬁle::s Ii:'tlﬁed;l:f'
at the photos.” down on our parent’s bed and | said, ‘Come
Nancy Cejas, widow of crewmember over here, if mom and dad arrive home they
Ramén J. Ferrandiz Lefebre. are going to wake you up.’ But he didn’t pay
any attention to me. He Wed there waiting
' for mother. The house filled up with
neighbors and | kept on sleen;m | wake vp
fo go to school, saw the house full of
people. ‘What happened?’ ‘Come here, | have
to talk to you,” my mother said and she took
me info the bedroom. The only thing that was
left of my father was the cap of his uniform.
My lifetime changed. Losing my father has
become a lifetime frauma; | couldn’t finish
school, | had psychiatric help. When he lefi,
| asked him what | had always asked him,
"When are you coming hack?’ ‘Tomorrow

afternoon,’” he replied. And he never
returned.

Ninoska Ferrandiz Cejas
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“"We had a six-month-old baby boy, we were
already planning to celebrate his first
birthday. . . .

“It was not until Fidel talked in the mourning of
the victims of that horrendous crime that | began
to fully understand that I had lost Julio forever,
the father of my son, the love of my life. | have
never been able to forget him.”

Martha Savdoral Lopez, wife of Julio Herrera
Aldona, member of the foil team.

"t is a brutal and cowardly act because that is
what they have always wanted, as in the case of
La Coubre. They are not brave enough for

a face-to-face fight and so they attack innocent

people, young people and workers who
“, . « | often think about Virgen Filezala who wanted fo be represented Cuba. The poor mother of my litile
an architect; she was a flower that had hardly begun to son cannof be consoled. She was so looking
bloom and was uprooted at 17 years old. And Carlos forward fo seeing him.”

Migvel Leyva with his clean-shaven face and sweet gaze,

as well as Nancy Uranga, the only married member of the ;ﬁg;ﬂ'mmdmhmmur
young women'’s team, with those blue eyes that were
forever smiling.”

Irene Farbes, journalist and former fencer.

“I is not just the pain that I feel at the loss of my
brother. The death of so many comrades has made it all
so much more fragic.”

Eloina Arencibia, sister of José R. Arencibia, member of
the sword team.




“A quarter of a century has passed since then, but

1 always begin to feel really terrible around this
time. 1 get so depressed particularly when I imagine
the explosion of the plane in the air or I hear the
inferrupted communication with the air traffic confrol
fower.

“, « + This is the most severe blow that has ever
received my family. It travmatized my mother
forever; I remember that she couldn’t go on working
after that. She claimed that she saw my brother in the
door of her office just as he used to appear when he
would go there fo see her. At the end she died with all
that pain of six years locked inside hes, of a cerebral
m"r

“My father has been dead since 1979, three years
after the sabotage he suffered a massive heart
attack. He couldn’t recover either. ...”

Maricela Leyva Gonzdlez, sister of Carlos Leyva
Gonzdlez, member of the fencing feam.



Six students from Guyana had been awarded scholarships to

study medicine in Cuba.
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., , the DC-8 plane brought down in Barbados
was a war plane camouflaged with the

Cubana de Aviacion sign.”

l;& article published
an
in El Nuevo Herald, October 14, 2001.

Murieron 73 personas
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October 1976.
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IH THE HATTER OF:

ORLANDG BOSCH-AVILA,
APPLICANT

Decision of t)

Pursuant to oy re
Gunaral, I have undart
Haturalization Service

concearning the applics

U.S. Department of Justice
Office of the Assistant to the United States &
General Attorney

consideratlon of the d

Washington, D.C. 20530 &nd the Commissionar,
ARCHIVE: A28851622 ) Semaissionsr azguing a
ALl 861 Ela ) Procedure for inadmissibility by virtue of subsection en his asylum applicat
) <) of Article 235 in the presence of Assistant General Attorney nonconfidential inform
SUBIJECT: )} acting
)
ORLANDO BOSCH-AVILA, ) As & xegult of tk
APPLICANT ) that it would bs preju
Decision of the Acting Associate Attorney General United States to. provi
INTRODUCTION concluded that he.l3 &

under # uU.s.c. .l.!.l? fa)

Pursuant to by responsabilities as Acting Associate Attormey General, 1 have undertaken {19), and that bis app
a review of the immigration and Naturalization Service's (INS) decision of May 19, 1989
concerning the applications of Orlando Bosch-Avila for admission to the United States and
for asylum. This review has included consideration of the decision of the INS Regional
Commisioner and the commisioner, the submission of Bosch to the Regional commissioner
arguing against exclusion and requesting a hearing on his asylum application, and certain
confidential and nonconfidential information respecting Bosch.

Zeportation should be

For 30 years Bosch has resolutely and perseveringly perpetrated acts of violence. He has
threatened to carry out and has carried out violent acts of terrorism against numerous
targets, including countries friendly to the United States and high-ranking officials of these
countries. On repeated occasions he has expressed and demonstrated his desire to cause
indiscriminate injury and death. His actions are those of a terrorist who does not respect the
law or human decency, who threatens acts of violence and carries them out without any
consideration for the identity of his victims.

The United States cannot tolerate the inherent use of terrorism as a means for resolving
controversy. To give in to those who use force is nothing other than encouraging the
appearance of more terrorists. We must consider terrorism as a universal evil, even when it
is directed against those whose political sympathies we do not share. As a U.S. district
court so eloquently pointed out in relation to this same case, “the evils of terrorism are no
less in terms of those who perpetrate these acts or in terms of their cause.” Orlando Bosch-
Avila versus Perry Rivkind, 88-973-CIV-HOEVELER. (5.D. Fla., June, 1, 1988. Ruling on
a petition for a habeas corpus order). See also Rivero-Diaz case, 12 1 & N Dec. 475 (BIA,
1967).



[original: Engl:ish]
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1 In axclusion procesdings undar

) ssction 135(c] bafera tha
Acting ‘Assoclate Attorney
Ganerali

1# Acking Assoolate Attorney gGansral
INTRODUCTION

isponsibilities as Acting Assoclate Attorney
:aken & reviev of the Immlgration and

1’8 (IN5) declslen of Hay 19, 1389

‘tions of Orlando Bosch-Avila for admizsion
nd far asylum. This ruviev has included

acislons of the INS Reglonal Coemissioner

the submission of Bosch to tha Raglonal EVIDENCE TO REFUSE ADMISSION

gainst exclusion and ragiasdting & hearing

fon, and certain con:idential and The information included in the archives indicates clearly and unequivocally
stion respecting Bosch, that Bosch has personally promoted, encouraged and organized acts of

violence in this country and several others and has taken part in them. . . .
s reviev, the conclusion is Inescapable CONFIDENTIAL
dicial to the public interest for the ... INFORMATION INDICATING THE DETONATION OF A BOMB ON

de 3 safe havan for Bosch, I have morsover OCTOBER 6, 1976, ON A CUBANA AIRLINE FLIGHT, WAS A CORU
OPERATION DIRECTED BY BOSCH.

n slien excludable from the Unlted States

(37)y (20) (41}, (ae)(liL), (28)(lv) and CONCLUSION
lications for asylum anc vithholding of

For the reasons stated, on today’s date, it hereby [S ORDERED that admission to
Orlando Bosch-Avila be refused and that he be deported from the United States,

Likewise it IS ORDERED the refusal of his petition for assylum and the suspension of

PR dcportation, according to what is stipulated in 8 U.S.C., 1158 and 1253 h), respectively.

and harein are denied.

January 23, 1989 (Signed) Joe D. Whitley
Acting Associate Attorney General
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Secority [Council u!th‘ﬁquuesi‘ﬁﬁh‘n’?’(ﬁhungnuérnm'enf to'debate'the draft resolution'presented by Cuba
'thelsabotage carried outlon the'plane over Barbados:
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Ros manﬂene viva campaifia por Bosch

' @ ElINS asegurd que
decidird el caso dentrode
6 dias, nmq‘ul anies
habda prometide resolverlo
| 12 de mayo.
MIKTA
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el cubsns Orisds Bowh
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La senadora estatal [leana Ros- |
Lehtinen anuncio el viernes que ex-
tendera la campana a favor de la li- &
bertad del médico v activista anti-
castrista cubano Orlando Bosch [

nie
WisEingRail, 300y pyiie de T serolines Culons de  posess fe 3 hrm

Just at the time
of releasing
Oriando Bosch

Las Américas daily, May 20, 1989.
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ORLANDO BOSCH'S ADDRESS:
11746 SW 11th St. MIAMI FL 33184
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Intercede el senador Connie Mack
ante Bush P r Orlando Busch

{H dc. la R.) Euiseuadarf p. A g
ral por ¢l estado de Ja Florida, ks
Connie Mack, le envio la siguien.
te carta 3 George Bush, Presi.
dente de Estados, intercediends
por el doctor Orlande Bosch:

L I

Honorable George Bush
La Casa Blanca,
Washington D.C. 20500

Estimado sefior Presidente:

Le estoy escribiendo para soli-
citurle una entrevista suva con
destacados lideres cubano-ame-
ricanos de Miami a conveniencia
de usted para discutir el caso de
Orlando Bosch Avila.

Enuna opinidn que deja mucho CONNIE MACK
que desear el Departamento de
Justicia el viernes de la semana
anterior rechazo la peticion de
asilo politico en Estados Unidos

Sefior presidente, este caso
envuclve una pregunta funda-
mentzl: :Debe la tierra gue re-
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In 1981 an epidemic of hemorrhaging
dengue broke out in Cuba, which

in a matter of a few weeks cost

the lives of 158 people, out of
whom 101 were chir::iren. A total

of 344,203 people were affected.

The first cases appeared at the
same time in three different regions
of the island, at a distance of over
300 km between them. There

was no epidemiological
explanation available to help
understand these events as a
natural infection.

The sudden appearance, without
the prevalence of this epidemic

in the Americas or in any of the
countries with which Cuba was
involved in major exchanges

of personnel, in addition to

the simultaneous appearance of the
disease in different regions of the
country, are pillars to the research
carried out.by renowned Cuban
scientists in conjunction with

their foreign counterparts.

They all are highly qualified in the
detection of and struggle against
biological warfare.

Years later, during the trial held in
New York to the guhnn terrorist
Eduardo Arocena, a resident of that
city, he confessed to having
introduced the contagious virus

into Cuba.
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SUMMARY OF A TYPICAL
MEDICAL RECORD

A five-year-old female patient, with a history
of good health and well nourished, has been
in a state of fever for three days associated
to headache and suffering from “pain all
over the body.” She is vomiting and has a
slight abdominal pain; on the day she was
admitted red-colored marks appeared on
her trunk and limbs, which the family
presumed to be “blood stains.”

Physical examination revealed petechias in
the trunk and limbs, as well as ecchymosis
on the right leg. Her state of consciousness
was normal. Temperature: 38°C; blood
pressure (BP): 90/60, cardiac frequency
(CF): 120 per minute, respiratory frequency
(RF): 28 per minute. On examination the
respiratory apparatus and cardiovascular
areas are found to be normal. Globulous
abdomen, slightly painful in the
epigastrium and right hypochondrium.
Tactile examination of the liver reveals
that it surpasses the rib edge by 1 cm. No
splenomegalia. Laboratory results:
reduced platelet level (thrombocytopenia)
80,000 x mm’, leukogram normal for her

% age; hemoglobin: 12 g %; haematocrit: 34.






Hospitals were
complefely full,
"t the extent - -
‘thatischoolshad
t0 be opened
and used as
hospl’ruls

SUMMARY OF A TYPICAL
MEDICAL RECORD. |

Sn hours after being admitted to hospital,
the marks on the skin had not ¢changed,
but the fever had snd'denly drnp,p-‘e,ﬂ-.-; she
is sweating and crying because of intense
abdominal pain in the epigastrium. The
liver can be felt 3 cm under the rib edge
and before auscultation there is a
vesicular murmur at the base of the right

lung (BP): 90/60; (C€F): 128 x min; (RF):

32'x min. (RX) Thorax: pleural oyerflow
on the right side.

‘She is.on an intravenous drip (water and

electrolytes in accordance with her age)
and m}thmg is administered by mouth.

' Nevertheless, she ‘has vomited three

times, the last of which contained traces
of-blood. Her platelet count has reduced
to 40,000 x mm® and hema‘tucrlt has

'mcreased to 40.







SUMMARY OF A TYPICAL
MEDICAL RECORD

Her symptoms have been interpreted as a case of hemorrhaging dengue, with
plasma extravasion (hydrothorax and upper hematocrit level). For this reason
intravenous treatment with crystalloid solutions is being maintained and increased.
New laboratory tests indicated coagulation disorders (prolonged prothrombin time,
reduction of hepatic factors in coagulation).

Four hours later her symptoms included cold limbs, tachycardia of 160 per minute
and 60/40 (B.P.), which are interpreted as signs of shock, she is vomiting blood
(hematemesis). She is transferred to the Intensive Care Unit. Human albumen is
administered together with platelet-rich plasma; she improves for a while and for
two hours her blood pressure level is recovered. The thorax X-ray shows signs

of bilateral pleural overflow and lungs with interstitial infiltrate.

She has dark defecation (semi-digested blood) and two sanguinolent vomits.
Platelets dropped to 20,000 x mm?. Fresh blood, and oxygen have been indicated,
and also liquids via intravenous until diuresis is obtained. However, maximum
blood pressure has fallen again to 40 mmHg and she is just obnubilated.




A doctor
related how he
spent long
hours without
rest. He had to
care for twenty

children in|
shock thui were
vomltln l tf
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SUMMARY OF A TYPICAL
MEDICAL RECORD
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“She was in care for the whole night
and the following day vomited the
milk, mixed with blood, that she
hud bean given for breakfast. . .

She was.adm edonluly4u -
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“My little girl said to me
around noon, ‘Mamita,

| don't think | am going to
live much longer, | am
going fo die.”. . . On the
19th at around two in the
morning she was very
agitated, the 20th she was

taken fo intensive care. . . .

At seven in the evening
they told a cousin of mine

that she had died.”

Zenaida J. Isla Romero,
mothemref 5-year-old
amilé Villalonga

“She had Down'’s
syndrome, but was not a
chronic case. . . . She was
healthy enough. . .. On
June 20 she came down
with a fever and | took her
to the polyclinic ... the
pediatrician told me fo
bring samples of her feces
and urine, but she fainted
before | could do that.

| called for a nurse: ‘Miss,
my little girl is dying' . ..
on June 21, she died.”

Inocencia M. Ledon

, Herndndez, mother of
Mailin Castaieda Ledon

“I lost my 13-year-old
daughter and part of my
life . . . She said to me,
‘Mom, | am going to die,
yes, | am going to die.’
... A week later she was
dead. ... | am 64 years old
and | am still working
because | can't stay home;
| seem to see her all the
time beside me.”

Casimira Camejo, mother
of 13-year-old Nereida
pna (amejo
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“When we arrived home from
the airport she vomited the
breakfast. Shortly afterwards
she said, ‘I'm fulﬁng!' A
ten o'clock at night of that
same day, she had nausea
again and we come back fo
the hospital. .. . It was

decided fo admit her. . . . At
midnight | told her fo sleep
but she answered no, that she
was going fo die. . . . Before
closing her eyes she gave me

not to let go of her hand. ..
At around fwo in the mlng
she became Trieggs weuk
and | felt her hﬁ usmg its

grip on mine. When | looked:
or she's us,ple tulbred

“On July 7, 1981, my small
son became a bit weak and
| took him fo see the
He hold me that | should
watch him; he continued fo
worsen and | took him back
to the doctor. That's when
thlfi}f cu;:li]ed 'nl:ut an wlysiﬁ
and said that he ...Ihe
following day, at wfhm the
afternoon, | was told that my:

son was off-color. | fook him
to.the hospital and they fook™

vrhlm alive -

mother of 10-year-old
Carlos A Rodnﬁez Acuiia

pediatrician.

“I was with her when she
died on the 13th . . .| have
this grief for a time ago
v tﬂey fought right up
until the end, in the
lask few duys the
medieine Inferieren
arrived. . . .

Félix Mesa,
father of 3-year-old 2

intia Wﬂrrero
1 3 ‘ “_I

a very cold kiss and asked me...him straight.info infensive. -
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Al the cildven thet died vere betwreen O and 14 years olid.
Althowgh the lenyth of the llness vavied between thwree wnd seven
days, researeh carried out revealed on averuge: the thivd day of
fever bleeding begins (in the sidw, wouth and nese), us well as ke
el signels (iniense abdoming] puin, reguent vomiting, irdtability
or sleepiness); on e fourth duy the patient goes inte shody, sherily
wiier e dedine of the fevey, somedimes this is fallowed by even
heavier bleeding, sueh as hematemesis; wnd the fifth day is the day
off dewih. Almest without exception, the dhildren were healibhy end

L =

Erdn ooy

st




“Five-year-old

Saini Herrera Sudrez |

came from Guantdnamo L

to spend her vacations in my . -

house. . .. At ten o’clock in the

morning of the 14th, we took her to

hospital. . .. She was admitted to the ward,

in the evening she went into shock. . . . | was

working on another ward and they told me that o child |

had become seriously ill. . . I didn't think they were talking

about my niece, because | hadn't left her in a serious condition

to die. They took her urgently to intensive care and she went

into shock there. All the doctors and the whole staff made every
g ﬁpo/ssihle effort to save the child but she died on the morning of
=== July 16, at 6:00 a.u. She was my brother’s only daughter and his
nerves suffered terribly because of what happened . . . he
. disappeared from the hospital, rolled around on the ground and
they had to inject him. The following day he was very upset and
# .ﬁflﬁ&e}l the belongings of the little girl and burned everything.

He’hurned his hunds and had to be taken fo the psythiutrist, his

Mauria Herrera, the girl's aunt.
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“No more childre
oo Ok

Investments made to control the epidemic

Hospitalization 5 38,796,316.00
Emergency care 1,290,854.00
Medicines used for ambulatory paiienis 1,021,673.00

Social Security expenses 4724.040.00




"The mission of the
group | led was to obtain
certain types of germs
and introduce them into

Cvba....”

Statement made by the Cuban-American ferrorist
Fdvardo Arocena fo the Federal Court in New York.
Page 2189 of this statement,

1984. Exp. 2 FBINY 185-1009.

The ferrorist Arocena was nof fried because of this
confession and the U.S. authorities did not carry
out an investigation of any kind either

The Miami Herald, September 1, 1981 ' B
WASHINGTON. The pompous statement by Fidel Castro that “harmful pests”
which attack harvests and animals in Cuba, and that the dengue fever epidemic
that had caused the death of over 100 people on the island are the work of the
Central Intelligence Agency (CIA) does not appear to be inconceivable to

the authors of a new book that will be published in autumn.

Former Federal InvestiEations Bureau (FBI) agent William W. Turner and the
journalist Warren Hinckle claim that the United States used biological warfare in
Cuba during the Nixon administration.

The authors allege that the CIA has involved the United States in a secret,
undeclared and illegal war against Cuba for over 20 years. The so-called Project
Cuba 1s the largest and least well-known CIA operation outside the legal limits of
its statutes, they claim.

Anti-Cuban Congress members have initiated a campaign in the United
States to free Eduardo Arocena from prison.



It is not much to ask for justice to be carried out
against professional terrorists who, from U.S. territory
itself, have not ceased to apply their underhanded
methods against our people to spread terror and desiroy
the economy of a blockaded and harassed country.”

1. Mldaris Reyes Estadn
2. Mejondro Acevedo Mortinez
3. Aluin Valiz Bameto
4, Mexander Céspedes Fonsecn
5, Mexis Borzaga Borzogo
b, Aliis Gorcln Rodriguez
7. Mtrady Stnchez Villalobo
B, Amon Nifez Motos
9. Ammilis Vlle Posadn
10, ke Milogeos Glmez Parra
11, Anorals Machada Flaitos
12, Adrés Cobis Castro
13. Angel M. Meding Vicusio
14, Annlo Dolotes Pagdn Podilla
15, hsamis Lopez Crdenas
16, fuguimidas Delgnds Zamarm
17, Aslilie Monzon Rodriguer
18, Barbare Hemandez Gaido
19, Corlos Rodrigues Aciufia
20. Carman Cavallos Prigto
21, César Medrano Bello

22 Cintio Mesn Monero
?3 I.'I-: Nifiez Pérer

el Gutkéaz Bolloga

25 [ qﬁLE;Sdm Ih‘umrﬂ
26, Eduordo Banitez Tellez
27. Hana Rodrigues Lopez
28. Hlieser Aguilor Romos:
29, Eiisor Herrerg Canons
30/ Emilionn Eﬂ‘lm
31 Enilli: Jurr.‘[ul.mtli
37. Eneid  Ros lodoy.
33. Errique: |I:||-Edﬂ~|'!lm
34. Emesting Unmg{ms
34, Hami Eﬁrm.ﬂm
34, Idulmis Eudugug (ediio
37, I Perer Mg
35 Emoe! Veldmuar fi_l'll;.
39 Youl Bamel Ferer 8

40, Jorge |.|Hﬁ|.'i:::u!.lr1Erlr$F. (K

A1 ost Aleman Hemandez™s
47 Jose: Btonio Rrofin Gusme
43 In';sl.ﬂmn[ |I|..4.|e'

Fidel Castro Ruz

al. Morilym Yelimuez Fonsem
52, Diorelis Santos Hemindez
53. Martha Comacho Moy
54, Maoylin Costoneda Laddn
55, Miguel de Jests Dsorio Conalen
56, Miguel Machodo Ortegn
57. Milvia Cin Virquaz
58. Miralis Avello Comengte
59, Manica Coballere Tazanda
0, Newaido Carmana Comeo
&1 Niutka Colds Quitonn
62, Noami Lomelos Mirmlles
63, Noemi Prieto Alonso
&4, Octavio Bomes Aguilam
65, Orlondo Gonzoler Grgorm
6, (smany Gomez Griego
&7 Ovis Veldmuez Garcn
58; Padto Gorclo Gonraler
69 Rafoul Condin Leyva
10 Roudel Rajns Randdn
71. Rl Mustelier Fusntes
72. Roso Contznng Atchel
73, Rugldn Mom Soncher
74. Matin Femdndaz Ferntndar
75, Salnl Herrara Sudrez
76 Solvodor Rafoel Gorailer Butista:
17 Sitvin Ofivern Napoles
T8, Tony Fornander Mayor
19 Walquts Rormato Meso
B0. Yaima Cabrern Figuatodo
B, Yaima Rodriguez Feng
B2 Yomiln Covadonga Henindez Guzm
ﬂ!’nmﬂﬂnﬂqum
B4 Yol Vi ;
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EJ . TERRORISM l.lP TO THE PRESENT

g In the nmeiles uncl up mhe preseni duy,-ierrorlsis of Cubun orlgm, _
~residents in Miami, have carried out dozens of violent acts 'ugumsi Cubu. 2
In spite of repedted reports made by the Cuban governmeni evidence senf
to the U.S. government, declarations by the terrorists themselves in the
press, on television and radio in the aforementioned city, they continue to
act with impunity.




On October 14, 1990, the terrorists of Cuban origin Gustavo Rodriguez Sosa and
Tomds Ramos Rodriguez, made their way from their Miami base and entered
Cuban national territory via Santa Cruz del Norte, in Havana province.
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DECLARACTON

=—— En el local que ooupa el Orgauo de Instruceidn del Departa-
monto de la Seguridud del Estadoy sito en San Miguel entre Anita
¥ Goicuria, Municipio Dies de (otubre, Qivdad de la Habana, eien
do lap diez horas del dia diecisiete de diciembre de mil nove——
clientos noventa, "AHO JAXXII DE LA REVOLUQION", ante el Inatrug—e
tor agtuante compatece el detenido:que requeriddde. sus genera—
les dice nombrarse GUJ i L » natural de Granma, hi
gﬂ de Angel y Maria, 1 tez 10R, deo ocuarenta y cuatro afios
e edad, por hober nuoido el dfa disoisiete de diciembre de mil-
fipveolientos ouarenta y seis, casedo, desocupado, y vecoino de la-
Treinta Aveglda, nimero mil dosoientes treinta y uno, entre Doce
Btreot y Trece street del Bouth West%, Miami, Plorida, Estados —
Unidos de Nortedmerica, y en Cubm en la calle Milagros, nimero—
treecientos sesente y tres apartamento treinta y dop, entre vata
va ¥ Forvenlr, Lawton, Mundcipio Diez de Qelubre, Ciudad de la--
llabans, quien impuesto del derecho gue le concede la Ley de de—
:larar o abstenerse, opta por lu primere y rvumiiiesta lo siguien

g1
== Que abandond ile;~lmonte el Territorio liccionnl en el aflg—
il naveodenton oaohanta v nuava haoda 1aa Eetadam linldea da Hore




Sergio Gonzalez Rosquete, UNDP
Secretary General, has declared
that basic courses are given
lasting for three months, durin
which time partidpants live an
sleep within the training camps.

e
L. (heeechobes

P

’W Pal

UNITED

STATES™ [ ¢ giher dusses.

= I hr 3 I-'Q% i
g;:lin:“‘u:?

4}”'2- e
Clara " ra "

3-! Fern ﬂdn ~.

)

Tlrau
1a
maguey

\ Sta.Cruz
\Jardines d.\d St

IIBMI!-& .
L €70 0., Manzanil

Niguerg o
C.Crur

Caitas

* ltrl

' Volunteers are taught nwigﬁﬁnn, weapons Use,
meteorology, logistics, group lrmmng and uﬂend a range

2

“? X

s
anth‘: L
1San Suh

Eu.m Ca:
BXIIIIL:‘;‘\‘Q. i
Flaminge C-r /

: Long C-M
“‘fﬂ L A&hnf L
"h\ Hiu por Vod | s W

,«*" .

- \
S Cl: Verde |

% z
- Q‘*a \ Little In

o mlzrxclbm N Tl

—
~&%
tifla

o,

'IF
e
JAlto Cedro \;53"““‘ Lap

Hra J} Ay
&

A
S COCUmM ""-.




gantidad—

EETIET R bordo de—
e ith.].lL-I'".Iii"'l én nusstro Territoric-—
1 dicente, (que tode esta sotividad es
ivdndano noy tonmericane FRANK l.mdlﬂi
\ orprnizacidn contrarrevolucionaria y
GLICIA {L..._.n )} de los Estodos Unddoa
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On December 29, 1991, the g L W
terrorists Eduardo Diaz Betancourt,

L ] L] L] ¥ : c y
Daniel Candelario Santovenia DEOIARACION
v e ficings del Inst
Fernandez and Pedro de Lo 7o oL looel qus ocupan lag oficinag del Orgxno de Instruce
Caridad Alvarez Pedroso, set out BN e Tl e
[ ] L] [ ] y . ﬂ 3
from Miami, their place of SaL 0k onpe 84 ehamte M e O
[ ] [ ] L] [ ] h
residence, in the direction of 0 et NN v o R T T
- L [+ [ ED 1 hi] d i 113
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Illll'hll'E’II llHIII!'EII Hl'l H'w Ilud ;an:EE:r[':uquI::iE: ll;a:ianrga;id:.? na{ndu: LJLLiIiu:!FilI Horteams-
rica, gquien despuesas de sar imnun to del derecho gue le concede-
planned to carry out sabotage 4 0p? ._m'o b io irinero 3 para-
L] (] 1 m
against a Matanzas paper mill, the ““‘“ TP R G dq Nor
- =
Arrechavala rum factory, a Havana United States of Aer: ot iami,’ Ll oo -
[ ¥ = - s 5
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transportation means. Their at when they were wi |ng o depart fromthedock’

in Key Marathon, Miami,! FlurldﬂUﬁl'Fe'dI}SIutes of & cents

statements were broadcast by e i SOz~

Cuban television in January
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On October 19, 1992, the Miami-based terrorists of Cuban origin Miguel Alfonso
Gonzalez, Eduardo Gonzalez Torres and Gustavo David Torna Agudo entered the
province of Sancti Spiritus via the beach of Playa Carbo and were detained.

The Bahamas authorities.also arrested three other individuals of Cuban origin
(Rubén Dario Lopez Castro;:lvan Leon Rojas nn:l Jesus Morales Garcia), who had
links with the previously mentioned group$All six belongedito the crew of the yacht
Nautilus and declared that Alfonso Gonzdlez, Torna Agudo and Gonzalez Torres
(detained in Cuba) had set out from the vuthf‘m an inflatable\rubber life raft for a
desimuhon unknown for them. j
An investigation was carried out by the Buﬁgﬁi“mﬁmiiies in Anguilla Key, where
the Nautilus was found, and where the three terrorists were arrested. A MAC 10
. machine gun with a silencer was discovered, together with a substantial amount of
"1 45--:u|||:e5gmunmuns, C-4 plastic explosive, an AKM loader with its cartridges and
t Elykmure for machine guns, as well as electrical fuses and detonators.

0 REPORT ON CONVERSATIONS HELD. ) N THE BAHAMAS BY,THE CUBAN

s DELEGATION IN RElATIOH 107THE ANAUTILUSZCASE:

EL 4 PE NOVIEMBRE PE 1992, LA ﬂELEGACIqJH CUBANA QUE VISITO BAHAMAS-
CON MOTTIVO DEL APRE&:AHI{:“TD POR AUTORIDAVES DE ESE PAIS DE TRES 1IN-
DIVIPUOS DE ORIGEN CUBANG, EN CAYO0 ANGUILA, ENTRE EL 22 ¥ 23 DE 0C-
TUBRE PASADO, SE TRASLADO A NASSAU, PARA SL.'-'\T["JER UN INTERCAMBICQ TE
INFORMAC TON F'LL.RLIL“JAIJ‘U CON LA LAI]UF‘A EN MUESTrA TCOATTADYA N -
OTROS TRES SUJET(S, TAMBIEN CUBANOS, DUE PERTENI .

CION DEL "HHUTILL!S'_, VATE EN QUE VIAJABAN LOS E :

EN BAHAMAS. =

NUESTRA DELE Segiugis
CE-MINISTRO
90 GONZALEZ
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PRSI aES] BAHAMAS POLICEWENT TO ANGUILLA KEY.... .

¥ A 3 HOMBRES: EL CA

ROV MRl ACCORDING TO.THEIR STATEMENT, THE NAUTILUS LEET MIAMI/ON FRIDAY, OCTOBER 16, 1992,
AUNQUE DE ORIGEN Cus WITH SIX PEOPLE ABOARD. SIMILARLY THEY/SAID THAT, THREE/OTHER CREWMEMBERS CALLED
T IVt T  EDUARDOGONZALEZ, GUSTAVOTORNAS/AND MIGUEL ALFONSO HAD LEFT IN AN INFLATABLE

DE OCTUBRE DE 1992, BOAT.TO.FIS OR GO/DIVING|ON OCTOBER 20, 1992, BUT THEIR CURRENT WHEREABOUTS WERE
OTROS TRES TRIPULANT UNKNOWN.
MIGUEL ALFONSO, HABI
S IRRARARE]  THE(POLICE SEARCHED THE KEY AND DISCOVERED THE FOLLOWING:
VR IINCETRITILNTY  A) MAC 10 MACHINE GUN (U.S. MADE WITH SILENCER)
ST B) LARGE QUANTITY/OF 45-CALIBER MUNITIONS
1 AMET - €).C-4 PLASTIC EXPLOSIVE (APPROX. 15 - 20 POUNDS)
PSR B D) 2 DIGITAL HANDRADIOS
R TCICIRACIEC 82 ) 11 CHARGERS WITH THEIR AKM-47/ MISSILES
RRCISONCERCRRAT ) CHARGERS FOR MAC 10 MACHINE GUN

3 : G) ELECTRICAL FUSES/AND!EXPLOSIVES WIRE
ACICTER Ty H) A 30-35-INCH CABLE[KNORTLES BRAND
15 A 20 LBS DE C4 1)/15.T0 20 POUNDS/OF'C-4
LRCORARLTURL 1) 30 POUNDS OF EXPLOSIVE GELATINE

g : K) ONE 555/CS|FEDERAL “RIVE? GRENADE
RS STISFORM 1) LIQUID TEAR GAS (3/CORTAINERS OR 37 MM CAPSULES)
DETONADORES COMER M) NOM-ELECTRICAL DETONATORS
RO ILTISREIBE W) COMMERCIAL DETONATORS (7.0R )
ST IL 0) MILITARY DETONATORS

HODULOS DE PROVEC ;{ ;'fgg:,“ggﬂ?gﬂ““
R IRy R) 11X 30 MISSILE MODULES
| 2 REMINGTON CAL. §) 1 SUPPRESSOR - 4 CHARGERS
SRS 1) 2 23-CALIBER REMINGTON

SITUACION DE LOS DET U) 3 M-16 CHARGERS
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MASON EXPLICO QUE HA
POR LOS SIGU IEETES D SITUATION OF THE DETAINEES IN BAHAMAS

1.- POSESION ILEGAL

EEIRANRUSILEE  MASON EXPLAINED THAT THEY HAD BEEN ACCUSED BEFORE THE APPROPRIATE COURTS FOR THE

POSESTON TLEGA '
SOOI FOLLOWING CRIMES:

_ POSESION TLEGA
~ POSESTON TLEGA 2, - FACILITATING A MILITARY OPERATION OF THE FOLLOWING NATURE: BETWEEN 22ND AND

34947. 23RD OCTOBER 1992 THE DETAINED INDIVIDUALS ARRIVED AT THE SAND BANKS OF ANGUILLA
FACILITAR UNA 0 KEY AND AFTER REACHING AGREEMENT AMONG THEMSELVES, HID THE FIREARMS, MUNITIONS
ENTRE EL 22 ¥ 23 AND EXPLOSIVES WHICH IN THE GIVEN CIRCUMSTANCES, GAVE RISE TO REASONABLE SUSPICION

ARENA DE CAYO AN
ACUERDD BUTRE EL IIIA.TTHETWEHEFI.HHHI'MQMTMH.FﬂHEIEH STATE, IN THIS CASE, CUBA.

CIONES PLOS : %..‘

{F‘It Abuu : J\‘;‘ é} . @"} -

UNA bl N ﬁ)@} e/
\ - 4 L ""‘. I




On September 4, 1994, the terrorists of Cuban origin, residents in Miami, José
Benito Menéndez del Valle and Irelio Marcelino Barroso Medina, entered the
northern coast of the municipality of Caibarién via Cayo Palo Quemado. They
were detained and their weapons confiscated.

forma de lucha contra Cuba, Qcup
—————— recalectar dinero para la estruct
arganlzar_ian, !Iugunda a r_'ump; ar

————En el Organc de Instruccién del Departamento de Seguridad
del Estado, sito en Calrzada de SBan Miguel, entre Anita vy
Goicuria, FReparto Sevillano, Vibora, Municipio Diez de Octubre,

'-nl:rlb-l W l:nntrld:.ccian con sus

Civdad de La Habana y siendo las dier horas del dla diecisiete de logrado recolectar algunas armac
Septiembre de mil novecientos noventa y cuatro, "AMOD TREINTA ¥ pistolas que &1 porsonalmente guar
SEIS DE LA REVOLUCTION", ante el Instructor que actia comparece el ————=lye Gntre los miembros de
acusado que reguerido de sus generales dijo nombrarse:JOSE BENITO Insurreccional Macionalista®, re

HEMENDEZ OEL YALLE, conaclde por PEEPE EL ARABE, natural de La PEREZ, el que tiene negoclos de
la Sk ( A ML zona de Opa-locka, en Miami y a RE

- St REY EL BARBERITD, a quien la organ

infiltracitn en territorio cuba

unempluved and residing at JRrOnes X ua S intanants ea

llegando & participar 2l conccido

:HlﬁlEﬂH GARDENS, Miami, Florida, exponia wl criterio de realiza

— civiles en Cuba, misntras quae MANL
Hﬂ“Ed s‘I'MEE. ﬂf ﬁmerl ﬁi ey o ] ) de luchar directamente contra los
- sy s —————Flantea MEMEMDEZ DEL VALLE,

¥ no encontrar apoyo por parte de
separarse de ésta junto a IRELID M
a la tarca deo organizar un m
LIBERTAD", il&ma que wutiléfzaba

arto dwi Hariel,

Cuarenta, entre F y b Reparto Poey, Punicipio Arroyo  Naran)o, Macionalista®, concibiendao la ide
Ciudad delh";‘“ﬂ:a”ﬂ-__ ey e T A e infiltracidn en Cuba para mater
2 gue aprovecha un viaje como comuni
...tuhmg part llﬂur',r.trulmng exercises in the Evergludes durants el mes de Marzo o Abril

- bl L cuatro; para orientarle buscar en
:umps,,where he fEtEl’d‘E tlossesin'infantry and using an AR-15 sspgpicat i it bl gollt oo e

estudios del lugar més propicio pa
cumplid el mencionado BARROSH MEDI
————— FRefiere gue con gstas inform
mechos la infiltracidn alreded
noeventa y cuatro, peEro al no

llﬂE--n v m:uw.td-ﬁ“
Esspanentios de los Evarglades,
W Bl manojo del Tusil AR-iap mi {pajepn - o g =
espacico de ocho o nueve affos, hils gque por divergencias con
algunos de sus integrantes de cougo PR e e
gobierno cubano, =& nag v -

enfrentamiento debs re¥PrTE - rln £
no @rfa muy apovado por loa miombr

I ¥ e * &




un amigo gque posee un yate de turismo para a borda de ésta
acercarse & las aguas territoriales cubanas. Asi las cosas en la

. . . towing behind them a small vessel within ‘which'all the wenpuns
were hidden in a cooler to avoid problems wlih "“I.I'S f‘ihnnhes,

they headed for Crandon Park Pul:llt Murlnu m‘Mmmn. 2 .,;;
: NIar 8 havegar
ﬂnn:mn:- a

g Lek i

las costas de Miami, zona donde EIHHFH:ISEI- HEDIMA v &1 se pasan nu.r.

el otra barco mientras que el C/P El, FLACO regress a los Estados

Unidos de Morteamérica.—————————"" """ cr———re——e——————

dndose entre otras tareas de - Refiere gue seguidamente se dirigen hacia la zona de Cayo
ura econtmica y militar de la Bal, lugar donde &1 y BARROSO MEDINA, abordan una balwa con motor
VElﬁtitl”E'ﬂ fusiles 5’*5 B una fusra de borda que wme transportaba sobre 2] yate en gue
- e - navegaban y toman rumbo a las costas cubanas, misntras que la

n H’IE “W ﬂf Mlﬂml embarcacidn gue gobernaba LUIS El, BRANDE, regresaba a la Florida.
i e Gue pasadas unas horas y despuds de cnntrmfar dJ.fJ,cultm:lH san

o as

o e s e i vt “Palo Quemado, the place where they dlsemhurkeddeflnted'
de fuego entre ellas, varias boat and hid it in the surrounding vegetuhnn"dulng ih“"*_m

da en su domicilig.-——-———-
la organiracidn "Directorio

cuerda a ALFONSO  BUIZ, HMANUEL

articulos de ferreteria en la LT

INALDOD DOMIMGUEY, conocida por e = h.'m ” m

lzaclién le encargd preparar wna ‘1s o & dm. la  plave,

no en el aho mil novecientos lea que proceden a interrogar v al conacer qlis Irah cubanos gue

n EPUARED DIAZ BETANCOURT ,no hablan desistido de sus planes de abandonar i1legalmente el pals v
por BREY EL BARBERITO, ya que que deseaban retornar a sus casas, les exponen sus planes de

r actividades contra centros llegar & la zona de Jinaguaymbo con el fin de comenzar crear

EL FEREE v &1 weran partidarios . =

militared .o

que debido a &stas situaciones

la organizacidn =s gue decide

ARCELIND BARROSO MEDINA,dandose

ovimiento nombrada "PATRIA ¥

el “Directorio Insurreccional

a de preparar. entre ambos una

falizar #us propositos, por lo

tarioco de BARROSO HERIMNA a Cuba

de mil novecientos noventa v

la zona de Villa Clara personas

entar al gobierno, vy realizar

ra desembarcar, actividades que

Hﬂ*______"____________"'_

aciones acuerdan llevar a vias

or del mes de Junio del actual

tener apoyo por parte de otras

pntradicciones dentrp de low

aagonEr La. ¢
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On April 2, 1993, the tanker Mikonos, bearing a lllllliese"il"m'““r"'”r MSR, ~Fadced

e

Tunn - ‘;tt“s'
de Zazra e A

Glhara f“ \‘0:9

flag, with o Cuban-Cypriot crew, was machine-gunned 7. Holge Santia b -
seven miles fo the Illll'ﬂl of the coast of Matanzas while  yanzanify—o» oS Mt o
transporting oil to the island. The attack was carried out “722% San Luis g-GUaAtdnamo
by Rigoberto Acosta Diaz, José Méndez Mirabal, Guillermo N—ﬁw G
Casasus Toledo and Rafael Carrera Manso, members : W\

of the terrorist organization Secret Armed Army.

The Cuban Foreign Ministry MINREX dispatched its

Note No. 311 to the U.S. Interests Section informing

them of the attack against the Mikonos. The Note

T et i o

sma numerous

headed north toward the United States. The

| attackers used 7.62-caliber guns, which left

o mm: bullet holes in the tanker, and although
- mm:liﬂmﬂ,m lives of the

had been in serious danger.
Furthermore, the bullets could have caused a fire
on board the vessel.

“According to sources in the Cuban administration and within the United Stotes, Liamera financed o machine-gun
attack on a Cypriot flug-bearing tanker, Hnﬂikmtounﬂoslopenedﬁreuﬂmhlpvdmﬂm

toward the Cub of Ca Charges were never presented by the U.S. authorities in this
case or in II::I zﬂse of '::mqueﬁ?ﬂndls : by

"Terrorists, bet Our Terrorishs®
by Kirk Nielsen
Micmi New Times, December 21, 2001



On October 15, 1994, the Miami-based terrorists of Cuban origin
Armando Sosa Fortuny, Lazaro Gonzalez Caraballo, Pedro Guisao
Pena, José Ramon Falcon Gonzdalez, Jesus Manuel Rojas Pineda,
Miguel Diaz Bouza and Humberto Real Sudrez were assigned the
mission of establishing themselves in the Escambray mountains.
From there they would carry out violent attacks against the local
population and the economy. As soon as they disembarked they
murdered the Cuban citizen Arcilio Rodriguez Garcia, who was
fishing in the area.

“He liked sport, particularly swimming and fishing. He
loved going fishing in the rivers. He wore a T-shirt
with number 19 from his baseball team, Villa Clara.
He was an affectionate and loving young man. He
adored his sister, as she adored him. He was always
looking after her, in the same way that he cared for
me and his father.

“On the 14th he called by my home and left me

a bottle of rum. He told me that he was going with his
father to harvest a small rice plantation that they had
and the following day they planned to kill a piglet to
eat it with me, and drink some rum together.”

Marto Garcin, Arcilio’s mother



him, Marta, they’ve killed him."

7] threw my bi Inlioml-nlr-i:"llnshdhnlﬁlduh
take me to see but he replied that he couldn’t as an
investigation was being carried out on the scene of the
crime. When | came to reality, that same | felt as
if | had been emptied from inside out . .. and time

has passed since then | still con’t accept what happened.
“Normita, his sister, had given him a present of some
very nice clothing. When Arcilio received it he said,
“Sister, this is beautiful, | am going to keep it for
a special occasion, for wmaﬂu:ﬂmrhni.' That’s why,
when Noel asked me, ‘Marta, are we going to dress
him in?’ | answered, ‘The clothes that his sister gave him
as a present for a special occasion.” ”

Marta Garcin, Arcilio’s mother

"We were a happy family. Arcilio was a wonderful father, husband and
son, very much loved by those who knew him.”
Xiomara Barnet Ferndndexz, Arcilio’s widow
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“] only want to say that terrorism must be fought
so that there aren’t as many mothers and fathers
feeling the pain we feel; that there aren’t as many
children left orphans by terrorism, that homes are
not destroyed.”

Marta Garcig, Arcilie’s mother
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“1 took the rifle from my
back and pretended | was
-=gmng:tu hund n Overs

g )

"IMEHEnlnfmmﬁn —Hllhqnnvmumnum-

die, asl qoc dale, bien
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: Reconocido Macans, Juen José Je
“The burst of gunﬁre aimed

alcanza un R-1 de los abandonados
dentro del carro. Mi

at me was enough to make i e Campute
me to respond by firing six

llegan en tma camionets Radl, e cho-
hmes. The hmk wmds:reen :

fer ¥ Osmel, otro CVP.

“E= maravilloso cémo en nada se
formé una especie de milicia popular.
Yo no sé qué piensa esa gente. Aqui
“'To take my weapon away
from me you'd have to kill
me and make sure | was

.deud,* _smd lu'l_:n Jose.”

tado del camion. Uno intenta es-
I:Bpn'pemdeungazzm.lénh:pom:m

“'Do you want my watch? |
will give it to you, man,’

' don’t need o watch to live.’
{Listen, we are part of

a ihuusund strong muusmn

convirtié en un hervidero. Policias,
bomberos, guardafronteras ¥ gente de
pueblo, llegaron en las primeras horas
del dis. A los tres infiltrados captura-
dos por Juan José se les ocuparon dos
fusiles AKM de fabricacién china,
una pistola Makarov moderna y otm
P-38, oo cochillo comando y otros
articulos para este tipo de operacidn:
linternas, mochilas, ll:m:mnumhu-
dos y un envase con veneno




On March 20, 1995, the terrorists Santos Armando Martinez
Rueda and José Enriquez Ramirez Oro, U.S. residents, were
detained in the José Marti International Airport. They had
entered Cuba with fake passports as Costa Rican tourists. These
same individuals had previously entered the country via the
coast of the municipality of Puerto Padre in Las Tunas bringing
explosive materials with them, part of which was used to construct
a bomb that was desactivated on time.

RESIDENT ALIEN

FLORIDA

PASAPORTL PUBLICA P
e i REFUBLICA DE COSTA RICA

DATEILS CALDERDY




DECLARACTON

EN EL LOCAL QUE OCUPA EL ORGANC DE INSTRUCCION DEL DEPARTAMENTO
DE SEGURIDAD DEL EBETADO, SITO EN SAN MIGUEL ENTRE ANITA Y
GOICURIA, VIBORA, 10 DE OCTUBRE, CIUDAD DE LA HABANA, SIENDO LAS
08.00 HORAS DEL DIA 26 DE NOVIEMERE DE MIL NOVECIENTOS MOVENIA ¥
CINCO. "AND DEL CENTENARIC DE LA CAIDA DE JOSE MARTI", ANTE EL
INSTRUCTO ACTUANTE COMPARECE EL CIUDADAND QUE REQUERIDO DE SU%
GEN DE
Las =

i3]
“SANTOS ARMANDO MARTINEZ RUEDA .. .MOVEDTOTHE &
UNITED STATES, WHERE HE CURRENTLY LIVES AT 2326 SW, pa

9th ST., MIAMI, FLORIDA. . ..

“NUMEROUS MEETINGS .. . IN A THREE-STORY BUILDING
CLOSE TO 97TH AVENUE AND 20TH OR 30TH STREET, NORTH
WEST, MIAMI, A BUILDING WHICH APPEARS TO BE AN
INSURANCE AGENCY ACCORDING TO A SIGN. THEY SAID THEY
BELONGED TO AN ASSOCIATION OF CUBAN VETERAN
MEMBERS OF THE U.S. ARMY, IDENTIFIED BY THE LETTERS
“CAVA” AND CONSIDERED THEMSELVES TO BE THE ARMED
WING OF CUBAN EXILES, THEIR MEMBERS HAD DEVISED
AMONG THEIR PLANS AGGRESSIVE INCURSIONS AGAINST
CUBA WITH COASTAL ATTACKS USING SPEEDBOATS,
INTRODUCING COMMANDOS, THE CREATION OF CLANDESTINE
CELLS WITHIN THE COUNTRY TO CARRY OUT TERRORIST
ACTIVITIES AMONGST OTHER SUBVERSIVE GOALS AIMED AT
CHANGING CUBAN REALITY.

“, .. PRACTICAL AND THEORETICAL CLASSES . . . EXPLOSIVES
HANDLING AND TRAINING . . . PRACTICE WITH DETONATORS
AND SMALL C-4 CHARGES IN THE SUGAR CANE PLANTATIONS
OF WEST PALM BEACH.”

AFRDE QUE LA PREPARS i 08 CoNorIDnS  DOR ALRXTS (AR THO
INCLUYO EL MANEJO DEL SISTEMA DE POSICIOMAMIENTO GLOBAL (GPS) LA
FORMA. DE OPERAR UNA PLANTA DE RADIO AFICICHADO, EL
FINCIOMAMIENTO DE EQUIPCS DE MAVEGACION ¥ AUNQUE LE ABORDARON
ESTA MATERIA, NO LE INSISTIEROM EMN EL TRABAJO CON LAS CARTAS
HAUTICAS AL DEMOSTRARLES TENER ALGUN CONOCIMIENTC DE ELLO. RDIO

January 1993, Five terrorists on board a vessel armed with heavy
machine guns and other weapons were detained by the U.S.
:numrd service while heading for the Cuban coast. They were
set

November 1994. The terrorist Luis Posada Carriles and five of his
accomplices smuggled weapons into Cartagena, Colombia, during
the 4th Ibero-American Summit, in order to carry out an attack
ngainst President Fidel Castro. Posada Carriles would later declare
to The New York Times: “1 was standing behind some journalists
and | saw Fidel Castro’s friend, Garcio Marquez, but | only managed
to see Castro from a distance.”
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% SUBSEQUENTLY IN THE AIRPORT AT MIAMI WHEN THEY DEPARTED
7 FOR CANCUN.

| HIMSELF AND RAFAEL ANTONIO ORAMUNDO BLANCO FOR
- RAMIREZ ORO WITH THEIR RESPECTIVE DRIVING LICENCES AND

: AND A CELL PHONE THAT WAS PERSONALLY HANDED TO HIM BY

% /AROUND FEBRUARY TWENTY SEVEN HE LEFT FROM MIAMI RIVER
{ OUTBOARD MOTORS, TWENTY TWO FEET LENGTH AND SIX FEET

ALBERTO MONZON DETALLO QUE TAMBIEN LE DEC
AMGEL BOMET LE ENSENO UN CO
rum.lm E:I‘f'T-"E'I‘

EN UNA C
LE‘I".F‘]:FH QUE SE PROPIEDAD
BOR LO QUE SUPO ‘

.F.t- 4
INDIVIDUO MAS VINCULADD A

“ALBERTO MONZON . . . 'CHIQUITICO.' . . . 'ARNOLD STORE
OWNED BY MONZON,’” FOR WHICH REASON IT IS PRESUMED THAT
THE LATTER IS REALLY CALLED ARNALDO. . . CUBAN AMERICAN
NATIONAL FOUNDATION,

“IT MEANT THAT MONZON HAD A LOT TO DO WITH THE SUPPLY OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES FOR CAVA'S ACTIVITIES, PROVIDING MONEY
» + » FOR SUBVERSIVE PLANS. HE SAID GOODBYE TO THEM AT THE
MIAMI RIVER WHEN THEY CARRIED OUT THE INCURSION AND

A, . . USING THE IDENTITY OF WILIAN ORTEGA CALDERON FOR

WITH TEMPORARY RESIDENCE IN THE UNITED STATES, AS WELL
AS A MOTOROLA BEEPER, WHICH HAD TO BE TESTED IN CUBA

NOVO SAMPOLL SO THAT HE COULD PROVIDE ONGOING
INFORMATION THIS WAY....

IN A ‘OPERVICHER' SPEED BOAT WITH TWO 200-HORSEPOWER

WIDE, WHILE JOSE ENRIQUE LEFT WITH LIGHTWEIGHT TERRORIST
EQUIPMENT INSIDE A BRIEFCASE IN A YACHT WITH A CREW OF
THREE OTHERS WHICH THEY TOWED UNTIL THEY APPROACHED
CUBAN JURISDICTIONAL WATERS. DURING THE CROSSING, A
THIRD VESSEL TRANSSHIPED IN OPEN SEA A PLASTIC CONTAINER
WITH AROUND FIFTY POUNDS OF (-4 EXPLOSIVE.

“ .  ONCE THIS FIRST OPERATION WAS CARRIED OUT ,
SUCCESSFULLY, TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS WERE HANDED TO JOSE
ENRIQUE AND FOUR THOUSAND TO HIM, IN ADDITION TO TWO
THOUSAND THAT THEY HAD GIVEN HIM VIA CREDIT CARD, MONEY
WHICH WAS TO GUARANTEE THE REST OF THE OPERATION INSIDE
CUBA PASSING AS COSTA RICAN TOURISTS.

July 12, 1995, Three
terrorist elements were
detained in the United

“ON MARCH FIFTH OF THE CURRENT YEAR RAMIREZ ORO AND HE
DEPARTED FROM MIAMI FOR CANCUN WHERE THEY WERE HELPED
BY SOMEONE KNOWN AS JULIO PEREZ, A CUBAN WHO HAD BEEN
INTRODUCED BY GULLERMO NOVO SAMPOLL AS HAVING LINKS
WITH AND KNOWLEDGE OF THE ‘FOUNDATION." ”

States when they attempted
to infiltrate Cuba. In spite
of carrying weapons and
explosives, they were set
free by U.S. authorities.




December 16, 1995. Two individuals were detained in the United States in the attempt
to infiltrate Cuba to engage in terrorist activities. In spite of carrying weapons and
explosives, they were set free by U.S. authorities.

January 23, 1996. U.S. authorities intercepted a vessel at Key Marathon with five
armed terrorists on board heading for Cuba. They were set free the same day by the
FBI.

November 1996. Channel 23 of Miami television broadcast a live interview with Luis
Posada Carriles and Orlando Bosch. They emphasized their intentions to continue
with their terrorist activities against Cuba.
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CONCLUSIONES

FPRIMERA- Que el producto ccupado en la cubeta pldstica contiene
como sustancia explosiva HEXOGEND y corresponde a un
explosive de tipo pldstico de composicidn C-4,
clasificado como rompedor de alta potencia y utilizade
con fines militares.

Que el producto exploszive de gomposicidn C-4 investigado
posee caracteristicas semejSglfeczy al producide en los

Estados Unides (USA), seg andlisis practicados ¥
la biblicgrafia especialg conSUltadd, —=====cccsamma=
Que el corddén det téginvestigade es producide con t
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On May 28, 1998, the terrorists Ernestino
Abreu Horta and Vicente Marcelino Martinez
Rodriguez disembarked on the coast of Pinar

del Rio from Miami. They were assigned the
mission, among other directives, of carrying
out subversive activities that would sow
panic amongst the population.
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October 27, 1997. The U.S. coastguard detained a vessel west of Puerto Rico,
which had two high precision weapons on board. One of the crewmembers
tlaimed that they were planning to assassinate President Fidel Castro when
he arrived ot Isla Margarita in Venezvela, to attend the Ibero-American
Summit on November 7, 1997,

The U.S. authorities specified that the powerboat was registered to a Florida
company, the president of which is o board member of the Cuban American
National Foundation. One of the weapons was registered in the name of the
Foundation’s president, who was not even charged, The powerboat’s four
crewmembers were identified as active members of terrorist groups operating
out of U.S. territory against Cuba. In spite of confessions made and proof of
illegal possession of weapons, false statements and arms trafficking, after an
entangled legal frial, o Federal Court absolved them in December 1999,

The Cuban government had done everything in its power to
ensure that the U.S. avthorities fulfilled their obligation to
put an end to these illegal activities being carried out from
within its territory. For this purpose it had supplied precise
information and documentary proof on facts, plans and the
perpetrators. For example, on June 16 and 17, a delegation
that included two senior FBI members was passed detailed
information in Havana on forty ferrorists. All of them
continue fo operate with impunity.

_;-.".--'—5\.: ‘\\

1Y



September 4, 1997: detonations of explosive devices in the
Triton, Chateau-Miramar and Copacabana hotels. A young
Italian tourist, Fabio Di Celmo, died as a result of the
explosion in the Copacabana. The same day another bomb
went off in La Bodeguita del Medio restaurant.

REFUBLICA DE TUBA
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—— EN EL LOCAL GUE OCUPH EL  CORGAND DE INSTRUCCION DEL
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SALVADOR ,
FESBTIZA,
DE FIIL
EEGUMDD #
LABORAEA
PRODLIECIC
NUMERD
REFLIEL TCA
——— Gl
HOVENTA
" GEMERAL
SAN  BAL\
ADAPTARSE
FPROBLEMAE
ENTRERAR
ESENCIAL
ESCOLAR .
—— Al
RELACIOWS
AL GUNCE
DRELLAY
DOs PRI

COMTRAT
COHTR#A
PASANDL
EMCARGE
ALCTAM]
ALREDEL
CONTRATY
DURANTE
AGEMCTY
AMIGOS,
EDUARDI
Pl‘-li_m
DE‘CIR
FOREL 'l.T

“RAUL ERNESTO CRUZ LEON, CITIZEN OF SAN SALVADOR, |
REPUBLIC OF SAN SALVADOR, WITH PASSPORT NUMBER

“T0 A SUBJECT NAMED FRANCISCO ANTONIO CHAVEZ
ABARCA, NICKNAMED EL PANZON, BECAUSE HE WAS
OVERWEIGHT, ASSIDUOUS VISITOR OF....

“FOR THE SAKE OF OBTAINING MONEY, AT APPROXIMATELY |
THE END OF LAST YEAR HE WAS OFFERED THE OPPORTUNITY °
T0 CARRY OUT ATTACKS USING EXPLOSIVES. . . . e Y SE

A MEXICH
'1ES, HA

“THE ACCUSED ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FROM THE OUTSET HE aWRURREN
ACCEPTED IMMEDIATE RECRUITMENT, WITHOUT HAVING =T
BEEN TOLD THE DETAILS OF THE OPERATION HEWAS TO G toees
CARRY OUT. FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS OPERATION HE WAS sl
SHOWN A PACKAGE IN DECEMBER 1996, APPARENTLY A -"_[;Lm_r'm:
FACTORY PACKAGE, SAYING THAT IT CONTAINED C-4 PLASTIC ZTzS
EXPLOSIVE AND BOTH HEADED FOR A BEACH ON THE LU0 '_nn_
OUTSKIRTS OF SAN SALVADOR WHERE CHAVEZ ABARCA,  TENSRESS
USING THIS EXPLOSIVE, A CALCULATOR, A BATTERY, 01

A CIRCUIT, A DETONATING CAPSULE AND A VOLTIMETER OR 3

TESTER TO TEST THE DEVICE BEFOREHAND, PREPARED THE

BOMB AND BLEW IT UP BESIDE SOME STONES. ..."” M
MERT 2
BARRTGA

AT | 1 3 \ | o IV HO MIRA

L g HACEA ABPAID Y

l "'hLﬂl:UTﬂﬁ '*' Adld, DE FELD
BIN all 'EF‘EEIFICF\ como
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__n...n-‘.'-"""




On September 4, 1997, the mercenary Raol Ernesto Cruz I.eénh:s:ivndoroun citizen and
resident of Sulvutlot, was detained as the person responsible for causing explosinns in the
Capri, Nacional, Triton, Chateau-Miramar and Copacabana hotels, as well as in the Bodeguita

del Medio restaurant. On June 12, 1997, he had been recrvited and trained by Francisco

Chavez

“HE ALSO STATED THAT IN THE MONTH OF MAY, ALTHOUGH HE
COULDN'T REMEMBER THE EXACT DATE, CHAVEZ ABARCA
CONTACTED HIM AGAIN AND PUT IT TO HIM THAT HE CARRY
OUT A MISSION INVOLVING PLACING TWO EXPLOSIVE DEVICES
IN ANOTHER COUNTRY, WITHOUT STATING WHERE, AND THEN,
WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE ACCUSED, IN THE MONTH OF
JUNE LAST CHAVEZ TOLD HIM THAT THE COUNTRY WAS CUBA,
WHICH SURPRISED THE ACCUSED BECAUSE HE....

"FOR THE SAKE OF BOOSTING HIS MORALE CHAVEZ ABARCA
TOLD HIM THAT HE HAD BLOWN UP A BOMB IN A HOTEL IN
CUBA AND HE HADN'T HAD ANY PROBLEMS. HE REITERATED
THE PROPOSAL THAT FOR COMING TO CUBA AND CARRYING
OUT TWO ATTACKS OF THIS KIND HE WOULD RECEIVE THIRTY
THOUSAND COLONES, WHICH IS A LITTLE OVER THREE
THOUSAND DOLLARS OUT OF....

THEY HAD TO WAIT FOR INSTRUCTIONS ON HIS FINAL
DEPARTURE, WHICH MADE HIM REALIZE THAT THERE WERE

= OTHER PEOPLE GIVING ORDERS TO CHAVEZ ABARCA . . . THAT
" ON AROUND JULY 4TH LAST CHAVEZ ABARCA REQUESTED HIS
! PASSPORT TO INITIATE PROCEDURES FOR ACQUIRING A VISA
= AND TICKET TO CUBA, HELPING THE ACCUSED IN THE

: lGE"ﬂ [N ]

AND FINALLY HE HANDED HIM FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS...."

“HE EXPLAINED THAT ON THAT SAME NIGHT HE SET ABOUT
PREPARING THE BOMBS IN HIS ROOM, STARTING TO
CONNECT THE CIRCUITS OF THE CALCULATORS ON THE
BEDSIDE TABLE, HE TESTED THE...."

Abarca, a Salvadorean and mulani in El Salvador, under the guidance and with the
financial support of Luis Clemente Posada Carriles.

Ehe New Pork Times

Mas financed activities
against the Cuban
government,” says
Posada Carriles.

| “Inan interview given to The

New York Times on the

| condition that no photographs

be taken and his whereabouts

| were not revealed, the Cuban

% “HE ADDED THAT ON THE NIGHT OF JULY 8TH CHAVEZ ABARCA i
= ARRIVED AT HIS HOME WITH THE MATERIALS FOR THE ... .

& "IN RELATION TO HIS TRIP TO THE COUNTRY CHAVEZ

- ABARCA INDICATED THAT HE WOULD ARRIVE VIA COSTA

- RICA AND RETURN VIA GUATEMALA, ARRIVING IN CUBA IN
- LATE EVENING. ...

exiled Luis Posada Carriles

{ made it clear that the

deceased leader of the Cuban

American National

Foundation, Jorge Mas
Canosa, ‘controlled
everything’ in reference to
money sent to finance his
activities against Fidel
Castro’s government.”

Ann Lovise Bardach and Larry Rother
The New York Times, July 12, 1998.
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g ... A SECURITY GUARD, WALKING TOWARD THE

%l HOTEL CAPRI, AND ONCE INSIDE HE AGAIN
INSPECTED THE ARMCHAIRS IN THE LOBBY WHERE
HE PLANNED TO PLACE THE EXPLOSIVES AND AS HE
SAW THAT NOBODY. ...

", . . EXPLOSIVES THAT HE PUT BEHIND THE ARMCHAIR
WHERE HE WAS SITTING, THAT IS TO SAY, BETWEEN
THE SEAT AND THE WALL, HIDDEN . . . INMEDIATELY
LEAVING THE HOTEL AND HEADING FOR THE
mom‘ LELN

“REPEATING THE SAME OPERATION IN THE LOBBY
BATHROOM, HE ACTIVATED THE EXPLOSIVE CHARGE,
PUTTING THE CALCULATOR TIMER AT FIVE MINUTES IN
SUCH A WAY THAT IT WOULD EXPLODE AT THE SAME
TIME AS THAT HE HAD PLACED IN THE CAPRL. ...

", WITHDRAWING AS FAST AS POSSIBLE, HEARING
YN THE EXPLOSION WHILE HE WAS GOING DOWN THE
M STEPS. IN THE SAME SEAT THERE WAS. .. "

FERDATAREE  LUE k&
RGA EXFLOSIVA, EXTRAE
fEFAcTo ¥ LO  coLoca
BIMNA DE TELEFONDS,
L EXPLOSION CUANDO
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“Jorge conirolled everything,’ said Posada.
"Whenever | needed money, he used to say that
he would send me $5,000, $10,000, $15,000,
and he would send it.’

"Posada calculates that over the year Mas sent
him more than $200,000. ‘He never said that
this was the Foundation’s money,” he commented
laughing. ‘The money would arrive with

a message: This is for the Church.

.| “The New York Times cited Posada saying that
ﬁ Mas Canosa had given him money for several

of his terrorist activities, and according fo the

newspaper version he linked it with the wave

of bomb attacks that took place in Cuba last

By Rui Ferreira, El Nvevo Herald

¢ "HE POINTED OUT THAT AT THE TIME OF PLACING THE EXPLOSIVE HE FELT THAT HE WAS
g > [N ADIFFICULT SITUATION BECAUSE HE HAD LITTLE TIME LEFT AND THERE WAS A GIRL
"> % THERE, BUT IN SPITE OF EVERYTHING HE PUT THE BOMB BECAUSE HE HAD BEEN
" k8" Wl ENTRUSTED WITH A MISSION, THINKING THAT THE SHOCK WAVES. . . .

s ,r‘: -

Ak "9~ “nuGUST 30, WHEN HE FINALLY COLLECTED THEM, DISCOVERING AMONGST THE TRIP
21 AT g ' FACLTES A TOUR EXCURSION T0 VARADERD, WHICH THE DEFENDANT HAD REQUESTED
R\, FROM CHAVEL... "
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“While the police in Cuba were arresting Ravl
Ernesto Cruz Leon, one of the Salvadoreans, last

September, Posada and two other conspirators

in Guatemala were trying to introduce more
explosives info Havana, according to two people
with deep knowledge of the affair.”

“THE MEANS OF TERRORIST ACTIVITY. HE OPENED UP THE
BACK PART OF THE TELEVISION WITH A TOOL THAT HAD
BEEN GIVEN TO HIM FOR THIS PURPOSE, TOOK OUT THE
TWO PACKAGES OF EXPLOSIVES, WHICH SPLIT AT SEVERAL
POINTS ON BEING EXTRACTED, AND THE ELECTRICAL
CIRCUITS PACKAGE, ALL WRAPPED IN BLACK PLASTIC AND
INSULATING TAPE OF THE SAME COLOR. HE SEARCHED THE
ROOM FOR A PLACE TO HIDE THE EXPLOSIVE DUE TO... .

L KEWISE, HE STATES THAT HE HEADED TOWARD THE
HOTEL CHATEAU-MIRAMAR, TAKING MORE OR LESS FIVE  JRETRES
MINUTES TO GET THERE FROM THE COPACABANA AND HE  [Siarime
ENTERED AROUND ELEVEN AND FORTY. . ..

“DIRECT TO THE BATHROOM TO PREPARE THE EXPLOSIVES,
ALTHOUGH THE DEVICE IN THE COPACABANA HAD NOT YET
BLOWN UR...

“THAT HE SAT DOWN IN THE LOBBY WHERE HE WAS TO
PUT THE BOMB, TO HIS RIGHT THERE WAS A DESK WITH

SOME PEOPLE AROUND IT AND TO THE OTHER SIDE WERE
PEOPLE WHO WATCHED HIM SIT DOWN....

“HE RELATED HOW HE WALKED OUT AND HEADED FOR THE
TRITON CALCULATING THAT IT SHOULD TAKE BETWEEN TEN
AND FIFTEEN MINUTES TO COVER THE ROUTE....

"INSIDE THE BATHROOM HE ACTED THE SAME WAY AS THE
PREVIOUS CASES, BUT IN THIS TIME HE GAVE ONLY NINE
MINUTES T0 BLOW UR.. . ."




- GUE IMCLUSD EN
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“, . . THEY SAT DOWN ON THE SOFA TO HIS LEFT AND THEN
A CHILD OF BETWEEN TWELVE AND FIFTEEN YEARS OLD SAT
DOWN OPPOSITE THE DEFENDANT, WHILE TWO OTHER
SLIGHTLY OLDER GIRLS DID THE SAME ON ANOTHER SOFA
TO HIS RIGHT. ...

"HE ADMITS THAT IN SPITE OF EVERYTHING HE TOOK THE
DECISION TO PLACE IT RIGHT THERE AND THEN AFTER
CARRYING OUT SOME MANEUVERS WITH.. ..

“HE TOOK A PRIVATE TAXI FROM THE DOOR OF THIS
TOURIST VENUE AND ASKED THE DRIVER TO TAKE HIM TO
THE RIVIERA HOTEL WITH THE AIM OF CONFUSING HIM
T100.... THAT WHEN THEY REACHED THE WIDE AVENUE
"ﬂ!l:ilnl'ﬂ THE TRITON HOTEL THE EXPLOSION WAS

A PRIVATE CAR LEFT HIM IN EL FLORIDITA RESTAURANT,
FROM WHERE HE HEADED TO LA BODEGUITA DEL MEDIO
BECAUSE HE HAD PLANNED TO PLACE THE REMAINING
EXPLOSIVE DEVICE THERE. . . ."

VI EHAN, 1 ] LT T ™
8.J0  DE ) DELAMTERD DEREC
FORGLIE PODTIA @ GEF

|

A PUSD
ALOUILO LI TAXI

Cruz Leon declared to the Special Rapporteur for the United Nations Commission for Human Rights that he had acted for
money and that he had felt like a movie hero fulfilling a mission. Chavez Abarea’s instruction had been simply to cause
us much chaos as possible. Recently imprisoned, the accused had grasped the full significance of what he had done and
asked for forgiveness from the victims and their families, and from the Cuban people. He believed that he did not
deserve to be executed for his activities.

“The responsibility of agents operating outside of Cuba is clear. In the
course of a statement to The New York Times and during an interview
with CBS, while the Salvadorean Cruz Leon was being tried, Luis Posada
Carriles admitted that through his agent he had paid money to Cruz Leon
to carry out the attacks and that plans for further attacks that would
cause serious problems in Cuba were under way.”

From the Special Rapporteur’s report on Mercenaries for the UN Human Rights Commission
during his visit to Cuba from September 12 to 17, 1999.



No state can legitimately consent to or authorize the use of its
territory to form or hide organizations that have as their goal to
plan or carry out activities leading to hostility against another
country or its government. The Special Rapporteur must state that
it represents in itself an injustice that while the culprits involved
in the attacks have been severely punished, those who recruited,
trained and contracted them, who provided the material and
explosives, the fuke documents and who paid them, are at large
and enjoying impunity in those countries where they are currently
located. They are perhaps even more guilty that those who actu-
ally carried out the attacks, of ongoing criminal behavior. The
organizations on whose behalf the detainees acted are guilty.

From the Special Rapporteur’s report on Mercenaries
for the UN Human Rights Commission during his visit
to Cuba from September 12 to 17, 1999.
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On Munduv, 0 ember .‘22 1999, fnﬂ'rfeeﬁllegul
emigrants :upsued ina fruglle vessel just a few mﬂe
off the coast of Florida, and a five-year old Cubanlboy,
was discovered :Imgmg to the inner tuberu o 1£|‘r II@
not fur from Miami. -%'-'-"

For six months, against the) Wil of his iui Lr:u r{;l a wes
who were manipulated by |I1e Coban American nhonul
Foundation kidnapped him. # Werte 2
Following'a I?g'ﬂkprutess that reuth he U.S? upreme
Court uml 'ﬁhe upportofieig er cent otithe
populationfaccordinagtoolls,: :hll {fvastableito
retur 1 ICUk

Dur ng;ihe 'EIIfFBluMJjﬂu isttather; uug forithe’

Pt isfson a eaufii_!'l_g_; ild'ay uppeure;l dayiin
l:lmlI uv on'the pugeslnf the'world/press,andfon
international TV | news repurisﬂmﬁu'm!eim Elian
Gnn:ule:.
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The Cuban Adwsimenl Act

It is the cause that such e - %
a delicate problem was S ST . e~
creumlmfhudlild RSN ——h
forlusmhu e o o I :
whodidmhumﬁw : :

Law to adjust the status of Cuban refugees
to that of lawful permanent residents in the
United States and for other purposes.

“, . . Without prejudice to that stipulated in
section 245 of the Immigration and
Naturalization Act . . . the status of any
foreign native or Cuban citizen . . . inspected
and accepted . . . after Janvary 1, 1959...
may be adjusted . . . in accordance with the
regulations prescribing that a foreigner
legally admitted to reside permanently...
will be applied to their spouse and
children. ..

. . . admitted legally . . . to reside
permanently. ...
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Immigration authorities handed the boy
over fo distant relatives who have been
living in the United States for fifteen years,
nine years prior to the birth of Elidn. The
authorities did not demand any
documentary proof of the distant family
relationship. Subsequently, a Miami judge,
Rosa Rodriguez, awarded the great uncle,
who had seen the child only once before in
his life, the custody of the boy.

Violated articles of the Convention on the Rights of the Child:

- Right to refain nuﬁunuli’l!. ‘
- Right not to be separated from the parents.
- Right to remain in the child’s cultural context.

UNICEF
- =




The note continued by saying that Juan Miguel Gonzdlez, born
in Cdrdenas, and fulharﬂi?%ﬁ?@f&ﬂr—uld child, Elidn
Gonzdlez, had contacted the Foreign Ministry, requesting that
procedures be initiated for reclaiming his son. Elidn had
miraculous survived the disaster at open sea after being
illegally taken out of the country, without prior consultation, by
his stepfather and Juan Miguel's former wife, who had the
custody of the boy, both of whom died at sea.

The Cuban-American extremists were intent on putting Juan Miguel
under strong pressure. They offered him two million dollars if he
traveled to Miami and remained in the United States with the child.

Elian’s relatives closed him off in
a house in Little Havana.
Terrorists belonging fo the Cuban
American National Foundation,
led by Jorge Mas Santos, Ninoska
Pérez, Congress members lleana
Ross Lehtinen, Lincoln Diaz
Balart, José Basulto, and the
Miami mayors Alex Penelas and
Joe Carollo, and other individuals
from the Cuban-American Mofia




A simple case of acknowledging the
parental authority of a loving father would
have been resolved in any other part of the
world, except for the United States, in
relation to Cuba. A routine procedure
became a nightmare for Elian, and

a political, commercial and publicity show
for his captors in Miami.

The kidnappers bedazzled him with
expensive toys, clothes and jewelry; he was
given a new bicycle and a huge Mickey
Mouse cartoon figure but the child showed
an astonishing ability to resist and became
increasingly aggressive.

One evening, while he was playing in the
kidnapper’s garden, he heard the sound of
an aircraft flying over the place. He liffed /8
his arms to the sky and cried out, “I WANT
YOU TO TAKE ME BACK TO CUBA.”

To attempt to uproot a child, to try to buy
him off with toys, to make him forget his -
mother tongue, the love of his father, his

liftle brother, cousins and grandparents,

to wrench his identity away from him and to
paw his innocence is an outrageous crime,
committed right in front of the television
cameras. The U.S. people reacted
immediately: The child must be refurned 8 of justice:

to his father and the rest of his family. ). P! .nd his fatk







“There is no question that Mr. Gonzdlez is in fact
Elian’s father. Furthermore, Mr. Gonzdlez has
maintained a close paternal and ongoing
relationship with his son. During interviews with
the INS, Elidn’s father provided clear details about
his paternal relationship with his son and about the
nature of their father-son tie. He gave abundant
information about Elidn’s education, about his &
health record, and showed photos of him, and other 58
family members, together with Elidan frequently

taking part in different activities. This atmosphere

and tﬂe level of details provided by

Mr. Gonzdlez helped the INS to understand the
nature and the closeness of the relationship
between Mr. Gonzdlez and his son Elidn.”

This was the INS conclusion after several of its officials traveled
to Cuba and interviewed Elidn’s father, Juan Miguel Gonzdlez.



Elian’s grandmothers met in Washington with Janet
Reno and Doris Meissner, district attorney and
Immigration and Naturalization Service
Commissioner respectively, on Saturday, January 22,

2000. They informed both officials that they wanted
to see the boy for a few hours at least, while they
were waiting for U.S. government to take the logical
decision.

... He hardly spoke, he wasn't
expressive and he had never been
like that. He was always very
affectionate; he used fo kiss me,
hug me and tease me all day
long. . ..

... They have changed him
completely; he has to be saved,

. saved right away and taken back to
. his father and his family. . .

... | feel really Our grandchild is
terrible because 4 entirely different.
¢4 the reason for the 1 & He has changed
A visit was to see the - utterly; we have
boy and take him got to save him as

"W bodk with us. .. 7 auickly os possible

... The farewell was very sad. When we went to say goodbye to him, they came

o and told us that the visit was over. Put yourselves in our place, imagine you go

- to see a family member who was being kept prisoner and you are told: the visit
j| is over, you have fo go; they took the child and led him away. ...

But eyes are sightless. You have to seek with your heart.

Antoine de Saint-Exupéry.
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My son is being hur msuch o way l‘huf
unfortunately, couvld hat l'lfe-ﬁ%?\ .

consequences. Every day,that passes, the
damage grows. Those who can prevent it are
under the moral obligation to act with
exfreme urgency.
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The boy's disf;wlte, bloodcurdling grimaces and

ayattimt Jookithe direction of a home video camera,
were the diabblical prelude to images of the boy who
was to say, “Dad, | don’t want to go to Cuba, if you
want, stay li€re. | am not going to Cuba. Dall, you

that old wofan who went fo the nun’s hous&uw

take me t0%Cuba. | tell her, and | am telling yoU,
you are dil saying I want fo go to Cuba, botf | am
saying that | don’t want to go to fdba. If you wdht
to tire yourselves out that's up fo yBu, but | don’t want,
fo go 10 Cuba.”

’
0




on.JL -_n #‘ guel Gﬂnmlez went to the schppl to collect his son Elidn fo spend the weekend

it Elizabeth Brotons, his former wife and the mother of the boy, had taken him
t med him in the afternoon. This seemed normal to Juan Miguel in his
le-Since he ond Elizabeth had separated on the best of terms, two years previously, the
;,E. AT'% the uml spent his days beiween his father and mother’s homes. However,
th's door was padlocked, not | just the whole weekend, biit on Monday too, Juan Miguel
: investigafed.the matter. That was how he got the bad
1 news ﬂmthﬁhe;un to-become public kriowledge in the
town of Cardenas: Elidn’s mother had taken him to
Miami, together with 12 other people, in.an aluminum
: sel of 5.5 m length with l;%ecrepit engine that hod
® been repeatedly repaired, and without life preservers.

-
r #

It wos November 22, 1999. ‘That day mylifewas

| over,’ said Juan Miguel four months later. Sincetheir
=4 | divorce he had maintained a stable and cordial

reluhunshlp with Elizabeth, Ihuf was, however, somewhat unusual, as they continued fo live under the
same roof and share dreams in the same hed in the hope that, as lovers, they would have the child
that they had never been able to have while married. It seemed impussihle; Elizabeth conceived but
miscarried continuously in the first four months of the pregnancy. After seven miscarriages, and with
the help of medical specialists, the much longed-for child was born, for whom a unique name had
been thought of since the time of marriage: Elidn.




“It should be pointed out fo those who are
mistaken about the name of the boy: it does
not come from the Bible nor was it a discovery
by Rubén Dario. Far from thinking about the

lives of the saints, the couple did what so
many others do in Cuba: they linked the first

three letters of the mother's name and the last

two of the father's name.

~ “Elizabeth was 28 years old when she took
the boy fo Miami. She had been a good
student for hotel waitress and was always
friendly and helpful as a first-class waitress in
the hotel Paradiso-Punta Arenas in Varadero.
In love with Juan Miguel since she was 14
years old, she married him when she was
eighteen. "We were like brother and sister,
said Juan Miguel, a calm and good-natured
man who also worked in Varadero as a cashier
in Josone Park. Following the divorce, and
with the child . . . they continued living in
Cardenas, with the brother-sister relationship
he mentioned still intact .. . until she fell in
love with @ man who cost her her life, Lazaro
Rafael Munero, an unemployed flashy type,
a womanizer who learned judo not as part

of a physical education program, but rather to fight. He had
been sentenced to two years imprisonment for robbery with
violence at the Hotel Siboney in Varadero. In the meantime,
Juan Miguel married Nelsy Carmenate, with whom he currently
has a six-month old son, who was the center of Elian’s life until
Elizabeth took him to Miami.

#iagl ... the one who was behind it and led the whole operation
\ail was Ldzaro Munero, who had taken part in two dlandestine

trips to the United States fo make the preparations. In this way
he had the right contacts and a lot of pluck to fuke not just
Elizabeth with her son but also a younger brother, his own
father, who was over seventy, and his mother, still recovering

#¥| from a heart attack. His partner in the operation fook his entire

family: his wife, his parents and his brother, and a neighbor
that lived opposite, whose husband was waiting for her in the
United States. At the last minute, via a payment of a thousand
dollars per person, a young woman of twenty-two, Arianne
Horta, her five-year old daughter, Esthefany, and Nivaldo
Vladimir Ferndndez, a friend’s husband, boarded the vessel.
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“Finally, they set out at dawn on the 22nd, with a cal¥Sea but a troublesome engine. This was~ ~
the end forthem, in @ black night and a’nightgrare of panic. The older people that didmot .
know how.to'swim should have drowned immediately. A factor that sealed the-fate of the

majority was the Dimenhidrinate, which in e{led.prevem seasickness, but causes |Ii'cml'ﬂ'lllaai'-.',‘k
and slows down reflexes. _ i f
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But the time to return to Cuba had not arrived.
Extremists stamped their feet on the U.S. flag in Miami
and provoked riofing.

On June 28, the Supreme Court decided that Elian
should return to Cuba. Over seven months had gone

¥ by since the child had arrived in the United States. The
" nightmare was over.

U.S. television showed the world an image that puzzled viewers. lookinlg‘ up to
the sky, this Cuban-American woman, resident in Miami, shouted out, while the
aircraft that was taking the child home flew over the city, “FATHER ABOVE,
CRASH THAT PLANE, CRASH THAT PLANE!”



fational
SUmbol.”

T AL ey

i
B 3 _.:_‘ " _;.-:.. & - . A W, r.‘f l. ,
¢ 3 'Iv,r_ }if‘ ?I ﬁ [ q

i |} »
[ i, g ’
o et e’ L T
' e \ ¥ 5 E







< # A
o
-

:;..3, S o
P blmzed —
ierrorlsi "
kidnapping of a o
child in the

world had come
to an end.




""Other consequences of the

Between 1959 and 2001 a total of 51 Cuban planes were hijacked, and the majority were
forced to fly to the United States. Many of the planes still remain there in the United
States, shamelessly stolen by the Miami Mafia. More than a few pilots, guards and other
people have been murdered or injured in the course of these hijackings. The U.S.
government has never punished any of the hijackers involved.

On the other hand, between 1968 and 1984, a total of 71 planes were hijacked in the
United States and forced to fly to Cuba. A total of 69 participants in these actions have
been tried and imprisoned in Cuba. The vast majority of them have left the country after
finishing their sentence.

On September 18, 1980, the Cuban government returned two hijackers to the United
States, putting them in the hands of the U.S. Justice, after making a public warning that it
would act the same way in future cases.

With these measures Cuba put an end to hijacking
planes and diverting them to its territory.




Cuban Adjustment Act”

Marine vessels have also been hijacked and those
who have murdered for their own ends have not
been put on trial nor punished; they are free
within the United States.

August 6, 2002
_ y Avgust 27, 2002
Five people hijacked the vessel
Plastico 16, based at La Coloma, (ban authorities made an official presentation,
Pinar del Rio. via Note 1428, of a request for the hijackers fo
be returned to Cuba. Months later they were
Janvary 29, 2003 given their freedom in the United States.
The vessel Cabo Corriente is hijacked from the Isle of Youth
and taken fo the United States. Cuban authorities

presented a diplomatic note calling for the retum of the
four hijackers and of the aforementioned vessel. The
United States authorities have not replied, but it freed the =%
hijackers immediately. o

e

A sailor murdered and

thrown info the water by

Lhe hijacker of a passenger
oﬂ"

The murderer reaches
Miami, He was not
returned, tried or punished.




March 19, 2003

7:24 p. A DC-3 plane belonging to the National
Company of Air Services, covering the Nueva
Gerona-Havana route, is hijacked. Ten miles south
of the Boyeros airport, when the plane was ready
to land, the captain of the plane informed Air Traffic
Control at Boyeros that he had problems on board
and that he was heading north; for this reason he
requested the coordinates for the most direct route
because he had a fuel shortage, and would head
for Key West.

March 20, 2003

The head of the U.S. Interests Section in Havana
is contacted and a diplomatic note is handed to
him demanding the return of the passengers and
crew, the hijackers and of the plane itse

A similar note is handed to the Department of
State in Washington.

April 10, 2003

A US. federal judge ratified the decision of
a Florida magistrate to release on bail the six
Cubans accused of hijacking and diverting the
Cuban DC-3 plane on last March 19 with 31

passengers on hoard.




Why do they go? Because they are absolutely certain of impunity.
Because in more than a few cases they would be considered
inadmissible for residing in the United States if they were to follow
legal departure procedures, due to their eriminal records.

The total certainty of impunity and of the privileges and
advantages offered to them by this act are a powerful incentive
to engage in terrorism.

How is it possible to ignore the seriousness of carrying out

When these hijackings take place, involving children, women and the elderly
~honest Cubans-, they are subjected to malireatment on their arrival in
Florida, handcufted and detained for several days against their will.

March 31, 2003

An AN-24 plane, with 46 people on board, including 6 children, traveling from the Isle
of Youth to the José Marti airport in Havana, was hijacked by an individual who
carried a grenade in his hand and threatened to blow up the plane if he were not
supplied with sufficient fuel to continue to the United States.



The group that took over the vessel was

comprised ofllpt:-oplet!nd they made the \ \\ \“ , Ill! e

29 passengers their captives. Included among “ ; e |
the captives were children and four young \\ \\\ m M 'l'"
tourist women (two French and two Nordics) B '
who were the first to beithreatened with death S ARG bkind fhe Fiadkdng
as their captors were aware of the damage had been imrnlvfd indls iudiftiul
that this would cause to the country’s economy. :“::;::u‘:ﬂ'ﬂ:qﬂr::ﬁ:m on

%Fﬂm he was sentent
Only/40 hours after the hijacking, with the fo pri

= uﬂmully warned for harassing
cooperation of the captivesthemselves, who " fourists.and 119 fimes he was taken

jumped into the wuter, vall hosiuges were ::::J:;E stations for different
rescued unharmed. - o
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ose who travel illegallyare people who would
never receive a visa due to their lack of educational
ot technical qualifications and because of their
social and criminal records. They choose very
carefully who they award visas to from a long list
that they compile . . . . So those who travel illegally
are those who do not receive the visa there. The
latter are the most violent and dangerous.
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EARS IN FLORIDA™

Major General retired Edward Atkenson, former
Director of Military Intelligence of the CIA and
senior fellow at the Institute of Land Warfare




Early on the morning of September 12, 1998, the FBI informed lleana Ros-Lehtinen
and Lincoln Diaz Balart, supporters of the Batista terrorist Mafia in Miami, that they
had just arrested Fernando Gonzalez Liort, Antonio Guerrero Rodriguez, Gerardo
Hernandez Nordelo, Ramon Labanino Salazar and René Gonzalez Sehwerert, as
presumed “agents” resident there. At that time the FBI was unaware of the identity
of three of the detainees and knew only that the other two had U.S. citizenship.

Although the Florida congressional delegation is composed of 25 members, the only
ones who were given prior warning by the investigators were the aforementioned
"legislators,” who did not hold positions in Congress related to security or intelligence
matters. Why were they privileged to this information? Why did they reveal to them
an “investigation” which had not yet been publicized?

The formal accusation would not be made for four days, but from the very outset it
was clear that the operation was of a political-repressive nature, the outcome of
which was none other than to please the most aggressive and violent sector that
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Antonio Guerrero Rodriguez

YOU ARE
To my son

You are my hand

if faraway friends | cannot greet.

You are my voice

if in the tribunes of ideas | cannot denounce.

You are my smile

if in the hours most pure | cannot console.

You are my dream

if the moment arrives | cannot dream.
June 30, 2001

“pPapa will return.

“He always showed concern for my health and my school work.
There was a lot of love and affection between us. 1 feel pride,
admiration and respect for him. | know he will return because
he is innocent, dignified and a patriot . .. he is an educated

person, highly trained, intelligent, good fun, tells good stories,
laughs. When he is annoyed he speaks in short sentences and
is sometimes cutting, but is always honest . . . he doesn't know
how to be spiteful and never forgets those who do him a favor.”

Tonito, Antonio’s son.

“My dear son:

] woke up very early in the moming thinking about you.

1 always think about you, about how you are and how your
schoolwork is coming along. 1 felt so happy when you wrote in
your letter and said on the phone that things are going well,
or rather very well. Happy birthday!

| WILL NOT DEFRAUD YOU (Fragment)
To my father

1 attend on this day to your name
on this singular day of summer

Austere, resolved, clear, faraway.
If | am so firm, father, do not be surprised.

| am not that one, but today | am the man
that your dreams lead by the hand.

| am not a child, but dean and sane,

to my firmness | put your renown.




"Don’t lose heart, always remember |
that you can achieve and you will
achieve what you want. . . . When you
are fired think about the love that
surrounds you, think how much 1 love
you and what | would want you to be,
remember that you can always give
more and you will be able to. Read
all you can, tales and stories that
inspire you, which will be an example
for you. Take care. It is certain that
we will see each other again,
although we will have to wait a little
while for that. With all my love.
Your father, Tony.”

Fragment of a letter written to his
son Gabriel, October 16, 2001.

““We do not have the freedom that we all desire, although in our hearts
and thoughts we are entirely free, but we have sufficient bravery and
dignity fo compensate for the lack of liberty. . . . We are here to
triumph. We have every reason in the world to look ahead to the
future, certain of better times to come. ...”

Fragment of a letter to his mother, October 20, 2001.




Fernando Gonzalez Llort
“My dear niece:

"} believe you when you say that if your
maturity depends on this situation,

would prefer to carry on with your idle
thoughts. . . . This is a sign of your affection
for me and of how painful this situation is for
you . . . from this situation a more mature
and stronger Laura will emerge, as you say.
0f course, | would prefer not to see you go
Illmnghihismdrgmmnwilym
about as a result of a less traumatic course
of events. ...

":ﬂl,bigkissirommwdevdnlomrw
a lof,

"Fernando.”

“Fernan is passionate about reading and prefers books about history. This is
parficularly the case right now when he spends a great deal of time reading, thanks
to books sent to him from all over the world, he shares reading with me, we study
each book and the context in which it was written.”

Rosa Aurora Freijanes, Fernando's wife.
#__.—-—-"—:ﬂr
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“Always trust in victory and keep your spirits as high as | can see
they are in your letter. Together with this letter | enclose all the
affection and love of a son who proudly sees your bravery and

4 :‘ strength during these difficult times. ...”

Fragment of the first handwritten letter received by his mother on
February 4, 2001, after several years without receiving any handwritten
letters by Fernando.

“The title of Heroes of the Republic of Cuba that has been awarded to
us is an immense honor and a hu'ghe morale boaster. At the same time,

it is a commitment to continue with this and with any other task or
struggle that has to be waged. ...

"I am so fortunate to receive from you not just maternal love,
unconditional and tender, but also the permanent motivation of
an attitude | admire and | am proud of. .. .”

Fragment of a dedication written on a birthday card to his mother.

“Today, three years on from being taken prisoner and at the point of
being sentenced, after having gone through situations that you know
about, | am not going to reiterate something | have already said in
this letter, | just want to use a phrase by Silvio Rodriguez in his song
’El Necio’ which has meant so much to us: | DIE AS | HAVE LIVED.. . .”

Fragment of a letter Fernando wrote to Rosa Aurora when they were taken for the second time to the “hole.”




Gerardo Hernandez Nordelo

Letter to my children that are to be born

e, =

CarTa A MIS WIT0S GUE ESTAN Pon NACER
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| willdsur how much | appreciate your years of

evotion,
your infinite silence and your immense bravery,
and you will know how much | yearn for returning
to your land,
to be reborn in your arms and feel your warmth.

It will arrive with tears of passion and joy

because, hidden in my heart, it will await
the refum,

and how much | would yearn, meanwhile
that day arrives,

that you, Mother, could read these verses.

Fragment of a poem that Gerardo wrote in the “hole,”
dedicated to his mother. |




“We have a very beautiful love story which is
Impos:illﬂe to I:rhedln illmimbuﬂhe
years will go by and our grow.

I have been, and 1 am, happy to share my life
with an extraordinary man who is today part
of this co ’s history. A man blessed with
enviable qualities and who knows how to
enrich and expand this wonderful feeling of
love. . . . Thank you for so much happiness
and for loving me so much. | miss you
mw---ﬂ

Fragment of the letter written by Adriana to Gerardo
on the occasion of their thirteenth wedding
anniversary, July 11, 2001.

“No memory that | can recall today is more
painful, no image in my mind is more bitter
than that of the tear running down your
cheek. Those tears that | have caused and
have not seen | also regret . . . | regret the
times that | walked, a h it was only
a few steps beside you, without taking your
hand. | regret all the times | looked at you
thinking, ‘My God, how beautiful she is’ and
didn’t say it to you. ...

] love you and my greatest desire, the one
mh always inm\rmim'l, the m:lu illnidis
ith me every moment of every day an
night, is that all of this will come to an end
and 1 will have enough time left to give you

what until now | have not given you....

"] love you, my bonsai”

Fragment of a letter from Gerardo to Adriana on their
thirteenth wedding anniversary.
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Ramon Labanino Salazar

“My beloved Laurita:

"When you receive this letter, on
touching it, | want you feel | am in every
letter, and that every comma, period and
sigh, is a huge kiss to you. And
it says | Im you, a lof, inﬁnile& mn
darling, my Ilﬂle girl, _my little ter,
my freasure, mine, mine. ...

", .. but | promise to erase all this time
apart, without your affection or mine,
without being able to bring you up, teach
you how to read and write, and so many

other things life has to offer, that | want
you o learn about. ...

“Your dad. | love you.”

| dedicate my devotion, my absence
to her

and all my sacrifices.

My silence was in honor of her
Today | am happy fo see you
multiplicated in a thousand mothers

and flags.
Fragment of the poam dedicated by Ramén to his dead mother.



“] love you and | believe that thanks to this love everything is so much more beavutiful. Thanks
to this love, vidory is closer every day. With every day that goes by | know that it is one day
less here, and one day closer to our final reunion to loving each other eternally. . . . Therefore,
every day that passes is also a more beautiful day in this love story....”

Fragment of a letter from Ramon to Elizabeth, his wife.

“You are 15 years old today. ...

"] could write you a beautiful poem today. . . . But

1 prefer, today, to talk about you and me, of our lives
and our love. And perhaps this is the most beautiful
poem that | have ever written for you....

"Right at that moment—when | heard about the
birth—1 knew what it meant to be a father, you have
given me the happiness of being a father for the first
time in my life. ...

“Love always overcomes!
my daughter,

love has overcome.
And then fifteen white roses fell away from the sun. ...

“] love you forever!”

"Your father
"Ramon Labanino Salazar”

Fragment of a letter by Ramaon to Aili.

“Letter to my daughters
"My beloved daughters,

| Now you will be able to understand why your father cannot spend time with you or
em many happy and joyful occasions that all fathers experience with their

chi

"Fo the time | have been absent, because | couldn’t be with mom when she was
pregnant, because | didn’t see you being born, because | couldn’t be there when you

gﬂd your lives, because | couldn’t change your diapers, or help you to take your
t tiny steps . . . and even for the reason that the youngest hardly knows me....

"But | want you to know that | went away because of the love | have for you and for
everyone. That wherever | have been, and wherever | will be, you will always be with

7] will return, have no doubts about that . . . and when | return we will rebuild all the
dreams and aspirations that have had to wait. ...

"See you soon,
"Papa Ramon”

Fragment of a letter from Ramén to his daughters.



René Gonzalez Sehwerert

For Irmita on her fifteenth birthday

Fly high butterfly. Break lances,
harvesting joy. And the chimeras would
be the legucy of your fifteen
spnngilms, Ihe petleml on which you
raise your universe, a solid base of love,
to which we proudly dedicate this verse.
And with confidence!

September 15, 1999.
“For my darling baby:

“On the date | was arrested, September
12, 1998, you were hardly four and a half
months old. On the previous night your
mother had gone to work and | stayed
hnmetnlwkuller you. When | gave you
your milk you fell into a deep sleep and

| decided to let you sleep on me while

| lay face up on the bed watching
television. When your mother arrived she
was so amused to see you sleeping like
that, with your limbs spread out and

a look of satisfaction on your face, that
she couldn’t resist taking a photo of us.
That was the last one in which we

appeared together.”




“René is the kind of person that
people call —in Cuban slang—
Feliciano’ (happy man) . .. is one
of the few people that | have
known who is unaware of the
value of material things; he is one
of those friends who would give
you everything without expecting
anything in exchange ... .”

i Fragment of a letter by Livan, René’s

young brother.
Don’t be afraid, that from seeds of nobility
a cowardice bile sprout putridly for the
vileness of this world is not enough to crush
the firm seed of nobleness.

Fragment of a poem by Rene to his parents.

“Be happy whatever the price. Don't allow
pessimistic thoughts or unpleasant memories,
or even the trace of a vile action that some
time gave you a bad moment. Think that you
overcame all those things, inside and outside
the jail by means of sheer force of
personality, morale and principles. . . .”

Fragment of a letter by René to his wife.




Period prior to the trial Necessary cooperation

“In the face of increased terrorist activities
with the United States as the base during
the 90s, in an endeavor to work jointly
against this scourge, the authorities
@ of the Cuban Ministry of the Interior
el provided the Federal Bureau of
Bilaistaris el atacine Investigation with detailed information
ALCTA EE IRTRSA, B§ KV EHCIAS about violent plots being hatched in

Emtee log dias 16 y 17 de funio de 1998, de fos Estados Unidos de H H H H H
i e ;:’::,..,,,.;{;’.,"'i.r do 1003, ona dulegaciin de los Exzados Unidos &4 Miami, tnggfher with video and audio
:‘:n d":g:rgﬂl:do m ] Mﬁz’?;:cm Iup:ﬂmyar anl;?ﬂm:am “lpes; u“d ||'|"d'EP"| Ferin“nl

dirgctos & Indirectos residen v actian desde rerritorie estadounidense.

information related to the organizers of
La delegacidn norteamericana estuvo presidida por ¢f Sr, Avgusting Rodriguer, en

- - - -
represantacion de! Departamento de Jurficla de Jos Cetados Unidos, € Miegroda these criminal activities.
ademds por los foncionarios: Josd F. Orfhuels y Liis O, Rodriguer, Especiolistas del
FBI én Migwmi; Danigl M. Hickey v Thomas |, Mohnal, Peritos; Coronel Héctor Viela,
Cficial de Enlace internacional del Departamento de Transporte de Estados Unidos,

Y kel George Kuaak  Charks Burgest, fols y Fowclonerds, respecovamtents, 4o "The report did not state, although it

ka Seccidn de Intereses Norteamericanos én La Habana,

Despwés del andlizis de hrs pruehas documentales y periciales sobre los casos que wus _nh_“lnusf '!‘“' 'he “_“Iv w“" “_f
oegcr ol Raprasontanta dol Cobleons do. fo Exiodot tntdns S Avgueing gb!umn!g this mfnrmuhan_ was via
Rodrigues, las evidencias siguientes infiltration of these terrorist groups.”

Carpeta N°. 1 : “aforme Sobre los Actividodes Terroristas contra Cuba®, Folios
Confidencial 1-64.

Carpeta W, 2 :
Confidencial

CarpetaWe. 3 :
Confidencial

Carpeta N©. 4

Conflaencial
Hajo N, 2

Muestra N 3 ! M{Zlgw#mmtmﬁmd!f#ﬂ!ﬁxmﬂeﬂh
ocupara a los cot  Mader  Namal
Musalam warymmmm &l 4.3.98.

Mugstra N° |

Casserte video ;| Fragmentos de los declaraclones del detemide Samtos Armandg
N1 Martinezr Rueda.
Confidencial

Muestra N°. 2

: Fragmentos de fas decloraciomes del deremida Cecilly Reinoso
Sdncher

Casselte video ! Reconsiruccidn de los octas  rerrovistas  realizados  en
3 Instalaciones furisticas por Radl Ermesto Cruz Ledm.

Coszerre video ; Entrevistas o loz mercenarios guatemaliecos Maria Elena
N4, Conzdler Mers v Mader Kamal Musalam Borakat, donde
Confidenclal detallan la conexidn de Chdver Abarca con una organizacitn
de cubanoamericanos en Extados Ll
Arnalda Monzdn v Ramda Meding (Luis

¥ para quo asl cons
Jurda da mil nevecs

BATALLAS DECISIV

Casseme videa [ Informaciones framsmindas por las cad fon Nﬁ/;
N 5 acciones rerrorittas contra Cuba, ’N,“:";" & e
Jufe Dopartamer
. ; Cassette oudio ; GCrabacidn de la I 4 Ministssio de
Casserte awdlo © Grabacitn de la Uamado telefénica d¢ da telefdnica real por Pedro Mumas
w1 Cruz Ledn a Karla, esposs de Frane a?. . (Francisce Chiver o Manwvel mu & Miguel Abrabam
Confidencial  8/8/97 a las 23:20 horas, Pilencla Herrera desde Guatemala ¢ 10/3/98 o las 13:30 horas.

Carcetfe awdly ;| Grabacidn de o g g b )
. e ] par Jarid hdn
Cassetie qudip ; Grabacidn de la Mamada a‘rrk.l’d > N B f e Ik Miguel ” [l
e 2. by e i} af et G il G ol 12/3/95 a ta3 2105 horas eSS 08
Confidencial &l 8997 a las 23:40 horas, o
B 1. P s
Cassette audic : Grabockin de lo Namoda relefin i e Ao
N3, Abarea al detenido Raul Ermests O i, o
Confldencial 0040 hara, pres T
Como congrancls de lo antes expwesto, firnian la presembe: :';:.:x
Cassente audio © Grabacién de la lamada telefinica red b
N4, ol detenido Roul Ernesto Cruz Ledn el bl
Confidensizl haFg, unlll-‘:l‘:";
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“The political response of the U.S. government was not long in coming. Only three
months after that meeting, on September 12 of the same year, during an FBI operation
carried out at dawn, Gerardo Herndndez Nordelo, Ramoén Labanino Salazar, Antonio
Guerrero Rodriguez, Fernando Gonzdlez Llort and René Gonzalez Sehwerert were
arrested in their homes.”

“"How many more human lives have to be lost before the FBI fulfills its duty and
arrests the real criminals and terrorists from within the U.S. population itself?

"Is it perhaps that this ‘struggle against terrorisnt is pure rhetoric?”

Ramoén Labanino Salazar

“The majority of Cuban-Americans today, 40 years on, are still active in terrorist
initiatives against Cuba. They are well known by the U.S. state security authorities
because they belonged to these very bodies and because it was through them that
they learned about the technical resources and their working methods.”

Fernando Gonzalez Llort

N duiumudl The government took the first step against them by
placing them in solitary confinement in punishment cells
Surpuiprigivigiegtyivgctall during the first 17 months of detention. This was to be the

lea y poricinles, sobro acciones teToristas contra la

e st beginning of a long list of violations of the most basic
Rl human rights committed during this process.
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Is it possible to put on trial in the community of Miami five people who
acknowledged from the first day of the trial that they are agents of the
Cuban state?

In order to answer this question affirmatively you would have to say that the people

of Miami have no opinion on the Cuban government and on those who defend it, and there
in Miami a verdict of innocence may be pronounced by the members of the jury without
fear of the community reacting.

Consider that these men, according to the accusation, infiltrated in groups of political and
economic power within the community.

Let us see how some potential jury members responded:

David Cuevas:
“1 would feel slightly intimidated and perhaps a little fearful for my own security if my verdict
did not coincide with that demanded by the Cuban community.”

Then he added:

“If you want to know the truth, | would be a bundle of nerves. ... | believe. .. that | would be
afraid, have real fear for my own security if my verdict did not coincide with that of the whole
Cuban community.”

Mr. Glanery:
“It would be very difficult taking into account the community in which we live.”

Michele Petterson was also worried about the community’s reaction in the case of a verdict of
innocende:

] think | would be worried about the reaction that it could cause . .. . | don’t want riots or
anything of the sort that happened during the Elian case.”

Mr. Pareira, another potential member of the jury, declared:
“] would be worried about how others would see me. . . . | don't like the Mafia mentality that
interferes with what | think is a system that works.”

Jess Lawhorn Jr., banker:
“] believe that | am concerned about how public opinion could affect my ability to carry out my
job afterwards. . . . How it could interfere with my ability to do business in the community.”

A sociological study carried out in the community of Miami Dade, less than a month
hefore the jury was seledted, compared with another nafional poll in the United States.



Dr. Brennan, doctor in legal psychology:

“There is a state of war in the local Cuban community [Miami]
against Cuba. . . . The attitudes of this sector have spread
throughout the rest of the community.”

Dr. Lisandro Pérez, professor of Sociology and Anthropology and
director of the Institute of Cuban Research in the International
University of Florida, expressed the following authorized opinion:
“The possibility of selecting twelve citizens from Miami Dade
county that would be impartial in a case like this that incdludes
recognized Cuban government agents is practically zero.”




The defense presented as expert witnesses three high-ranking retired
U.S. officials, who gave their authorized opinions in this regard. The U.S.
Army Major General (retired) Edward Atkenson, former Director of
Military Intelligence of the CIA and senior fellow at the Institute

of Land Warfare, answered.

“They [the Cubans] are not a threat to us. . . . | don’t think we worry
about Cuba at all.”

Referring to the evidence, his replies were as follows:

“In your review of all the materials, did you ever come across any
instructions for people to get hold of classified material?”

“No."” ﬂ A

A
“Did you ever find any specific instructions task get hol s>
top-secret materials?” <

~— ey
- -\—‘-" ——

e

e across a  instructions directing agents to find
that would\be harmful to the United States?”




“There was no alternative other than to rely upon
men who, being committed to a just cause, were
prepared to voluntarily fulfill this honorable duty
against terrorism. To give warnings of the danger of
aggression.”

Antonio Guerrero Rodriguez

“We have dedicated our lives to fight terrorism, to
prevent actions as atrocious as these from taking
place. We have endeavored to save the lives of
innocent human beings, not just in Cuba, but also
in the United States itself; today we are in court
to be condemned precisely for preventing actions

such like these.This sentence cannot be anything
other ;f ironic and unjust!”’

Ramon Lobanino Salazar

.5'.'._-_1Inlnrmui|nn m ‘Washington, declared:
"Cubu is not a military threat to the United States.”

3 wina slmllur vein, Mr. Charles Elliot Wilhelm, General of the U.S.

=2~ Marine Infantry, who toward the end of the nineties was chief of the
' U.S. Southern Command until the time of his retirement, said during

. his statement to the jury:

“==MyviewiwastthatlCubalsJArmed Force' pns d.no IﬂﬂUElﬂlﬂlltl'P ‘
- threut for: ih“"llmted States?” f




WITNESSES HOSTILE TO THE DEFENSE:

“JOSE BASULTO admitted the terrorist activities he had engaged
in against CUBA during his youth, that he had not publicly
renounced his violent past, and likewise acknowledged his
current terrorist activities against CUBA in violation of the laws
of that country, U.S. laws and international laws.”

— |

Transcript of the trial, March 12, 2001.

The witness RODOLFO FROMETA decided not to
base on the Fifth Amendment and testify in
relation to his activities with the terrorist groups
ALPHA 66 and COMANDOS F-4. In his statement,
he acknowledges, among other things, the
following:

- The paramilitary training activities both groups carried out in the
south of Florida.

- Armed raids in CUBA using southern Florida as a point of departure.
- The smuggled weapons and explosives held by both groups.

- That he was arrested in June 1994 when he attempted to purchase
(-4 explosives, anfi-tank weapons and Stinger anti-air rocket
launchers for an undercover FBI agent. Following his arrest he
negotiated a deal with the District Attorney in southern Florida
pleading guilty in exchange for one year of domicile arrest, being
freed on parole until the time of the trial.
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“RICHARD NUCCIO, former presidential advisor on Cuba to BILL CLINTON,

testifies in relation to the terrorist past of the president of “Brothers

to the Rescue”, JOSE BASULTO, and his attempts to provoke a reaction

on the part of the Cuban government, the repercussions of which for

both countries, CUBA and the USA, were viewed with alarm by U.S.

authorities.” Transcript of the trial, March 12, 2001.
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“1 would like the prosecutors to know that the only blood on my hands
is that of my fellow comrades, dead or cowardly murdered in countless
attacks and terrorist activities carried out against my country by people
who today freely walk through the streets of this city [Miami].”




The witness for the defense DEBBIE McMULLEN,
investigator in the Office of the Public Defender,
presented to the court the real reason for their
presence in Miami, via information confiscated from
the five accused: control and follow up of the activities
being planned against Cuba in this city:

- Dperation Arcoiris: Aimed at monitoring a plan by
following terrorists: ORLANDO BOSCH and DARIO LOP
CASTRO for the assassination of FIDEL CASTRO.

- Dperation Morena: Aimed at monitoring the terrorist
activities of ROBERTO MARTIN PEREZ, CANF leader.

- Operation Paraiso: In relation to the plans of the
Democratic National Unity Party (PUND) and the CANF,| ®
to bury weapons in the Bahamas that would later be |-
used against CUBA.

- Boats in the Miami River being prepared to take
explosives to Cuba and the proposal of the accused
GERARDO HERNANDEZ to pass on information to the
FBI via an anonymous phone call.

Transcript of the testimony by DEBBIE McMULLEN, April 12, 2001, 3

“The defense witness, PERCY
ALVARADO GODOY, established a
link between the Cuban American
National Foundation (CANF), the
lobbying organization with offices
in Miami and Washington, and the
terrorist activities in Cuba.”

Transcript of the testimony by ALVARADO GODOY, ¥ r
April 10, 2001. =



“] sincerely trust that one day Cuba will not need
people like me, who voluntarily and out of devotion to
our country and our people, will come to this country
to fight terrorism.”

Fernando Gonzadlez Llort




MIAMI: WHERE THE MOTIVATION TO CONFRONT
TERRORISM IS PROHIBITED AND CONSIDERED
ANTICONSTITUTIONAL.

“The fight against terrorism is the motivation of the accused and motivation
should not be aired in front of the jury.”

Official documents from the trial. Motion confined to the district attorney, 2000.

“The court strongly advises that witnesses exercise their right to base on the
F’ll'Lliilmdmeni so that terrorist activities against CUBA are not made
public.”

Official documents from the trial, District attorney motion from the District attorney’s office,
March 20, 2001.

“Whether terrorism is committed against innocents in the United States or
Cuba, Israel or Jordan, Northern Ireland or India, it is evil and it is wrong; but

the terrorist acts by others cannot excuse the wrongful and illegal conduct of
this defendant or any other.”

Judge Joan Lenard. Transcript of the trial sentence of René Gonzalez Sehwerert, December 14, 2001.

“As a further special condition of supervised release the defendant is prohibited
from associating with or visiting specific places where individuals or groups such as
terrorists, members of organizations advocating violence, and organized crime
figures are known to be or frequent.”

Judge Joan Lenard. Transcript of the trial sentence, December 14, 2001.

D

“1 firmly believe that one can be a Catholic v *\/\ )
and be a good person, be a Jewish and be fif .

a good person, be a capitalist, Muslim or '
communist and be a good person, but &
there is no such thing as a good person
and a terrorist. You have to be sick to be
a terrorist, just as you have to he sick
to believe that there is such a thing
as good terrorism.”

Rene Gonzalez Sehwerert
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| significant transformations have

taken place in primary education.
The nspirnﬁt::; of one mlsr fo
a maximum of twenty pupils per
classroom has been ocnieved for
the 74 percent of the enrolled

!| students throughout the country,

and one hundred percent in the
capital, Havana.

Computer studies and the intensive
use of audiovisual methods are
part of the education of all children
and young people in the
countryside and in the cities.




& Almost 120 million
#m, | children of primary
:" school age in the world
g-« do not go to school.

Cuba has developed techniques to teach literacy via
radio with texts elaborated in five
languages—Creole, Portuguese, French, English and
Spanish-, techniques that are being applied in
different countries. A similar program, of
exceptionally high quality, is about to be released
whereby literacy is tavght via television. These
programs are Cuban initiatives and are genuinely
Cuban. We are not interested in the exclusivity of the
patent. We are willing to offer them to all countries
of the Third World.

Special education takes charge of over fifty-five
thousand children and young people in 428 schools,
and there are also facilities provided in hospitals
and at home via visiting teachers. The introduction
of television and computing is revolutionizing

a teaching system that is full of humanity and love.



Modern methods in computers
are used to translate visval
instructions into voice and
print them with braille

technique in schools for blind
and visuvally impaired people.

All children with physical
or mental difficulties or
disabilities study in special
schools.



Solar panels installed in 2368 S
tiny rural and mountainous region |
schools, in very remote areas,
have made it possible for schools
that have very few pupils, some
with only one child attending, to
enjoy the benefits of television,

video and computers.
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Over one milln:r'ﬁl
children are forced into

—“Ill'fEEH -years! Id-in—
the world § are fnrr.ed
to\work to 'survive.
Not one Ioi them
is tulhun._




at Cuba has the

lowest rate among countries of the

Third

6.5 per thousand

World. Life expectancy at birth

Infant mortality is
live births, mean
is 76 years.
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We have a family physician program that guarantees free
medical treatment to the entire population. These family
physicians’ premises are located within the neighborhood of
the population they attend on.

Cuba has a unique National Health System that is universal,
free and accessible to all members of the population. It is
characterized by its community participation, a high degree
of networking and its internationalist outlook.
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All children are vaccinated without charge
against thirteen illnesses, the majority of
which have been eradicated.

Infectious or contagious diseases such as
polio, malaria, neonatal tetanus, diphtheria,
measles, rubella, post-mumps, whooping
cough, dengue, have been eliminated;
others, such as tetanus, meningococcical
meningitis, hepatitis B, leprosy, meningitis
via hemophilia and tuberculosis are
completely under control.
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All births in Cuba take place ‘l
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52,202 health workers have
given their services in 92
countries around the world.

International cooperation
comprises a range of activities
including specialized medical
care, ministerial advisory
services, the development of
hygiene education campaigns,
epidemiological and hygiene
programs, teaching staff on
placement in Medical Schools
and Faculties, and lecturing on
masters and postgraduate
courses.

Currently, 3000 specialists in
General Medicine, together with
other health professionals, are
working in the most remote
areas of 18 Third World
countries. Their use of
preventative and therapeutic
methods save hundreds of
thousands of lives every year
and preserve or restore the
health of millions of people
without charging a single cent
for their services.

Cuba also provides international
aid via its professors in the Latin
American Medical School (ELAM).
Over 9000 students attend the
school, out of whom 7557 are
from 80 different countries,
representing 100 different ethnic
communities, 69 of which are
Latin American and 31 are
African.




Physical education is developed and
promoted in Cuba together with a

whole range of sports as part of the
education program and as a contribution
to the all-round education of its citizens.

The amount of technicians and teachers
has risen to 30,914, ensuring that
there are sufficient to cover the
national needs, a ratio of one per 355
inhabitants, a figure that is considered to
be among the highest in the world.

There is a University of Sports in
the country with 14 faculties and
an enrolment of 9664 students, with
1260 professors.

There are a total of 12,072 physical
education professors, one per 183
students.

Over the years, 43,000 professionals
in physical education and sports have
graduated from academic and scientific
Cuban sports institutions; most of the

rudluuies have been at university
evel.

There are over 4000 high-performance
athletes, but the source is limitless
given that sports form a key part of
the school curriculum, making it the
base of a pyramid, at the tip of which
are the elite athletes.

The most important sports competition
in Cuba is carried out during the
High-Performance National School
Games, in which an average of around
8000 athletes take part in 29 sports
every year.
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International activities are increasing, |

and Cuba has signed 128 sporis
cooperation agreements with

95 countries on 5 different continents:
71 with governmental organizations
and 31 with Olympic bodies.

The International School of Physical
Education and Sports has 1200
students that are from 33 African
countries, 17 from Latin America,

5 from Asia, and 16 from the
Caribbean; a total of 71 countries.

11,000 Cuban technicians are providing
their services in 100 countries throughout
the five continents of the world.

From the time of its participation in the
1970 Central American and Caribbean
Games in Panama, Cuba has come at the
top of the list, with 1492 gold medals,
739 silver medals and 555 bronze medals,
making a total of 2786 awards obtained.
Out of this total, 82 percent were obtained
after the triumph of the Revolution.




In the 1971 Pan-American Games in Cali,
Cuba came second in the list of countries
for the first time, only overcome by the
United States. In 1991, an important
development occurred when the United
States were beaten by Cuba during the
Havana games.

A total of 640 gold medals, 454 silver
medals and 407 bronze medals, that
sum 1510, have been won in the
Pan-American games, out of which 96.7
percent have been won since 1959.

In the Olympic Games, Cuba has won
a total of 56 gold medals, 47 silver
medals and 41 bronze medals,
making a total of 144 medals; 97
percent have been won since the
triumph of the Revolution.

Cuba has won the title of World
Champion in 12 different sporting
areas 112 times since the Revolution;
25 of which were on more than one
occasion.

A total of 90 percent of our Olympic
and World Champions have emerged
from the School Games.
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Book-publishing programs in diverse
territories have reached the figure
of more than 11,169 titles and
601,690 copies.

The International Book Fair traveled

to thirty cities in 2003 and was visited
by 3,569,356 people who bought
2,911,966 books. The Cuban population
is just over 11 million inhabitants.

Events such as the Ballet Festival, the Fine
Arts Biennial, the Festival of New Latin
American Cinema, the Theater Festival, the
Caribbean Fiesta, the Ibero American
Culture Fiesta, the May Romerias Festival,
the Festival of Trova (Trobadours), the
Cucalambeana Event, the Benny Moré
Festival of Music, the Jazz Festival, the
(Cubadisco) Disc Festival, the Popular Art
Fair and others encourage the relationship
between the public and art.
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Artists’ training schools have been
developed throughout all provinces of the
country; they offer courses and develop
the talent and vocation of over 2000
young people. Tens of thousands of others
do the same in vocational schools, which
are the source of pupils for these
professional institutions.

The mass training of art school instructors
in fifteen art schools throughout the
country is currently taking place with an
enrolment figure of 11,700 students.

In the mountainous regions there are
43 Houses of Culture, which promote
cultural activities in the most

remote areas.

There are over 360 public libraries
offering their services in the country
today.
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A people has never had such
sacred gains to defend, or such
profound convictions to fight for,
to the extent that they would
prefer to disappear from the
face of the Earth rather than
renounce the noble and
generous achievements for
which many generations of
Cubans have paid the high price
of the lives of their best children.







Antonio Guerrero
Rodriguez, condemned to
life imprisonment and 10

| years more

. " .. In the end, we shall
rest free and victorious in
front of that sun which we
are denied today."

Antonio

Fernando Gonzalez Llort,
condemned to 19 years
imprisonment.

“The first duty of any
self-respecting person is

to his or her country.
Throughout the years of my
imprisonment, I will always
carry with me the dignity

I have learned from my
people and their history.”

Fernando

René Gonzalez Sehwerert,
condemned to 15 years
imprisonment.

“... we will continue to
appeal to the American
people's vocation for truth.
And we will do so with all the
patience, faith and courage
that we draw from the crime
of being honorable.”

René

Gerardo Hernandez
Nordelo, Condemned to
two life terms and 15 years
imprisonment.

"My only.regret is that
| have but one life to give

for my country.”
Gerardo

Ramaon Labafino Salazar,
condemned to life
imprisonment and 18
years more

“! will wear the prison
uniform with the same
honor and pride with which
a soldier wear his most
prized insignias!"

Ramén



Why such aherrant sentences?

To what you have read, add the following:

Miami-Dade. An impartial location?

Only in Miami is a byelaw passed demanding that the
persons who wish to do business with the County, must
declare under oath that they will not do business either
directly or indirectly with Cuba or its citizens.

Only in Miami does the owner of a venue have to cancel
a performance by Cubans after receiving death threats and

~ having had a Molotov cocktail thrown at his propeﬂy.’._ﬂ
: _::.‘-'j g .- ,t s e i 2
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== Duefios reconsideran presentacion de artista
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Only in Miami does a dance performance almost lec
due to the Cuban nationality of the dancers.

Only Miami withdraws from the prestigious Pan-
Games after spending almost quarter of
acquiring the rights to be the setting beca

that Cuban athletes were to take part.

Only in Miami is the Euin‘-ﬁng of a Cuban a
ashes by ifs purchaser who had just spent 5

Only in Miami do the terrorists, prosei 1nd police
that the violent activities carried out against Cuba should |
tolerated and publicized.

Only Miami has a long history of terrorist
explosions, attacks and murders against those who ex
a different opinion or question the most extremist line.
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[fiepnustice of Charge 3.

et ona R osur Nl Elaccusation was made against Gerardo Herndndez: to
yspeRoRommipreneditated morder. This is a charge without any legal
PrEIExI et oTsea My BERIoVernment during the secondiindictmenf, presented
Einenonsaersueientionyn fhesearch for o polifical charge against the
QEEIsea MRS esented st e were responsible for the dedthiofithose who

DS HETVESOnEEHroary 245 an incident that took placewlienithe Cuban
uir fureas, aqarcising idis }?ﬁ,s‘?iﬂhf fo f’r‘-f?}‘ﬂ-ﬁ,lllf‘h -‘Jﬁ“'
OV VO OYTES irs]luuyin;j [ORaknown terrorist grnfrﬁ Wi Srompiami,
TGN O G L MG ETN ETFIT0yA0n Umerous occasions fo provoke |

O UVETSIVER e oy ¥oicarry out sahotage. —
RO UERaEm oS o do with a country defending ifs sovereignty.

IIERDOTII0|aTen N e otirine of the S cf, Which hiasibeen d@’l}' and;
(EPENIEDIVNELOMZEdyNTENULS. Supr urf. flw e, '

. N
r;

A3 11 I3 2yid2ul, 1y urgyf .u;}.uinﬁ'j‘:%:;.if‘1 " ed,--:'}_‘,_ ness, nothing linked
v Ny f e =1 r -
TR RO MO PPENEUNITEN. ﬂ_'q‘ ."_
.l " i f o IS . Lla tn et = -,
oML SIS mpossible fo prove the accusation againstGerardo, the
I OITEYRISKEN STERRPPETI R0 T 0 _T;-’Muy 25, 2001, as an emergengy:motion to
MOGIyAnSoEonsaoNen iy arguing that in the light of the evidence
presenied MOMHEROUrS, this represents an insurmountable
pHStatEHoranelumted States in this case and will probably
PESUInheaiore of the accusation in this charge . . . since
Tamposesanunsormovntable obstacle to this district.

THE APPEAL COURT DID NOT ACCEPT THE ATTORNEY'S
REQUEST AND AS A CONSEQUENCE THE JURY HAD TO DECIDE
WHETHER GERARDO WAS GUILTY OR INNOCENT OF THE
CHARGE IMPUTED TWO YEARS PREVIOUSLY. SOMETHING
HAPPENED AT THAT POINT THAT COULD ONLY HAPPEN IN A
MIAMI COURT: WITH UNUSUAL SWIFTNESS, THE JURY
DECLARED GERARDO GUILTY OF FIRST-DEGREE MURDER,
SOMETHING WHICH THE ATTORNEY HAD PREDICTED WOULD
END IN FAILURE.




To date the defense has not had acce

The government used the Classified Information Procedure
Act (CIPA) to prevent the accused and their defense lawyers
from accesing to documentation which formed the basis of
the accusations.

The court repeatedly refused the right to Rule 16 of the U.S.
Penal Procedure Law on evidence that the Prosecutor said
they possessed and decided selectively which part of this
would be presented in the trial. The defense lawyers did
not have access to more than 80 percent of the evidence.

One of the defense lawyers, at the time the sentence was
being pronounced against his client, said, “ Your Honor, we
began this trial over a year ago, it is going to end, and
Ilsnll don't know the basis of the uctusunun against my
client.” |




ss to more than 80% of the evidence

The Classified Information Procedure Act (CIPA) allowed
the government to restrict the quantity of classified
information that would be revealed during the trial, to
edit it according to their desires, and compelled the
defense lawyers of the five accused to reveal prior fo the

a threat to the U.S. hvernmn Waseaek now e
during the trial by hlgh runklngx Humls-w-h €
for the defense andifor




The Condlhons- fo whlch ihe

The fwg(:u'bun defendunlis wer helE

preveniuh}re custody for, 33'month before
S nIe‘nte was pus"sed on| th t-hur es: ey wer;e |
[

isolated for ulmesi 17 menths prler Ie the tri
and 48§Ie ys uﬂer the \rerdut m!speuulElls, |

knownas the ”Ilole " de 5|gne.d for prisoners with

erious dlsuplmurv proble wlih ne‘e?ess to '
elewplen‘ rudlo or press :ondlhon ihul |
ac ordm to the rules of ihe Bureaulof Prlsons, |
should noi‘exteed‘ 60 day; 1ys. |
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Olga Salanueva, René Gonzalez’s wife, and Adriana
Pérez, Gerardo Hernandez’s wife, have been denied
visas to visit their husbhands in prison.
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The Editorial Capitan San Luis thanks the following for the contributions:

The archives of the newspapers and weeklies Granma (Delfin Xigués), Juventud Rebelde (Violeta Martinez), Tribuna
de La Habana, Vanguardia, Surco; the journals Bohemia, Cuba, Prisma, Moncada, Verde Olivo; the institutions:

Agencia de Informacion Prensa Latina, State Security Historical Research Center (Dr. Hevia Frasquieri), Center
for Studies on the United States (José Herndndez, Teresa Gamez), Ministry of Public Health (Dr. Eduardo Sacca, Dr.

Pablo Feal, Dr. Evick Martinez), Ministry of Education (Dr. Miguel Llivina), Ministry of Culture (Lucia Sardirias, Ana
Mayda Alvarez), Ministry of Justice (Dr. Juan José Garcia), Ministry of Fishing, Ministry of Foreign Affairs (Fernando
Remirez, Rafael Dauzd), National Assembly of People s Power (Ricardo Alarcén, Miguel Alvarez), Cuban Institute of
Civil Aeronautics (Leon Duenas), Pedro Kouri Institute of Tropical Medicine, National Institute of Physical Education

and Recreation (Pedro Cabrera, Mario L. Garrido, José Luis Anaya), Cuban Institute of Radio and Television (Ovidio
Cabrera, Ana Maria Hernandez, Margarita Miarey), Revolucion Studios, Museum of the Ministry of the Interior, Mu-
seum of Literacy (Luisa Campos), Museum of the Revolution, Museum of the Battle Against Counterrevolutionaries,

Museum of the Marcha del Pueblo Combatiente, Museum of the Batalla de Ideas, Mundo Latino, Empresa Provincial
de Servicios Necrolégicos (Rogelio Haury, Luciano Antonio Diaz, Iraldo Avila), Fotomecdnica DA-VINCI de Cuba
S.A. (Alberto Gil Rodriguez), Impresos de Seguridad (Juan Marrero), Video 8 and the photographers Alberto Diaz
(Korda), Osvaldo Salas, Jorge Oller, Rigoberto Romero, Liborio Noval, Mario Diaz, Miguel Vifias, Raul Abreu, René
Rodriguez, Raul Corral (Corrales), Francisco Altanuga, Mario Garcia Joya and Ernesto Fernandez.

To the Nobel Prize Winner for Literature Gabriel Garcia Marquez and to the Cuban writers Martha Rojas, Marilyn
Bobes and Emilio Comas for their contributions to the texts on Elian Gonzalez, Adriana Corcho and the abduction
of the fishermen. To the painter and drawer Ernesto Rancario (the cover illustration of the story of Elian Gonzalez).

To the family members of Gerardo Hernandez Nordelo, René Gonzdlez Sehwerert, Antonio Guerrero Rodriguez,
Ramon Labaiiino Salazar, Fernando Gonzdalez Llort (prisoners unjustly detained in U.S. prisons for fighting ter-
rorism).

To the mothers, fathers, widows, widowers, brothers, sisters and friends of the victims of terrorism waged against
Cuba.



Publisher’s Note

The terrorist activities covered in
this book are only a sample of what
the Cuban people have suffered for
over four decades. During this period
3478 people have died as a result of
these activities while a further 2099
have been injured or disabled. Dam-

age to the Cuban economy is calcu-
lated to be 121 billion USD.



“1f we’d have more resources, Cuba would burned down from east to west”
"We have not any other idea that to continue destroying everything in Cuba.”

“The airplune bombing was the most effective strike ever done against
Castro.”

“When | hear that Cuban pilots, representatives or members of their
families die, | feel no shame, those people’s death always make me happy.”

These are not phrases extracted from a fiction novel, but statements from
terrorists. Who are they? When, where and to whom did they state their

thoughts? Readers will feel like if they were inside the events depicted in
this book. And above all they will discover a history submitted to silence.

Here, you’ll also know about the kidnapping case of Elian Gonzalez,
the most publicized kid in the world.

For fighting terrorism, five Cubans are
imprisoned in the United States. Millions
| of people, grouped in 200 committees in
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